
1 

   

North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

O F F I C I A L    A G E N D A  
REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

 
VILLAGE HALL 

1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2017 

7:30 P.M. 
 
NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE 
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE 
FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT 
OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR PERSON WITH 
DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, 
PLEASE CONTACT (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY 
SERVICE). 

    
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
     
 ROLL CALL 
 
2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
         C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
3. GOOD & WELFARE 
 
4. GRANT WRITER’S REPORT 
 
5. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD 
  
 B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
  None 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 25, 2017 
 

2 

 
 
 C. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
   
 D. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
  
 E. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
6. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
8.     CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE PUBLIC WELFARE, AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT, TO ENTER INTO A LAW ENFORCEMENT 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE; 
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
The proposed Resolution will allow the rendering of assistance between both 
municipalities during a law enforcement emergency. 

 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER, AND AWARDING BID NO. NBV 2017-001 FOR THE WATER 
METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM TO SANCHEZ ARANGO 
CONSTRUCTION; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO THE RELATED CONTRACTS PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE 
OF SERVICES OUTLINED IN THE BID DOCUMENTS; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution seeks to award a bid to Sanchez Arango for the Village’s 

Water Meter Replacement Project, which will include replacement of water meters, 
replacement of meter boxes, and installation of service lines associated with related 
valves and fittings as necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 25, 2017 
 

3 

 
 

C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE 
THE PURCHASE OF TWO VACANT PARCELS OF LAND AT 7631 AND 
7701 COQUINA DRIVE, NORTH BAY VILLAGE; FURTHER 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO OBTAIN A CURRENT 
LAND SURVEY AND AN INDEPENDENT APPRAISAL OF BOTH 
PARCELS; SUBMITTING THE CONTRACT PROPOSAL TO THE 
VILLAGE COMMISSION FOR CONSIDERATION; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will authorize the Village Manager to enter into discussions 

with the owner of the properties, Mrs. Phyllis Sepe, regarding the purchase of the 
lands for a potential park on North Bay Island. 

 
D.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, PLEDGING TO INCREASE THE UTILITY RATES 
NECESSARY TO FUND THE DEBT SERVICES ON THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (FDEP) LOANS 
FOR THE WATER MAIN REHABILITATION PROJECT AND THE 
WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 

  
 The proposed Resolution provides assurance to the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP) that the Village will raise the water and sewer rates 
in an amount sufficient to repay the loans from FDEP for utility infrastructure 
improvements. 

  
E.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FRANCO 
GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, INC. FOR FEDERAL LOBBYING 
CONSULTING SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF BUDGETED FUNDS; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will allow the continuance of services by Franco 

Government as the Village federal lobbyist to pursue funding and legislative issues 
in Washington, D.C. 

 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 25, 2017 
 

4 

F.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH GOMEZ BARKER 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING AND LOBBYING 
SERVICES BEFORE THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED 
FUNDS; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution calls for the renewal of a contract for lobbying services before 

the State of Florida for funding assistance for various Village infrastructure projects. 
 
 1.) Commission Action 

                                 
9. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS ITEMS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND  
 
 READING: Please be advised that if you wish to comment upon any of these quasi-judicial items, please inform the Mayor 
 when she requests public comments.  An opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant 
 and staffs have made  their presentations on each item. All testimony, including public testimony and evidence, will be made 
 under oath or affirmation. Additionally, each person who gives testimony may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse 
 either to be cross-examined or to be sworn, your testimony will be given its due weight.  The general public will not be permitted 
 to cross-examine witnesses, but the public may request the Commission to ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. 
 Persons representing organizations must present evidence of their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the 
 quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained from the Village Clerk. 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING AN APPLICATION BY CARLOS MEGIAS FOR A 
SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.098 OF THE 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TO OPERATE A GUIDED 
BOAT TOUR BUSINESS FROM THE MARINA AT 1819 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY, IN THE CL, LIMITED COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; FINDINGS; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, GRANTING A WAIVER, PURSUANT TO SECTION 150.11(G) OF 
THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
DOCK WITH A BOATLIFT AT 1700 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE, WHICH 
WILL EXTEND BEYOND THE 25 FOOT LIMIT; PROVIDING FINDINGS, 
PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
          1.) Commission Action 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 25, 2017 
 

5 

C. AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, REPEALING ALL 
CHAPTERS OF THE VILLAGE CONSOLIDATED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS INCLUDING CHAPTER 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
CHAPTER 2 ADMINISTRATIVE AND LEGISLATIVE PROCEDURES, 
CHAPTER 3 LAND USE, CHAPTER 4 CONSISTENCY AND CONCURRENCY 
DETERMINATIONS, CHAPTER 5 DESIGN STANDARDS AND CHAPTER 6 
FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION; REPEALING APPENDICES OF THE 
VILLAGE CONSOLIDATED LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
INCLUDING APPENDIX A APPLICATIONS, APPENDIX B BUILDING 
PERMIT APPLICATION, APPENDIX C DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY 
AFFAIRS LETTER, APPENDIX D SHORELINE REVIEW CHECKLIST AND 
QUESTIONNAIRE, APPENDIX E CLASS I COASTAL CONSTRUCTION 
PERMIT APPLICATION, APPENDIX H FLOOD CONTROL; REPEALING 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE COMPARATIVE TABLE OF ORDINANCES, 
REPEALING CHAPTERS OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
INCLUDING CHAPTER 152 ZONING AND CHAPTER 155 DESIGN 
GUIDELINE STANDARDS; REPEALING APPENDIX B OF THE VILLAGE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED SIGN ILLUSTRATION; ADOPTING A 
NEW UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE INCLUDING CHAPTER 1 
GENERAL, CHAPTER 2 RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 
CHAPTER 3 DEFINITIONS, CHAPTER 4 ADMINISTRATION AND 
ENFORCEMENT, CHAPTER 5 PERMITS AND DEVELOPMENT 
APPROVALS, CHAPTER 6 NONCONFORMITIES, CHAPTER 7 VARIANCES, 
CHAPTER 8 ZONING, CHAPTER 9 GENERAL SITE DESIGN STANDARDS, 
CHAPTER 10 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION, CHAPTER 11 SIGNS, 
CHAPTER 12 ADULT ENTERTAINMENT, CHAPTER 13 VACATION 
RENTAL LICENSE PROGRAM, CHAPTER 14 MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES; 
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) – SECOND 
READING 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
12. NEW BUSINESS 
 
13. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
14. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – COMMISSION MEETINGS 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 



100 NE 15 Street, Suite 207 ~ Homestead, FL  33030 
Phone:  (786)232-0771  Toll Free Phone/Fax:  (888)778-5930  www.belltowergroup.org 

1 of 1 

To:   North Bay Village Mayor & Village Commission 
From:   LaKeesha Morris, MSW 
Date Submitted: 4/18/2017 
Reporting Period:  March 1, 2017 – March 31, 2017 

Grants Submitted this Reporting Period: 

1. Florida Department of Transportation- Transportation Improvement Program
a. Date Submitted:  March 31, 2017
b. Project Title:  North Bay Village Boardwalk Construction
c. Amount Requested:  $1 Million
d. Match Requirement:  Any amount above $1 million
e. Project Summary:  Funding was requested to begin construction of the Village

Boardwalk.  The Village is now conducting the design phase of this project.  If
awarded funding from FDOT, the project will be scheduled into FDOT’s work plan
for FY2023.

Grants “Under Construction” 
The following grants are currently open and being considered by the Village. 

1. Florida Department of Environmental Protection – Land and Water Conservation Fund
a. Date Due:  May 5, 2017
b. Project Title:  North Bay Village Boardwalk Construction
c. Funding Available:  $200,000 max
d. Match Requirements:  $1:$1 ($200,000)
e. Project Summary:  Funding will be requested to support the construction of the Village

Boardwalk upon completion of the design and permitting phase.

Grant Updates 

1. Grant Reporting Activities
a. Completed Quarterly Programmatic Reports for Two (2) FDLE- Justice Assistance

Grants for the Police Department’s Automated External Defibrillator Project.
b. Completed Fiscal Report for State Revolving Loan Fund

4

Page 1



 
100 NE 15 Street, Suite 207 ~ Homestead, FL  33030 

Phone:  (786)232-0771  Toll Free Phone/Fax:  (888)778-5930  www.belltowergroup.org 

 

 
2 of 1 

2. Grant Contract Activities 
a. Worked with Village Staff to complete workplan and support documents for the 

Town’s TMDL Grant in the amount of $150,000 awarded by Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection. 
 

b. Worked with Village Staff to complete contract documents (Press Release, Upload 
Trainings, Prepare Letters) to begin the High Visibility Enforcement project ($2,000 
award from University of South Florida/FDOT) 

 
c. Completed Desk Monitoring Report for the Village’s FDLE- Justice Assistance Grant 

for the Police Department’s AED Project (County) 
 

Page 2



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

TO 

THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION 

APRIL 25, 2017 

1. FINANCE DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW

2. POLICE DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW

3. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW

4. MANAGER’S REPORT

a. SET MAY BUDGET WORKSHOP DATE
1. MAY 30TH – FIRST CHOICE
2. MAY 25TH – SECOND CHOICE

______________________________________ 
Frank K. Rollason, Village Manager 

6

Page 3



8A

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



8B

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

INVITATION TO BID
FOR

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

SEALED PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED BY THE VILLAGE CLERK,
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, SUITE 300, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

ON OR BEFORE MARCH 10, 2017 4:00 P.M.
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

Page 28



2

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Table of Contents

Section Title Pages

ITB Invitation to Bid 4

IB Instructions to Bidders 7

P Proposal  16

BB Bid Bond 24

NA Notice of Award 27

C Contract 28

PFB Performance Bond 34

PYB Payment Bond 37

NP Notice to Proceed 39

GC General Conditions, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition) 1 - 62

SC Supplementary Conditions 41

SS Sworn Statement 59

01000 General Requirements 63

01020 Allowance 72

01150 Measurement and Payment 75

01300 Submittals 81

01400 Quality Control 84

01500 Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 86

01700 Contract Closeout 89

01720 Project Record Documents 93

02064 Modification and Rehabilitation of

Existing Structures and Equipment 96

Page 29



3

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Table of Contents

Section Title Pages

02800 Restoration of Surface Features 99

A Appendix A 106

 Automated Meter Reading System Specifications

B Appendix B 128

 WASD Specifications

 WASD Details

C Appendix C 130

 FDEP State Revolving Fund Program

Supplementary Conditions

 Wage Rates, FL168 – Heavy Construction Projects

 American Iron and Steel Guidance for State Revolving Fund

Projects

Page 30



4

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
INVITATION TO BID

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Public  Notice  is  hereby  given  that  North  Bay  Village,  Florida  is  soliciting  bids  from experienced  and
qualified vendors for the furnishing of all materials, labor, equipment and supplies necessary for North
Bay Village Water Meter Replacement Program, including necessary appurtenances and all in
accordance with the project specifications.

The nature and scope of this project is:

Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of
existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile
Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters
in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village’s unaccounted for and
non-revenue water.  The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing
software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support.  The
project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the
new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing,
removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway
restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project.
Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer.
Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

Sealed Responses clearly labeled with the BID title and number must be received by mail or hand
delivered on or before March 10, 2017, no later than 4:00 p.m. local time, at which time they will
be publicly opened. Late submittals and facsimile submissions will not be considered. The respondent
shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of the submittal documents.

All  bids  must  be  submitted  as  a  Total  Bid  Amount  with  associated  Contract  Unit  Pricing  per  the
Proposal Form. Bid Security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Bid must accompany each bid in
accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.

Respondents must submit an original bound package, one unbound copy, five (5) bound additional
copies,  and  one  (1)  CD  ROM  to  the  Office  of  the  Village  Clerk,  North  Bay  Village,  1666  Kennedy
Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida 33141.

Page 31



5

Copies of this Proposals Document may be obtained at DemandStar by Onvia at www.demandstar.com.,
at the www.nbvillage.com;  at the Village Administrative Offices, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300,
North Bay Village, Florida 33141 from 9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, or by emailing
yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com.

The Village reserves the right at any time to modify, waive or otherwise vary the terms and conditions of
this BID including but not limited to deadlines for submission, submission requirements, informalities or
irregularities in any submittal, and the Scope of Work. The Village further reserves the right to reject any
or all submittals, to cancel or withdraw this BID at any time or take any other such actions that may be
deemed in the best interest of the Village, to award in whole or in part to one or more respondents, or take
any other such actions that may be deemed in the best interest of the Village.

Pursuant to Section 38.18 of the Village Code, “Ethics Ordinance”, a Cone of Silence is hereby imposed
whereby any communications between any potential bidder, service provider, lobbyist or consultant and
the Village’s staff and elected officials pertaining to this BID are prohibited.

Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC
Village Clerk

Page 32



6

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Below is the current schedule of the events that will take place in the procurement process. The
Village reserves the right to make changes or alterations to the schedule as the Village
determines is in the best interests of the public. Proposers will be notified sufficiently in
advance of any changes or alterations in the schedule. Unless otherwise notified in writing by
the Village, the dates indicated below for submission of items or for other actions on the part of
a Proposer shall constitute absolute deadlines for those activities and failure to fully comply by
the time stated shall cause a Proposer to be disqualified.

Date Event
February 16, 2017 Advertisement

February 17, 2017 Documents Available for Public Inspection and digital copies

February 28, 2017 10:00 AM, Non-Mandatory Pre-bid meeting at:
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Commission Chambers 1st Floor, North
Bay Village, Florida 33141.

March 3, 2017 Last day opportunity for questions by emailing
yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com, no later than 3:00 PM local time.

March 10, 2017 Bid Documents Submittal due in to Village Clerk Office, no later
than 3:00 PM local time.

March 17, 2017 Technical Review Committee Meeting
March 21, 2017 Award Recommendation to Village Clerk and Village Manager
April 11, 2017 Commission Public Meeting to review and confirm Award

Recommendation 7:30 pm local time

Page 33



7

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

Each bidder is encouraged to familiarize themselves with the North Bay Village – Code of
Ordinances and Consolidated Land Development Regulations. Below is an excerpt of the
procurement requirements and general industry practices as they pertain to the Bond and
Insurance  requirements  for  North  Bay  Village.  This  is not  a  full  list of  the  North  Bay  Village
requirements.

North Bay Village Municode
Article 36.25 - Procurement requirements.

(B) Responsibilities of the Village Manager.
… The Village Manager may delegate responsibility for the administration of this Code as he or
she deems necessary.

(D) (7) - Bonds.
a) Construction contracts greater than $50,000.00. For construction
contracts exceeding $50,000.00, contractors shall submit the following with
the bid documents:
1) A bid guarantee equal to five percent of the bid price;
2) A performance bond for 100 percent of the contract price; and
3) A payment bond for 100 percent of the contract price.
b) All other contracts. The  Village  Manager  may  require  any  or  all  of  the
three bonds or guarantees listed above. The bid specification shall include the
amount and type of bond(s) or guarantees that are required.

Chapter 151 - Buildings
Article 151.12 – Bond
The Village will require a 5% bond of the bid price, to meet requirements of Article 151.12.

Page 34



8

Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition)

1. DEFINED TERMS

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the NSPE-ACEC
Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition)
have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions.  The term "Successful
Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible Bidder to whom Owner (on the basis of
Owner's evaluation as hereinafter provided) makes an award.

2. COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the non-
refundable sum, if any, stated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be
obtained from Engineer (unless another issuing office is designated in the
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid).

2.2 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither
Owner nor Engineer assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations
resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.

2.3 Owner and Engineer in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the
above terms do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not
confer a license or grant for any other use.

 3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

To demonstrate qualifications to perform the Work, each Bidder must be prepared to
submit within five days of Owner's request written evidence of the types set forth in the
Supplementary Conditions, such as financial data, previous experience and evidence of
authority to conduct business in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.  Each Bid
must contain evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the
Project is located or covenant to obtain such qualification prior to award of the contract.

Page 35



9

4. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE

4.1 Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder must (a) examine the Contract Documents
thoroughly, (b) visit the site to familiarize himself with local conditions that may
in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the Work, (c) familiarize
himself with federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that
may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the Work; and (d)
study and carefully correlate Bidder's observations with the Contract Documents.

4.2 Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of those
reports of investigations and tests of subsurface and latent physical conditions at
the site or otherwise affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work which
have been relied upon by Engineer in preparing the Drawings and Specifications.
Owner will make copies of such reports available to any Bidder requesting them.
These reports are not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, nor are they part
of  the  Contract  Documents.   Before  submitting  his  Bid,  each  Bidder  will,  at  his
own expense, make such additional investigations and tests as the Bidder may
deem necessary to determine his Bid for performance of the Work in accordance
with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

4.3 On request, Owner will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such
investigations and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of his Bid.

4.4 The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way for access
thereto and other lands designated for use by Contractor in performing the Work,
are identified in the Supplementary Conditions, General Requirements or
Drawings.

4.5 The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the
Bidder that he has complied with every requirement of this Article 4 and that the
Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the Work.

4.6 Bidder to document as part of their bid any areas of non-compliance with the
system specifications.  Areas of non-compliance may result in rejection of a
bid.

Page 36



10

5. INTERPRETATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents shall be submitted
to Owner in writing.  Replies will be issued by Addenda mailed or delivered to all parties
recorded by Owner as having received the Bidding Documents.  Questions received less
than ten days prior to the date for opening of Bids will not be answered.  Only questions
answered by formal written Addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or
clarifications will be without legal effect.

6. BID SECURITY

6.1 Bid Security shall be made payable to Owner in an amount of five percent (5%)
of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified or bank check or
a Bid Bond (on form attached, if a form is prescribed) issued by a Surety as
specified in the General Conditions.

6.2 The Bid Security of the Successful Bidder will be retained until such Bidder has
executed the Agreement and furnished the required Contract Security, whereupon
it will be returned; if the successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the
Agreement and furnish the required Contract Security within 10 days of the
Notice of Award, Owner may annul the Notice of Award and the Bid Security of
that Bidder will be forfeited.  The Bid Security of any Bidder whom Owner
believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by
Owner until the earlier of the seventh day after the "effective date of the
Agreement" (which term is defined in the General Conditions) by Owner to
Contractor and the required Contract Security is furnished or the sixty-first day
after the Bid opening.  Bid Security of other Bidders will be returned within seven
days of the Bid opening.

7. CONTRACT TIME

The  number  of  days  within  which,  or  the  date  by  which,  the  Work  is  to  be
completed (the Contract Time) is included in the Agreement.

8. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement.

Page 37



11

9. SUBSTITUTE MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

The Contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of material and equipment
described in the Drawings or specified in the Specifications without consideration
of possible substitute or "or-equal" items.  Whenever it is indicated in the
Drawings or specified in the Specifications that a substitute or "or-equal" item of
material or equipment may be furnished or used by Contractor if acceptable to
Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by Engineer until
after the "effective date of the Agreement".  The procedure for submittal of any
such application by Contractor and consideration by Engineer is set forth in the
General Conditions which may be supplemented in the General Requirements.

10. SUBCONTRACTORS, ETC.

10.1 If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors and
other persons and organizations to be submitted to Owner in advance of the
Notice of Award, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so
requested, will within seven days after the day of the Bid opening submit to
Owner a list of all Subcontractors and other persons and organizations (including
those who are to furnish the principal items of material and equipment) proposed
for those portions of the Work as to which such identification is so required.  Such
list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information
as to similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such
Subcontractor, person and organization if requested by Owner.  If Owner or
Engineer after due investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed
Subcontractor, other person or organization, may before giving the Notice of
Award request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute
without an increase in the Bid price.  If the apparent Successful Bidder declines to
make any such substitution, the contract shall not be awarded to such Bidder, but
his declining to make any such substitution will not constitute grounds for
sacrificing his Bid Security.  Any Subcontractor, other person or organization so
listed and to whom Owner or Engineer does not make written objection prior to
the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner and
Engineer.

10.2 In contracts or portions thereof, where the Contract Price is on the basis of Cost-
of-the-Work Plus a Fee, the apparent Successful Bidder, prior to the Notice of
Award, shall identify in writing to Owner those portions of the Work that such
Bidder proposes to subcontract and after the Notice of Award may only
subcontract other portions of the Work with Owner's written consent.

Page 38



12

10.3 No Contractor shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, other person or
organization against whom he has reasonable objection.

11. BID FORM

11.1 The Bid Form is attached hereto; additional copies may be obtained from
Engineer.

11.2 Bid Forms must be completed in ink or typed.  The Bid price of each item on the
form must be stated in numerals.  Contractor must bid on all alternates in the bid
form.

11.3 Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a
vice-president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to
sign), and the corporate seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an
assistant secretary.  The corporate address and state of incorporation shall be
shown below the signature.

11.4 Bids by partnerships or joint venture, must be executed in the partnership name
and signed by a partner, whose title must appear under the signature and the
official address of the partnership must be shown below the signature.
Documentation supporting the partnership of joint venture may be requested at
the discretion of the Village.

11.5 All names must be typed or printed below the signature.

11.6 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgement of receipt of all Addenda (the
numbers of which shall be filled in on the Bid Form).

11.7 The address to which communications regarding the Bid are to be directed must
be shown.

12. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Invitation to Bid.

13. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

13.1 Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed
(in the manner that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids
are to be submitted at any time prior to the opening of Bids.

Page 39



13

13.2 If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed
written notice with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable
satisfaction of Owner that there was a material and substantial mistake in the
preparation of his Bid, that Bidder may withdraw his Bid and the Bid Security
will be returned.  Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding
on the Work.

14. OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be opened publicly.

14.1 Bids are opened publicly, read aloud, and an abstract of the amounts of the base
Bids and major alternates (if any) will be made available after the opening of
Bids.

15. BIDS TO REMAIN OPEN

All Bids shall remain open for ninety days after the day of the Bid opening, but Owner
may, in his sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid Security prior to that date.

16. AWARD OF CONTRACT

16.1 Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all
informalities and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the
right to disregard all nonconforming, nonresponsive or conditional Bids.
Discrepancies between words and figures will be resolved in favor of words.
Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct
sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.  Discrepancies between
the indicated value and the correct value as calculated by the product of the unit
price and the estimated quantity will be resolved by using the stated unit price.

16.2 In evaluating Bids, Owner shall consider the qualifications of the Bidders,
whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, alternates,
additive/deductive amounts, and unit prices, if requested in the Bid forms.  THE
VILLAGE AT ITS SOLE DISCRETION SHALL AWARD THIS CONTRACT
BASED ON THE TOTAL BID AMOUNT. It is Owner's intent to accept
alternates (if any are accepted) in the order in which they are listed in the Bid
form, but award will not be based on alternates and the Owner may accept them in
any order or combination.

Page 40



14

16.3 Owner will consider the qualifications and experience of the Contractor,
Subcontractors, and other persons or organizations (including those who are to
furnish the principal items of material or equipment) proposed for all portions of
the Work. The identity of Subcontractors and other persons and organizations
must be submitted as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.  Operating costs,
maintenance considerations, performance data and guarantees of materials and
equipment will also be considered by Owner.

16.4 Owner will conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to assist in the
evaluation of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and
financial ability of the Bidders, proposed Subcontractors and other persons and
organizations to do the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to
Owner's satisfaction within the prescribed time.  Issues such as past performance,
adherence to schedule, and change order requests will be included in this
evaluation.  The weighing of these factors is at the discretion of the Village.

16.5 At the sole discretion of the Owner, the Owner reserves the right to reject the Bid
of any Bidder based upon the evaluation noted in Section 16.4 above.  References
will NOT be limited to those submitted by the Contractor.

16.6 If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest responsible
Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in
the best interests of the Project.

16.7 If the contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the Successful Bidder a Notice
of Award within 10 days after the day of the Bid opening.

17. PERFORMANCE AND OTHER BONDS

Paragraph  5.01  of  the  General  Conditions  and  the  Supplementary  Conditions  set  forth
Owner's requirements as to Performance and Payment Bonds.  When the Successful
Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to Owner, it shall be accompanied by the
required Contract Security.

Page 41



15

18. SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied
by at least six (6) unsigned counterparts of the Agreement and all other Contract
Documents.  Within ten days thereafter, Contractor shall sign and deliver at least six (6)
counter-parts of the Agreement to Owner with all other Contract Documents attached.
Within ten days thereafter, Owner will deliver all fully signed counterparts to Contractor.
Engineer will identify those portions of the Contract Documents not fully signed by
Owner and Contractor and such identification shall be binding on all parties.

19.  CONE OF SILENCE

You are hereby advised that this Invitation to Bid is subject to the “Cone of Silence” in
accordance with Section 38.18 of North Bay Village Code of Ordinances. From the time
of advertising until the Village Manager issues his recommendation, there is a prohibition
on communication with the Village’s professional staff. This ordinance does not apply to
oral communications at pre-submittal conferences, oral presentations before evaluation
committees contract discussions made to Village Commission during any duly noticed
public meeting, contract negotiations with the staff following the award of a bid by any
Village  Commission,  or  communication  in  writing  at  any  time  with  any  Village
employee, official, or member of the Village Commission unless specifically prohibited.
A copy of all written communications must be filed with the Village Clerk.  A proposer
who violates these provisions shall not be considered for this Invitation to Bid.

20. STATE REVOLVING FUND PROGRAM

This project is funded through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection State
Revolving Fund Program and subject to the Supplementary Conditions included as
Appendix C.

Page 42



16

PROPOSAL

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

North Bay Village
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300
North Bay Village, FL  33141

Gentlemen:

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only persons, company, or parties
interested in the Proposal or the Contract to be entered into, as principals, are named herein; and
that this Proposal is made without connection with any other person, company, or parties making
a Bid or Proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

That the Bidder has carefully and to his full satisfaction examined the attached
Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions, Special Conditions, Detailed Specifications, and
Form  of  Contract  and  Bond,  together  with  the  accompanying  Plans,  and  that  he  has  read  all
addenda issued prior to the opening of Bids; and that he has made a full examination of the
location of the propose work and hereby agrees to furnish, unless otherwise provided, all
implements, machinery, equipment, transportation, tools, materials, supplies, labor, and other
things necessary to the prosecution and completion of the work generally described as follows:

  Water Meter Replacement Program BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of
existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile
Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters
in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village’s unaccounted for and
non-revenue water.  The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing
software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support.  The
project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the
new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing,
removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway
restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project.
Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer.
Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

Page 43



17

It is proposed that the project herein described shall be constructed for the Total Bid Amount
based on the Contract Unit Prices in this Proposal, all in accordance with the requirements and
provisions of the Contract Documents. The Village at its sole discretion shall award this contract
based  on  the  Total  Bid  Amount  and  in  accordance  with  Section  16  (Award  of  Contract)  in  the
Instructions to Bidders.

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $

TOTAL BID AMOUNT (IN WORDS)

BID FORM

The following Bid Form is presented to assist the Village in evaluating the Bid.  After award, the
Village reserves the right to modify estimated quantities subject to the unit price, and eliminate
line items if necessary.  In the event of discrepancy or approved quantity change, the Unit Price
for each item will govern. Payment shall be made for the items listed on the Bid Form on the
basis of the Work actually performed and completed.

Item Description Estimated
Quantity Unit Price Value

1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance 1 LS ___________ ____________

2. Maintenance of Traffic 1 LS ___________ ____________

3. Mobile Based AMI System
Implementation and Support 1 LS ___________ ____________

4. Mobile AMI Analytics Software
Implementation and Support 1 LS ___________ ____________

5. Water Loss Management System
Implementation and Support 1 LS ___________ ____________

6. Customer Engagement Program
Implementation and Support 1 LS ___________ ____________

7. Furnish and Install (F & I)
5/8” Solid State meters 265 EA ___________ ____________

Page 44



18

8. F & I, 3/4” Solid State meters 65 EA ___________ ____________

9. F & I, 1” Solid State meters 200 EA ___________ ____________

10. F & I, 1 1/2” Solid State meters 75 EA ___________ ____________

11. F & I, 2” Solid State meters 70 EA ___________ ____________

12. F & I, 3” Solid State meters 30 EA ___________ ____________

13. F & I, 4” Solid State meters 15 EA ___________ ____________

14. F & I, 5/8” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

15. F & I, 3/4” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

16. F & I, 1” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

17. F & I, 1 1/2” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

18. F & I, 2” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

19. F & I, 3” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

20. F & I, 4” Standard meters 10 EA ___________ ____________

21. 1” Service Connections, HDPE 320 EA ___________ ____________

22. 2” Service Connections, HDPE 80 EA ___________ ____________

23. 4” Service Connections 20 EA ___________ ____________

24. Meter Box and Lid Replacement 420 EA ___________ ____________

25. Site Restoration 1 LS ___________ ____________

26. Allowance 1 LS  $340,000.00 $340,000.00

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $

TOTAL BID AMOUNT (IN WORDS)

Page 45



19

As part of this Proposal, the Bidder is to provide the following information:

The Bidder shall provide a narrative description of their company, relevant experience,
qualifications, past performance, and the project. The narrative should include a system overview
of the proposed Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management
system as well as the Bidders methodology, project approach, and description of the proposed
metering equipment, endpoints, system software, etc.

This narrative description should be included as a separate document generated by the Bidder,
but included in the sealed bid response with the Proposal.

Page 46



20

TRENCH SAFETY

Bidder acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price
are  costs  for  complying  with  the  Florida  Trench  Safety  Act  (90-96,  Laws  of  Fla.)  effective
October 1, 1990.  The bidder further identifies the costs to be summarized below.

TRENCH SAFETY UNITS OF
MEASURE MEASURE UNIT UNIT EXTENDED

    (DESCRIPTION) (LF, SY) (QUANTITY) COST     COST

A.

B.

C.

Failure to complete the above may result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

Page 47



21

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

Only  those  Bidders  and  Subcontractor(s)  who  are  qualified  will  be  considered  as  bona  fide
bidders. As Bidder, we certify to have constructed at least three (3) similar projects in the last
five (5) year period as indicated by the following:

1) NAME OF PROJECT ___________________________

YEAR OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER TELEPHONE NO. ___________________________

LOCATION OF PROJECT ___________________________

DESIGNING ENGINEER ___________________________

ADDRESS ___________________________

SCOPE OF WORK ___________________________

APPROXIMATE VALUE $ _________________________

2) NAME OF PROJECT ___________________________

YEAR OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER TELEPHONE NO. ___________________________

LOCATION OF PROJECT ___________________________

DESIGNING ENGINEER ___________________________

ADDRESS ___________________________

SCOPE OF WORK ___________________________

APPROXIMATE VALUE $ _________________________

3) NAME OF PROJECT ___________________________

YEAR OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER OF PROJECT ___________________________

OWNER TELEPHONE NO. ___________________________

Page 48



22

LOCATION OF PROJECT ___________________________

DESIGNING ENGINEER ___________________________

ADDRESS ___________________________

SCOPE OF WORK ___________________________

APPROXIMATE VALUE $ _________________________

List Subcontractors and other persons and organizations proposed by the Bidder to perform

portions of the work:

1) NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR

2) NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR

3) NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR

NOTE:  For additional Subcontractors:  Copy this form and attach additional pages as needed.

If awarded the Contract, the undersigned agrees to execute the attached Contract within ten (10)
calendar days after the date on which Notice of Award is received and to be substantially
complete within 270 calendar days and all work within not more than 300 calendar days after
date of receipt of written Notice to Proceed with such extensions of time as are provided for in
the General Conditions.

The undersigned understands the contract time starts on date of Notice to Proceed.

There is enclosed a Bid Guarantee consisting of five percent (5%) of Total Bid Amount.

The undersigned furthermore agrees that, in case of failure on his part to execute said contract
and bond within ten (10) days after being awarded the contract, the check, bond or other security
accompanying his bid and the money payable thereon, shall become the property of the Village,
by forfeit as agreed and liquidated damages; otherwise the check or bond accompanying his
proposal shall be returned to the undersigned.

The undersigned, if awarded the contract, agrees to furnish at time of signing of contract,
Performance and Payment Bonds each in the amount of 100% of the contract as set forth in
"Instructions to Bidders".

The undersigned states that this proposal is the only proposal for this project in which he is
interested.

Page 49



23

The undersigned further agrees to bear the full cost of maintaining all work until final
acceptance.

SUBMITTED
FIRM NAME
BUSINESS ADDRESS
BUSINESS TELEPHONE
SIGNATURE OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL
TITLE
STATE OF INCORPORATION

FULL NAMES & ADDRESSES OF
PERSONS OR PARTIES INTERESTED
IN THE FOREGOING BID, AS PRINCIPALS:

Addenda No(s)                received and attached hereto.

Page 50



24

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we,

(hereinafter called the Principal), and                                                           (hereinafter called the

Surety), a Corporation chartered and existing under the laws of the State of

with its principal offices in the City of                         and authorized to do business in the State

of Florida, and North Bay Village, and having an Agent resident therein, such Agent and

Company acceptable  to  North  Bay  Village,  are  held  and  firmly  bound unto  North  Bay  Village

(hereinafter  called  Owner),  in  the  sum  of

Dollars ($                         ), good and lawful money of the United States of America, to be paid

upon demand of the said Owner, to which payment well and truly to be made we bind ourselves,

our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally and firmly by

these presents.

WHEREAS; the above bounded Principal contemplates submitting or has submitted
a proposal to the said Owner for furnishing all necessary labor, materials,
equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, services, all State Workmen's
Compensation and Unemployment Compensation Taxes incurred in the performance
of the contract, and means of transportation for construction of:

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

for said Owner, and;

WHEREAS; the Principal desires to file this Bond in accordance with law, in lieu of
a certified Bidder's check otherwise required to accompany this Proposal in the
amount of five percent (5%) of the base bid.

Page 51



25

NOW THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that, if the Proposal
be accepted, the Principal shall within ten (10) days after receipt of notification of
the acceptance thereof, execute a contract in accordance with the Proposal and upon
the terms, conditions and price set forth therein, in the form and manner required by
the Owner and execute sufficient and satisfactory Performance and Payment Bonds
payable  to  North  Bay  Village,  Florida,  each  in  an  amount  of  one  hundred  percent
(100%) of the total contract price, as indicated in the Proposal, in form and with
security satisfactory to the said Owner, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to
be and remain in full force and virtue in law; and the Surety shall upon failure of the
Principal  to  comply  with  any  or  all  of  the  foregoing  requirements  within  the  time
specified above immediately pay to the aforesaid Owner upon demand the amount
hereof in good and lawful money of the United States of America, not as a penalty
but as liquidated damages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE said , as "Principal" herein

has caused these presents to be signed in its name, by its under its corporation

seal, and the said as "Surety" herein, has caused these presents

to be signed in its name by its , and attested by its

, under its corporate seal, this         day of , A.D., 2017.

ATTEST:

BY: (Title)
       (Principal)

ATTEST:

BY:
       (Surety) Attorney-in-Fact

Page 52



26

(Attorneys-in-Fact who sign this bond must file with it a certified copy of their power-of-
attorney to sign said Bond).

Page 53



27

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

TO:
Contractor

Address

ATT:
Name and Title

PROJECT: NORTH BAY VILLAGE
WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Gentlemen:

This is to advise that you have been awarded the contract for the above referenced project as a

result of your bid of:

 ($ ) submitted to North Bay Village (Owner) on

   (Date).

Six (6) sets of the Project Manual for this project are attached.  Each set contains an unexecuted
Agreement and the requirement for attaching the Performance and Payment Bonds.  Please
execute all copies of the Agreement and attach a copy of the Performance and Payment Bonds to
each Agreement and return the Project Manuals to our office for final execution by the Owner.

Your attention is invited to the provision whereby your proposal guarantee may be forfeited in
the event the Agreement with satisfactory Performance and Payment Bonds attached is not
executed and delivered to the Owner within ten (10) consecutive calendar days from

 (Date).

Sincerely yours,

By:
Gary R. Ratay, P.E.

Page 54



28

AGREEMENT (CONTRACT)

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the       day of  in the

year 2017 by and between North Bay Village (hereinafter called OWNER) and

 (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR).

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth,

agree as follows:

Article 1. WORK. CONTRACTOR shall complete all Work as specified or

indicated in the Contract Documents.   The Work is generally described as follows:

Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of
existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile
Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters
in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village’s unaccounted for and
non-revenue water.  The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing
software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support.  The
project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the
new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing,
removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway
restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project.
Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer.
Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part
is generally described as follows:

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

BID NO. NBV 2017-001
Article 2.  ENGINEER. The Project has been designed by the following:

ENGINEER

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
600 N Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33324

Page 55



29

who is hereinafter called ENGINEER and who will assume all duties and responsibilities
and will have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents
in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Article 3.  CONTRACT TIME.

3.1  The Work will be substantially completed within 270 calendar days after the
date when the Contract Time commences to run as provided in paragraph 2.03
of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in
accordance with paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions within 300
calendar days after the date when the Contract Time commences to run.

3.2  Project Milestones.  In accordance with paragraph 2.05 of the General
Conditions,  the  CONTRACTOR  is  required  to  provide  as  part  of  the
Preliminary Schedule the number of days or dates for starting and completing
the various stages of work including the following project milestones:

 Mobile based AMI system design for review by the OWNER (not
to exceed 1 month from Notice to Proceed)

 Mobile based AMI system configuration and Set Up (not to exceed
4 month from Notice to Proceed)

 Installation  of  the  approved  mobile  based  AMI  system  (not  to
exceed 8 months from Notice to Proceed)

 Substantial and Final completion within the time specified in
paragraph 3.1 above.

3.3  Liquidated Damages.  OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of
the  essence  of  this  Agreement  and  that  OWNER  will  suffer  financial  loss  if
the Work is not substantially complete within the time specified in paragraph
3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12
of  the  General  Conditions.   They  also  recognize  the  delays,  expense  and
difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual
loss suffered by OWNER if the Work is not substantially complete on time.
Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, OWNER and
CONTRACTOR agree, that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a
penalty), CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER Five Hundred and 00/100
dollars ($500) for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph
3.1 for substantial completion until the Work is substantially complete.
Liquidated damages shall be deducted from the final CONTRACTOR pay
request.

Article 4.  CONTRACT TIME.

4.1  OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for performance of the Work in
accordance with the Contract Document in current funds as follows:

Page 56



30

According to the TOTAL BID AMOUNT contained in the proposal and the
Schedule of Values provided for payment request purposes.

Article 5.  PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of
the General Conditions.  Applications for payment will be processed by ENGINEER as
provided in the General Conditions.

5.1. Progress Payments.  OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the
Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payment as
recommended by ENGINEER, on or before the 28th day of each month during
construction as provided below.  The Applications for Payment shall be in
AIA format.  All progress payments will be on the basis of the progress of the
Work measured by the schedule of values provided for in paragraph 14.01 of
the General Conditions.

5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be in an amount
equal  to:   90%  of  the  Work  completed  and  90%  of  materials  and
equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored,
less in each case the aggregate of payments previously made.

5.1.2 Upon Substantial Completion, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to
increase total payments to CONTRACTOR to 95% of the Contract Price,
less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with
paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General Conditions.

5.2. Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in
accordance with paragraph 14.07.B.1 of the General Conditions, OWNER
shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by ENGINEER
as provided in said paragraph 14.07.B.1.

Article 6. INTEREST. Not Applicable

Article 7.  CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.

In  order  to  induce  OWNER  to  enter  into Procurement Agreement,
CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

Page 57



31

7.1. CONTRACTOR has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the
Contract Documents, Work, locality, and with all local conditions and federal,
state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may
affect cost, progress or performance of the Work.

7.2. CONTRACTOR has studied carefully all reports of investigations and tests of
subsurface and latent physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting
cost, progress or performance of the Work which were relied upon by
ENGINEER in the preparation of the Drawings and Specifications and which
have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions.

7.3. CONTRACTOR has made or caused to be made examinations, investigations
and  tests  and  studies  of  such  reports  and  related  data  in  addition  to  those
referred to in paragraph 7.2 as he deems necessary for the performance of the
Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with
the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional
examinations, investigations, tests, reports or similar data are or will be
required by CONTRACTOR for such purposes.

7.4. CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations,
examinations, investigations, tests, reports and data with the terms and
conditions of the Contract Documents.

7.5. CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors
or discrepancies that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the
written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.

Article 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between OWNER
and CONTRACTOR are attached to this Agreement, made a part hereof and
consists of the following:

8.1. This Agreement (all pages)

8.2. Exhibits and Appendices to this Contract Document/Agreement

8.3. Performance and Payment Bonds

8.4. Notice of Award

8.5. General Conditions (pages 1 to 62, inclusive)

8.6. Supplementary Conditions

Page 58



32

8.7. Specifications bearing the following general title:

North Bay Village

Water Meter Replacement Program

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

8.8. Drawings bearing the following general title:

North Bay Village

Water Meter Replacement Program

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

8.9  Addenda

8.10. CONTRACTOR'S BID

8.11 Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award

8.12 Any Modifications, including Change Orders, duly delivered after execution
of Agreement.

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8.  The
Contract Documents may only be altered, amended or repealed by a Modification (as
defined in Section 1 of the General Conditions).

Article 9.  MISCELLANEOUS

9.1. Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General
Conditions shall have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.

9.2. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the
Contract Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the
written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically but without
limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this
restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release
or  discharge  the  assignor  from any  duty  or  responsibility  under  the  Contract
Documents.

9.3. OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors,
assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, his partners,
successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants,
agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

Page 59



33

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed six (6) sets of this Agreement.
At least one counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER, CONTRACTOR, and
ENGINEER.  All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by
OWNER and CONTRACTOR or by ENGINEER on their behalf.

OWNER CONTRACTOR

North Bay Village

ADDRESS ADDRESS

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300

North Bay Village, FL  33141

BY BY
(CORPORATE SEAL) (CORPORATE SEAL)

ATTEST          ATTEST

Page 60



34

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

PERFORMANCE BOND
____________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT TITLE: WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
BID NO. NBV 2017-001

CONTRACTOR:
CONTRACT NO: CONTRACT DATED:
______________________________________________________________________________

STATE OF §
§

COUNTY OF §

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That by this Bond, we,
________________________________________________________ of the City of
_______________________, County of ________________________, and State of
_________________, as Principal, and ______________________________, authorized,
licensed and admitted to do business under the laws of the State of Florida to act as Surety on
bonds, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto North Bay Village, as Oblige, in the penal sum
of ____________________________________ Dollars ($______________) for the payment
whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators,
executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents:

WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with Oblige, dated the
_____ day of ______________________, 20____, for the construction of the Public Works
Improvements (the "Contract"), which Contract is by reference made a part of this Bond.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION, IS SUCH THAT, if the said
Principal shall faithfully perform said Contract and shall in all respects fully and faithfully
observe and perform all and singular the covenants, conditions, warranties and agreements in and
by said Contract agreed and covenanted by the Principal to be observed and performed, and
according to the true intent and meaning of said Contract, then this obligation shall be void;
otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

Whenever Principal shall be declared by Oblige to be in default under the Contract, Oblige
having performed Obligee's obligations thereunder, the Surety shall promptly remedy the default,
or shall promptly:

(1) Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or

Page 61



35

(2) Obtain a Bid or Bids for completion of the Contract in accordance with its terms and
conditions and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder, or, if
Oblige elects, upon determination by Oblige and the Surety jointly of the lowest responsive,
responsible Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Surety for completion of the
Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and make available as work progresses
(even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts
of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less
the balance of the Contract price; but not exceeding the amounts set forth in the first paragraph
hereof.

The term "balance of the Contract price" as used in this Bond, shall mean the total amount
payable by Oblige to Principal under the Contract and amendments thereto, less the amount paid
by Oblige to Principal and less amounts withheld by Oblige pursuant to its rights under the
Contract.

Surety, for value received, stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or
addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work performed thereunder, or the plans,
specifications, or drawings accompanying the same, shall in any way affect its obligation on this
Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or
addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder and further
agrees to all of the terms contained in the Contract.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other
than the Oblige named herein or the heirs, successors, executors or administrators of the Oblige.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal and Surety have signed and sealed this instrument
this ____ day of _________________________, 20___.

Witness: Witness:

Principal Surety

By: By:

Name: Name:
(Print) (Print)

Title: Title:

Address: Address:

Page 62



36

The name and address of the Resident Agent for service of process on Surety is:

Name:

Address:

Phone:

Page 63



37

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND

______________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT TITLE: WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
BID NO. NBV 2017-001

CONTRACTOR:
CONTRACT NO: CONTRACT DATED:

______________________________________________________________________________

STATE OF §
§

COUNTY OF §

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That, by this Bond, we
, of the City of , County of

______________, State of ____________, as Principal, and ___________________________, a
corporation, authorized, licensed and admitted to do business under the laws of the State of
Florida, as Surety, are held and firmly bound to North Bay Village, as Oblige, in the sum of
$__________________ for the payment of which Principal and Surety bind ourselves our heirs,
personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally.

THE CONDITION OF THE BOND is that if Principal:

1. Promptly makes payments to all lienors or other claimants supplying labor, material, or
supplies used directly or indirectly by Principal in the prosecution of the work provided in
Contract No. (     ) between Principal and oblige (the "Contract") for construction of the WATER
METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM, the Contract being made a part of this Bond by
reference; and

2. Pays Oblige all loss, damage, expenses, costs, and attorneys' fees, including appellate
proceedings that Oblige sustains because of default by Principal under this Bond; then this Bond
is void; otherwise, it remains in full force.

Page 64



38

Any changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions in or under the Contract, Contract
Documents, plans, specifications and/or drawings, or the work to be performed thereunder, and
compliance or noncompliance with formalities connected with the Contract or with the changes
do not affect Surety's obligations under this Bond, and Surety does hereby waive notice of any
such changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions in or under the Contract, Contract
Documents, plans, specifications and/or drawings, or the work to be performed thereunder.

This Bond is filed in accordance with Section 713.23, Florida Statutes, and/or Section 255.05,
Florida Statutes, whichever or both as may be applicable.

DATED on _____________________________________, 20_____.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal and Surety have signed and sealed this instrument
this ____ day of _________________________, 20___.

Witness: Witness:

Principal Surety

By: By:

Name: Name:
(Print) (Print)

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Address: Address:

The name and address of the Resident Agent for service of process Surety is:

Name:

Address:

Phone:

Page 65



39

NOTICE TO PROCEED

TO:
Contractor

Street Address

City

ATTN:
  Name and Title

PROJECT: NORTH BAY VILLAGE
WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Gentlemen:

One executed copy of your contract for the above project has been forwarded to you
through the Engineer.  The Commencement date is , 20__.  Completion
date shall be                                  , 20__.

Your attention is invited to the provision whereby you shall start to perform your
obligations under the Contract Documents on the Commencement date.  Said date shall begin the
Contract Time.

The Engineer in charge of the Work for North Bay Village will be:

Gary R Ratay, P.E.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
600 N Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33324
954-535-5100

Sincerely yours,

Gary R Ratay, P.E.

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



41

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

1.01 GENERAL:

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the NSPE-ACEC Standard
General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition) and other
provisions of the Contract Documents as indicated below.  All provisions that are not so
amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.  If there is a conflict between
the Contract, General Conditions (EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition)) and these
Supplementary Conditions, the terms of the Supplementary Conditions shall control.

The Contractor shall note physically by cross out or cross reference notations all changes
in the General Conditions called for in the Supplementary Conditions before submitting
his Bid.

ARTICLE 1  -  DEFINITIONS  -  Page 1

SC-1.01.A

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions which are defined in the
Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (EJCDC C-700 (2007)
Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions, unless
otherwise indicated.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.28 by replacing the terminology Notice of Award
with Notice of Intent to Award.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.43 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

Subcontractor – An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor.
Sub-Subcontractor is an individual or entity having a direct contract with any
Subcontractor for the performance of a part of Work at the Project.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.29 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

Village – The individual, entity, public body, Village Manager, or authority with
whom Contractor has entered into the Contract and for whom the Work is to be
performed.

Page 135



42

Add SC-1.01.A.52 as the following paragraph:

Promptly – The period of time not exceeding five business days.

ARTICLE 2  -  PRELIMINARY MATTERS  -  Page 6

SC-2.03

Amend paragraph 2.03.A by replacing the number of days from “30” to “90”.

ARTICLE 4  -  AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL
CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS  -  Page 14

SC-4.04

Amend paragraph 4.04.B.2 by replacing the last sentence with the following:

If Village or Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or
extent, if any, of any such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, a
Claim may be made as provided in paragraph 10.05.

ARTICLE  5  -  BONDS AND INSURANCE  -  Page 16

5.01

Amend paragraph 5.01.A by adding the following language at the end of
the paragraph:

Any additional costs shall be borne by the Contractor.

5.04

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 5.04 of the General
Conditions.

The limits of liability for the insurance required by paragraph 5.04 of the General
Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or
greater where required by law:

5.04.A.1 and 5.04.A.2 Workers' Compensation, etc. under paragraphs 5.04.A.1
and 5.04.A.2 of the General Conditions:

Page 136



43

1. Comprehensive General Liability:
(a) Coverage to include Premise/Operations, Broad Form Property
Damage, Contractual and Personal Injury, and XCU (where applicable).

2. Limits:
(a) General Aggregate $1,000,000
(b) Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(c) Personal Injury $1,000,000

3. Coverage is to be written on an "occurrence" basis.

4. Village’s and Contractors Protection:
(a) Bodily Injury:

Annual Aggregate $1,000,000
Each Occurrence $1,000,000

(b) Property Damage:
Annual Aggregate $1,000,000
Each Occurrence $1,000,000

5. Worker's Compensation shall be in accordance with the provisions of the
laws of the State of Florida.

5.04.A.7 Comprehensive Automobile Liability:
(a) Coverage to include all owned, hired, non-owned vehicles, and/or

trailers and other equipment required to be licensed.
(b) Limits:

Combined Single Limit $1,000,000

5.04.B.8 Umbrella:
(a) Limits:

Aggregate $1,000,000
(b) Cover all claims arising out of the Contractor's operations or

premises, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor
or Subcontractor, and the Contractor's obligations under
indemnification under this Contract.

5.04.B.9 North Bay Village, shall be included as a named insured party
under the Contractors Liability Insurance. The following paragraph
is required to appear unaltered on the Certificate of Insurance.

Page 137



44

"North Bay Village, Florida is hereby named Additional Insured
under the terms of this policy."

5.04.B.10 A thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation is required and must be
stated on the Certificate of Insurance.

5.04.B.11 The Certificate of Insurance shall be issued to North Bay Village,
Florida at the following address:

North Bay Village
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300

North Bay Village, FL  33141

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES - INDEMNIFICATION - Page 22

SC-6.01

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.01.B of the General
Conditions.

The Contractor shall perform all work in compliance with all applicable safety
codes. A competent English speaking superintendent will be on the job at all
times during working hours, and will be subject to call during off-¬duty hours for
emergency situations.  The superintendent shall have overall charge of the work
with complete authority regarding the Contractor's workmen, equipment and
material purchases.  The superintendent shall have complete authority to act on
behalf of the Contractor.  This person must be sufficiently qualified and have read
and understood the Drawings, Specifications and all Contract Documents.

SC-6.02

Modify paragraph 6.02.B to allow work on Saturday per the following new
paragraph added immediately after paragraph 6.02.B of the General Conditions.

The Project sites being located in a single-family residential area, there shall be no
undue noise created, whether by workers arriving at the sites or by actual
construction work, before 8:00 a.m. or after 4:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday.
No work shall be performed on Sunday or legal holidays as defined by Village
Code and Ordinance.  There are no public sanitary facilities nearby the work sites,
and the Contractor must therefore make arrangements for portable sanitary
facilities as authorized by the Village.

Page 138



45

SC-6.06

Amend paragraph 6.06.A by replacing the last sentence of the paragraph with the
following sentence:

Contractor shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor, supplier, or other
individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom
Contractor has reasonable objection, except as required by 6.06.B and the
Instruction to Bidders.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by adding the words “Instructions to Bidders” before
Supplementary Conditions where ever it appears.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by deleting the following sentence from the paragraph:

Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor,
Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the Contract Price will be adjusted by
the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate
Change Order will be issued or Written Amendment signed.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by adding the following language at the end of the last
sentence of the paragraph:

nor does such acceptance create a contractual relationship between the Village
and any subcontractor, supplier, individual or entity.

SC-6.09

Amend paragraph 6.09.C by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with the
following sentence:

Changes in Laws or Regulations which become effective after the time of opening
of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Contract if there were no Bids) having an
effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work may be the subject of an
adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times.

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.09.C. of the General
Conditions:

All vehicles used in connection with the Contractor's operations will be required
to have identification signs.

Page 139



46

SC-6.11

Amend paragraph 6.11.A.2 by adding the following language at the end of the last
sentence:

, as set forth on the Resident Complaint Resolution Protocol attached hereto and
made a part of the Contract Documents.

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.11.B. of the General
Conditions:

Adjacent residents must have access to their driveways at all times.  All
barricades and warning signs for any traffic lane closures will be provided and
maintained by the Contractor.  Cost of all barricades and signs shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor.  Any off-duty officers as may be required in the
maintenance of traffic shall be provided by the Contractor at the Contractor’s
expense.

SC-6.12

Amend paragraph 6.12.A by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with the
following sentence:

Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Project one record copy of all
Drawings, Project Specifications, Addenda, Written Amendments, Change
Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, AsBuilts, and written
interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes
made during construction.

SC-6.13

Amend paragraph 6.13.A.3 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

other property at the Project or adjacent thereto, including, but not limited, to
trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and
underground facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in
course of construction.

SC-6.20

Amend the paragraphs 6.20.A.1 and 6.20.A.2 by replacing them with the
following paragraph.

Page 140



47

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, the Parties agree that in
consideration of the first $1,000.00 dollars to be paid by Village to Contractor
hereunder and other specific consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the Village and Village Engineer and their consultants, agents, officers and
employees, and the elected officials of the Village, from and against all claims,
damages, losses and expenses, direct, indirect or consequential (including but not
limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other
professional and court and arbitration costs) arising out of or resulting from the
performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense
(a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself) including the loss of
use resulting therefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act
or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly
or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it
is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder or arises by or is implied by
Law and Regulations regardless of the negligence of any such party.

Amend paragraphs 6.20.B by replacing it with the following paragraph:

In any and all claims against Village and Village Engineer and their consultants,
agents, officers and employees, and the elected officials of the Village by any
Contractor, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly or indirectly
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under
paragraph 6.20 shall not be limited in any way, by any limitation on the amount or
type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any
such Subcontractor or other person or organization under workers' or workmen's
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 8  -  VILLAGE’S RESPONSIBILITIES  -  Page 36

SC-8.02

Amend paragraph 8.02.A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

In case of termination of the employment of Village Engineer, Village shall
appoint an engineer whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of
the former Village Engineer.

Page 141



48

ARTICLE 9  -  VILLAGE ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION  -  Page
37

SC-9.03

Amend paragraph 9.03.A by adding the following language at the end of the
paragraph:

The Village Engineer will provide a Resident Project Representative for this
Project with duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority as outlined in
Exhibit "B" attached at the end of these Supplementary Conditions.  The Resident
Project Representative will not be a full time Representative, but will work such
periods of time so as to cover the Project in accordance with Exhibit "B".

SC-9.04

Amend paragraph 9.04.A by deleting the following sentence from the end of the
paragraph:

If Village and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount
or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or
both, as a result of a Field Order, a Claim may be made therefore as provided in
paragraph 10.05.

SC-9.07

Amend paragraph 9.07.A by replacing the word “decision” in the second sentence
with the word “recommendation” and adding the words “recommendation will be
submitted to the Village Manager whose” into the third sentence between the
words “written” and “decision”.

SC-9.08

Amend paragraph 9.08.D by replacing the word “decision” with
“recommendation” in the second paragraph and deleting the words “Village or”
from the last sentence.

ARTICLE 10  -  CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS  -  Page 40

SC-10.01
Amend paragraph 10.01.A by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with
the following sentence:

Page 142



49

Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any Surety, Village may,
at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the
Work by a Written Amendment, a Change Order, a Work Change Directive, or a
Field Directive.

Amend paragraph 10.05.D by adding the following sentence at the end of the
paragraph:

Adherence to the terms of paragraph 10.05 is a condition precedent to bringing
any further action in litigation.

SC-10.05

Amend paragraph 10.05.A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

B.  Village Manager’s Decision: Village Engineer will render a formal
recommendation to the Village Manager for a binding decision in writing within
30 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of
the opposing party, if any.  Village Managers decision on such Claim, dispute, or
other matter will be final and binding upon Village and Contractor:

ARTICLE 11  -  COST OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCE; UNIT PRICE WORK -
Page 42

SC-11.01
Amend paragraph 11.01.A.1 by deleting the word Saturday from the last sentence
of the paragraph.

Delete paragraph 11.01.A.4 in its entirety.

SC-11.03.C

Amend paragraph 11.03.C by replacing it with the following paragraph:

C.  A Claim may be made for an adjustment in the Contract Price in
accordance with paragraph 10.05 if:

Page 143



50

ARTICLE 12 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES –
Page 46

SC-12.01.C

Amend paragraph 12.01.C.2.a. by replacing the entire sentence with the following
sentence:

for costs incurred under paragraph 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2, the
CONTRACTOR’s fee shall be 10 percent;

SC-12.01.C

Modify paragraph 12.01.C.2.c. to change the fee as follows in the first sentence:

Will be paid a fee of 10 percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor under
paragraph 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2 and that any higher tier Subcontractor and
Contractor will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount paid to the next
lower tier Subcontractor;

SC-12.03

Amend paragraph 12.03 by replacing the entire paragraph with the following
paragraph:

Contractor will not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price for delays
extended general conditions, extended overhead, loss of productivity, acceleration
or any damages or other compensation whatsoever in the event of any delays in
the progress of the Work on account of hindrances or delays from any cause
whatsoever.  Such causes of delay include but are not limited to differing site
conditions, difficulty in acquiring building permits, limited access to the Project,
failure to approve plans and shop drawings on time, delays caused by
governmental action, inaction or regulation, subsurface conditions, material
shortages or delay in delivery of materials.   It is the specific intent hereunder that
an extension of time will be the sole and exclusive remedy for delay of any type,
description of category.  However, if occasioned by an act of God, or by any act
or omission on the part of the Village such act, hindrance or delay may entitle the
Contractor to an extension of time in which to complete the Work which shall be
determined by the Village Engineer, provided that the Contractor will give notice
as provided herein.

Page 144



51

The foregoing limitations on adjustments to Contract Price also apply to any
causes of delay which affect any subcontractor, materialman, supplier or laborer
on the Project. In no event, if any such events of delay occur, shall any
subcontractor, materialman, supplier or laborer be entitled to additional
compensation for delays including claims for extended general conditions,
extended overhead and the like against the Village or Village Engineer.

ARTICLE 13  -  TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR
ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK  -  Page 48

SC-13.04

Amend paragraph 13.04.A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

If any Work is covered contrary to the Technical Specifications, Drawings or
Contract Documents, it must, if requested by Village Engineer, be uncovered for
Village Engineer’s observation and replaced at Contractor’s expense.

Amend paragraph 13.04.B by adding the following language at the end of the
second sentence:

,or direct payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

SC-13.09

Amend paragraph 13.09.C by adding the following language at the end of the first
sentence:

, or direct payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

ARTICLE 14  -  PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION  -  Page 52

SC-14.02.A.2

Amend paragraph 14.02.A.2 by deleting the existing paragraph and replacing it
with the following paragraph:

Page 145



52

With each Application for Payment, the Contractor shall include a Partial Waiver
Upon Progress Payment or Statutory Waiver and Final Release, as appropriate
from each and every materialman, supplier and or laborer (“Potential Lienor”)
who has provided labor, services or materials for the Project.  Contractor shall
submit its own Statutory Waiver and Partial Release of Lien or Statutory Waiver
and Final Release of Lien, as appropriate, with each Application for Payment.
Moreover, Contractor shall ensure that no construction liens, or any
encumbrances in the nature thereof or any other encumbrances whatsoever
(including equitable lien claims), shall be filed or maintained by the Contractor or
by any Potential Lienor in connection with any Work for which Village has made
payment or for which payment is not yet due.  As a condition precedent to the
receipt of each progress payment from the Village, Contractor must furnish the
Partial Waiver Upon Progress Payment Statutory Waiver and Final Release from
each Potential Lienor, in the form prescribed by Village and/or Village Engineer,
together with a Contractor’s Affidavit and Partial Release, in the form prescribed
by the Village and/or Village Engineer.  Further, as a condition precedent to the
receipt of the final payment, the Contractor shall provide Village with a Statutory
Waiver and Final Release from each Potential Lienor in the form prescribed by
Village and/or the Village Engineer, together with a Contractor’s Affidavit and
Final Release.   Each Release given to the Village shall waive and release any lien
rights of the Potential Lienor to the extent payment is made with respect to any
Work performed through the date of the Release.  For any Potential Lienor who
has served a Notice to Village and/or Notice to Contractor, but who has not
provided labor, services or materials during the period of time covered by an
Application for Payment, the Contractor shall provide a Zero Dollar Release in
the form prescribed by Village and/or Village Engineer.  Contractor shall comply
with all requirements of Florida Statutes, Chapter 713.   Contractor agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold the Village harmless from and against any and all
liens or other claims whatsoever filed against the Village or the Village’s property
by any Potential Lienor for worked performed or materials or services furnished
in connection with the Work for which Contractor has been paid or for which
payment is not yet due at the time the Lien is recorded.  In the event a Claim of
Lien is recorded against the Village’s property, the Contractor shall cause the
same to be satisfied within ten (10) days following the date of recordation of the
Claim of Lien, or in the alternative, shall cause the Claim of Lien to be transferred
to a Bond.  In the event any Liens are not cleared of record within ten (10) days of
recordation, Village shall have the right to settle, satisfy, or transfer such Lien to a
Bond at Contractor’s sole cost and expense and Village may offset any such cost
against the next payment due to Contractor, or Contractor shall make a direct
payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

Page 146



53

Village shall not be limited to and is entitled to all other remedies available at law
or in equity.  The provisions of this paragraph shall be deemed an independent
covenant of the Contractor and shall be effective with respect to all Work
performed and materials and services furnished under the Contract Documents,
Change Orders or any other agreement for work with respect to the Project.

SC-14.02.D.1.b

Amend paragraph 14.02.D.1.b by deleting the existing paragraph and replacing it
with the following:

Liens have been recorded in connection with the Work or the Project.

SC-14.07

Amend paragraph 14.07.A.1 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

After Contractor has, in the opinion of Village Engineer, satisfactorily completed
all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in
accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operation
instructions, schedules, guarantees, Bonds, certificates or other evidence of
insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in
paragraph 6.12), final releases, final affidavits, Asbuilts, and other documents,
Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for
progress payments.

Amend paragraph 14.07.A.2 by adding the following language at the end of the
first sentence:

or claims made against the Bonds provided by Contractor under the Contract
Documents.

Delete paragraph 14.07.A.3 in its entirety.

Page 147



54

SC-14.09

Amend paragraph 14.09.A.1 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

a waiver of all Claims by Village against Contractor, except Claims arising from
unsettled Liens or Claims against the Bonds, from defective Work appearing after
final inspection pursuant to paragraph 14.06, from failure to comply with the
Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or
from Contractor’s continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and

ARTICLE 15  -  SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION  -  Page 59

SC-15.03

Delete paragraph 15.03.A.3 in its entirety.

Delete paragraph 15.03.A.4 in its entirety.

SC-15.04

Amend paragraph 15.04.B. by deleting the last sentence of the paragraph.

EXHIBIT "B"

A LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIMITATIONS
OF AUTHORITY OF THE RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

Village Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field
staff to assist Village Engineer in observing performance of the Work of the Contractor.

Through more extensive on-site observations of the Work in progress and field checks of
materials and equipment by the RPR and assistants, Village Engineer shall endeavor to provide
further protection for Village against defects and deficiencies in the Work; but, the furnishing of
such services will not make Village Engineer responsible for or give Village Engineer control or
supervisory control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or
for safety precautions or programs, or responsibility for Contractor's failure to perform the Work
in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of Village Engineer in Village
Engineer's agreement with the Village and in the construction Contract Documents, and are
further limited and described as follows:

Page 148



55

A. General

RPR is Village Engineer's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the
supervision of Village Engineer, and will confer with Village Engineer regarding RPR's
actions.  RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the on-site work shall in general be with
Village Engineer and Contractor keeping Village advised as necessary. RPR's dealings
with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of
Contractor.  RPR shall generally communicate with Village with the knowledge of and
under the direction of Village Engineer.

B. Duties and Responsibilities of RPR

l. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and
schedule of values prepared by Contractor and consult with Village Engineer concerning
acceptability.

2. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as pre-construction
conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other Project-related meetings, and
prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.

3. Liaison:

a. Serve as Village Engineer's liaison with Contractor, working principally through
Contractor's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract
Documents; and assist Village Engineer in serving as Village's liaison with
Contractor when Contractor's operation affect Village's on-site operations.

b. Assist in obtaining from Village additional details or information, when required
for proper execution of the Work.

4. Shop Drawings and Samples:

a. Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples.

b. Receive samples that are furnished at the site by Contractor, and notify Village
Engineer of availability of samples for examination.

c. Advise Village Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any Work
requiring a Shop Drawing or sample if Village Engineer has not approved the
submittal.

Page 149



56

5. Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests:

a. Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist Village Engineer in
determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

b. Report to Village Engineer whenever RPR believes that any Work is
unsatisfactory, faulty or defective or does not conform to the Contract
Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any
inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise Village Engineer of
Work that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered
for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

c. Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance
training are conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that
Contractor maintains adequate records thereof; and observe, record and report to
Village Engineer appropriate details relative to the test procedures and startups.

d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having
jurisdiction over the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to
Village Engineer.

6. Interpretation of Contract Documents: Report to Village Engineer when clarifications and
interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to Contractor
clarifications and interpretations as issued by Village Engineer.

7. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for modifications in
Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to Village Engineer.
Transmit to Contractor decisions as issued by Village Engineer.

8. Records:

a. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of original Contract
Documents including all Work Directive Changes, Addenda, Change Orders,
Field Orders, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the
Contract, Village Engineer's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract
Documents, progress reports, and other Project related documents.

Page 150



57

b. Keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor hours on the job site, weather
conditions, data relative to questions of Work Directive Changes, Change Orders
or changed conditions, list of job site visitors, daily activities, decisions,
observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the case of
observing test procedures; and send copies to Village Engineer.

c. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors,
subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equipment.

9. Reports:

a. Furnish Village Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and
of Contractor's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop
Drawing and sample submittals.

 b. Consult with Village Engineer in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or
start of important phases of the Work.

c. Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes, obtaining backup
material from Contractor and recommend to Village Engineer Change Orders,
Work Directive Changes, and Field Orders.

d. Report immediately to Village Engineer and Village upon the occurrence of any
accident.

10. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance with
the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to
Village Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the
schedule of values.  Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site
but not incorporated in the Work.

11. Certificates, Maintenance and Operation Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify
that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be
assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and
in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to Village
Engineer for review and forwarding to Village prior to final payment for the Work.

12. Completion:

a. Before Village Engineer issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to
Contractor a list of observed items requiring completion or correction.

Page 151



58

b. Conduct final inspection in the company of Village Engineer, Village and
Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

c. Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make
recommendations to Village Engineer concerning acceptance.

C. Limitations of Authority

Resident Project Representative:

l. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of
materials or equipment, unless authorized by Village Engineer.

2. Shall not exceed limitations of Village Engineer's authority as set forth in the
Contract Documents.

3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors or
Contractor's superintendent.

4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect
of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction
unless such advice or directions are specifically required by the Contract
Documents.

5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Work.

6. Shall not accept Shop Drawings or sample submittals from anyone other than
Contractor.

7. Shall not authorize Village to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

8. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections
conducted by others except as specifically authorized by Village Engineer.

END OF SECTION

Page 152



59

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133(3)(a),

FLORIDA STATUES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A
NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1. This sworn statement is submitted to
[print name of the public entity]

by
[print individual's name and title]

for
[print name of entity submitting sworn statement]

whose business address is

and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is                     .

(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing

This sworn statement:                                                                                                 .)

2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida
Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and
directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or
political subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited
to,  any  bid  or  contract  for  goods  or  services  to  be  provided  to  any  public  entity  or  an
agency  or  political  subdivision  of  any  other  state  or  of  the  United  States  and  involving
antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material
misrepresentation.

Page 153



60

3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b),
Florida Statutes, means a finding or guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with
or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to
charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury
verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

4. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes,
means:

1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime: or

2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management
of  the  entity  and  who  has  been  convicted  of  a  public  entity  crime.   The  term
"affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders,
employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an
affiliate.  The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling
interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons
when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima
facie case that one person controls another person.  A person who knowingly
enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity
crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes,
means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United
States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to
bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which
otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity.  The term "person"
includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees,
members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.

6. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in
relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [indicate which statement
applies.]

        Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the
management  of  the  entity,  nor  any  affiliate  of  the  entity,  has  been  charged  with  and
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

Page 154



61

        The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the
management  of  the  entity,  or  an  affiliate  of  the  entity  has  been  charged  with  and
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

        The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the
management  of  the  entity,  or  an  affiliate  of  the  entity  has  been  charged  with  and
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.  However, there has been a
subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of
Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined
that it was not in public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the
convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order]

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE
CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN
PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT
THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN
WHICH IT IS FILED, I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM
THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF
THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA
STATUTES FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED INT HIS FORM.

[signature]

Sworn to and subscribed before me this           day of               , 20       .

Personally known

OR Produced identification Notary Public - State of

My commission expires
(Type of identification)

(Printed typed or stamped commissioned
  name notary public)

Page 155



62

Form PUR 7068 (Rev. 06/11/92)

Page 156



63

SECTION 01000

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01  DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply,
replacement of existing water meters, field installation, system implementation,
and optimization of a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water
Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and cost effective
manner as well as reduce the Village’s unaccounted for and non-revenue water.
The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing
software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation
support.  The project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service
piping as needed from the new water meters to the water main, water meter box
replacement, water system testing, removal of existing water meters and boxes,
maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway restoration, site restoration, and all other
appurtenances necessary for a complete project.  Construction of this project will
require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer.  Maximum project
duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

B. Omission of a specific item or component part of a system obviously necessary
for the proper functioning of the system shall not relieve the Contractor of the
responsibility of furnishing the item as part of the work at no additional cost to
Owner.

C. The Specification Divisions and Drawings are an integrated part of the Contract
Documents and as such will not stand alone if used independently as individual
Sections, Divisions, or Drawing Sheets. The Drawings and Specifications
establish minimum standards of quality for this Project. They do not purport to
cover all details entering into the design and construction of materials or
equipment.

D. Where portions of the work traverse or cross federal, state, county or local
highways, roads, streets, or waterways, and the agency in control of such property
has established standard specifications governing items of work that differ from
these specifications, the most stringent requirements shall apply.

Page 157



64

E. The Contractor shall become familiar with the existing operating conditions of the
Owner's water distribution system and take such into consideration in planning
and scheduling work. No extra claims shall be made for work required to achieve
conditions beyond those obtainable under normal operation of the existing water
distribution facilities necessary to accomplish the work.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Laws and Regulations: Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws,
ordinances, rules, and regulations applicable to the work. If Contractor observes
that the Specifications or Drawings are at variance therewith, Contractor shall
give Engineer prompt written notice thereof, and any necessary changes shall be
adjusted by an appropriate modification. If Contractor performs any work,
knowing or having reason to know, that it is contrary to such laws, ordinances,
rules, and regulations, and without such notice to Engineer, Contractor shall bear
all costs arising therefrom.  However, it shall not be Contractor’s primary
responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in
accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

1.03  PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

A. Automated Meter Reading System specifications are included in Appendix A.

B. The Miami-Dade Standard Specifications and Details for Design and
Construction of water and wastewater improvements, latest edition are hereby
incorporated by reference and the Contractor shall comply with all requirements.
Select Miami-Dade Water and Sewer specification and details are included in
Appendix B for reference.

C. Portions of the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for
Road and Bridge Construction and their Roadway and Traffic Design Standards,
hereinafter referred to as the DOT Standard Specifications, are referred to herein
and amended, in part, and the same are hereby made a part of this Contract to the
extent of such references and shall be as binding upon the Contract as though
reproduced herein. Such reference shall mean the current edition, including all
supplements. In case of a conflict in the requirements of the DOT Specifications
and the requirements stated herein, the requirements herein shall prevail.

D. Contractor will be required to submit Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) plans for
work on the Village streets and State highways. Contractor shall coordinate with
MOTs for nearby or highway work and obtain approval for all traffic control as
required by the permit jurisdiction having authority

Page 158



65

E. This project is funded through the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection State Revolving Fund Program and subject to the Supplementary
Conditions included as Appendix C.

F. The applicable portions of North Bay Village Code and Florida Building Code
shall apply to the project.

PART 2 SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS

2.01  SCHEDULING

A. General: Prepare and submit schedule in accordance with the provisions of
Section 01300.

B. Plan the Work and carry it out with minimum interference to the operation of the
existing facilities. Prior to starting the work, confer with the Engineer and
Owner's representative to develop an approved work schedule which will permit
the facilities to function normally as practical. It may be necessary to do certain
parts of the construction work outside normal working hours in order to avoid
undesirable conditions. The Contractor shall do this work at such times, and at no
additional cost to the Owner. Do not make connections between existing work
and new work until necessary inspection and tests have been completed on the
new  work  and  it  is  found  to  conform  in  all  respects  to  the  requirements  of  the
Contract Documents.

C. No work shall be started until the Contractor has received approved shop
drawings, established material/delivery dates for all equipment, and received
approval of the construction schedule from the Engineer or Owner. The
Contractor shall have sufficient manpower, equipment, and material to complete
the project.

D. No work shall commence without express consent of the Engineer or Owner.

E. If a privately owned staging area is required, no work shall commence until
approval of the facility is obtained in accordance with Village requirements.

2.02  MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION

A. Contractor shall be responsible for mobilization and demobilization of labor,
materials and equipment. Payment for mobilization and demobilization shall be
included in the lump sum price for the Project.

Page 159



66

2.03  COORDINATION

A. Contractor shall cooperate in the coordination of separate activities in a manner
that will provide the least interference with the Owner's operations and other
contractors and utility companies working in the area, and in the interfacing and
connection of the separate elements of the overall project work.

B. If any difficulty or dispute should arise in the accomplishment of the above, the
problem shall be brought immediately to the attention of the Project Manager or
Owner.

2.04  SHUTDOWN OF EXISTING OPERATIONS OR UTILITIES

A. Continuous operation of the Owner's service functions is of critical importance.
The  Contractor's  work  shall  not  result  in  the  interruption  of  sewage,  water,  or
solid waste service to any customers.

B. Minimizing conflicts with the ongoing area-wide commercial activities is of
critical importance. The Contractor's work shall minimize in the interruption of
operations at any facility or business.

C. Connections to existing services or utilities, or other work that requires the
temporary shutdown of any existing operations or utilities shall be planned in
detail with appropriate scheduling of the work and coordinated with the Owner or
Project Manager. Two business days advanced notice shall be given in order that
the Owner or Project Manager may witness the shutdown, tie-in, and startup. The
temporary shutdown must be approved by the Owner. All tie-in and bypass
operations shall be the responsibility of the Contractor and are considered
incidental to the cost of construction and provided at no additional cost to the
Owner.

D. All materials and equipment (including emergency equipment) necessary to
expedite the tie-in shall be on hand prior to the shutdown of existing services or
utilities.

2.05  OPERATION OF EXISTING SYSTEM PROHIBITED

A. At no time undertake to close off any utility lines or open valves or take any other
action which would affect the operation of existing systems. The Owner’s forces
will operate all valves. Provide at least one business day notice to Owner prior to
any operations.

Page 160



67

PART 3 SITE CONDITIONS

3.01  SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION

A. The Contractor acknowledges satisfaction as to the general nature and location of
the work, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing upon
availability of transportation, availability of labor, water, electric power, roads,
and uncertainties of weather, or similar physical conditions, the character of
equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during the prosecution of the
work,  and  all  other  matters  which  can  in  any  way  affect  the  work  or  the  cost
thereof under this Contract.

B. Failure by the Contractor to become acquainted with the physical conditions and
all the available information will not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for
properly estimating the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work.

3.02  UTILITIES

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for determining and/or confirming, at his cost,
the locations of all utilities within the project area, and shall be responsible for
contacting each utility for location and notification prior to commencing work.

B. The Contractor shall contact potentially affected utilities as needed.

C. The Contractor shall contact Sunshine State One Call at 1-800-432-4770 at least 2
working days prior to any excavation and make arrangements for locating all
utilities in the project area.

3.03  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY PROPERTIES AND
SERVICE

A. Where the Contractor's operations could cause damage or inconvenience to
utilities, telephone, television, power, water, or sewer systems, the operations
shall be suspended until all arrangements necessary for the protection of these
utilities and services have been made by the Contractor with the owner of the
utility affected.

B. Notify all utility offices which are affected by the construction operation at least 2
working days in advance. Under no circumstances expose any utility without first
obtaining permission from the appropriate agency. Once permission has been
granted, locate, expose, and provide temporary support for all existing
underground utilities.

Page 161



68

C. The Contractor shall be solely and directly responsible to the Owner and operators
of such properties for any damage, injury, expense, loss, inconvenience, delay,
suits,  actions,  or  claims  of  any  character  brought  because  of  any  injuries  or
damage which may result from the construction operations under this Contract.

D. Neither the Owner nor its officers or agents shall be responsible to the Contractor
for damages as a result of the Contractor's failure to protect utilities encountered
in the work.

E. In the event of interruption to domestic water, sewer, storm drain, or other utility
services as a result of accidental breakage due to construction operations,
promptly notify the proper authority. Cooperate with said authority in restoration
of  service  as  promptly  as  possible  and  bear  all  costs  of  repair.  In  no  case  shall
interruption of any water or utility service be allowed to exist outside working
hours unless prior approval is granted.

F. In the event the Contractor encounters water service lines or sewer laterals that
interfere with trenching, he may, by obtaining prior approval of the property
owner, the Engineer and the Owner, cut the service, dig through, and restore the
service with similar and equal materials at the Contractor's expense.

G. The Contractor shall replace, at his own expense, all existing utilities or structures
removed or damaged during construction, unless otherwise provided for in these
Contract documents or ordered by the Engineer.

3.04  INTERFERING STRUCTURES

A. Take necessary precautions to prevent damage to existing structures whether on
the surface, aboveground, or underground.

B. Protect underground and aboveground existing structures from damage. Where
such existing fences, gates, sheds, buildings, or any other structure must be
removed in order to properly carry out the construction, or are damaged during
construction, restore to their original condition to the satisfaction of the property
owner involved at the Contractor's own expense. Notify the Project Manager of
any damaged underground structure, and make repairs or replacements before
backfilling.

C. Without additional compensation, the Contractor may remove and shall replace in
a condition as good as or better than original, such small miscellaneous structures
as fences, mailboxes, and signposts that interfere with the Contractor's operations.

Page 162



69

PART 4 SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE

4.01  SAFETY AND ACCESS

A. The Contractor shall do all work necessary to protect the general public from
hazards, including, but not limited to, surface irregularities or unramped grade
changes in pedestrian sidewalk or walkway, and trenches or excavations in
roadway. Barricades, lanterns, and proper signs shall be furnished in sufficient
amount to safeguard the public and the work. All barricades and signs shall be
clean and serviceable, in the opinion of the Project Manager.

B. The Contractor shall notify all residences and businesses of planned construction
at  least  5  working  days  prior  to  the  start  of  work  in  the  block  where  they  are
located. Such notices shall be brochures or door-hangers with sufficient
information to describe the extent and duration of the planned work. Notification
activities shall be coordinated with the Village Engineer.

C. Homeowners and business owners shall be provided reasonable access. The
Contractor shall provide temporary sidewalks, bridges or driveway access,
including safe passage over open excavations as required.

4.02  ACCIDENT REPORTS

A. In  addition,  the  Contractor  must  promptly  report  in  writing  to  the  Engineer  all
accidents whatsoever arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the
work  whether  on,  or  adjacent  to,  the  site,  giving  full  details  and  statements  of
witnesses. If death or serious injuries or serious damages are caused, the accident
shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger to the Project Manager.

B. If a claim is made by anyone against the contractor or any subcontractor on
account of any accident, the Contractor shall promptly report the facts in writing
to the Project Manager, giving full details of the claim.

4.03  PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

A. Protect stored materials located adjacent to the proposed work. Notify property
owners affected by the construction at least two business days in advance of the
time construction begins. During construction operations, construct and maintain
such facilities as may be required to provide access by all property owners to their
property. No person shall be cut off from access to his residence or place of
business for a period exceeding 2 hours, unless the Contractor has made special
arrangements with the affected persons.

Page 163



70

B. The Contractor shall identify and isolate his active work zone in such a manner as
to exclude all personnel not employed by him, the Project Manager, and the
Owner.

4.04  FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION

A. The Contractor shall perform all work in a fire-safe manner. He shall supply and
maintain on the site adequate fire-fighting equipment capable of extinguishing
incipient fires. The Contractor shall comply with applicable federal, state, and
local fire-prevention regulations. Where these regulations do not apply, applicable
parts of the National Fire Prevention Standard for Safeguarding Building
Construction Operations (NFPA No. 241) shall be followed.

4.05  ACCESS FOR POLICE, FIRE, AND POSTAL SERVICE

A. Notify the fire department and police department before closing any street or
portion thereof. No closing shall be made without the Owner's approval of MOT
plan. Notify said departments when the streets are again passable for emergency
vehicles. Do not block off emergency vehicle access to consecutive arterial
crossings or dead-end streets, in excess of 300 linear feet, without special written
permission from the fire department. Conduct operations with the least
interference to fire equipment access, and at no time prevent such access.

B. Maintain postal service facilities in accordance with the requirements of the U.S.
Postal Service.

PART 5 PRESERVATION, RESTORATION, AND CLEANUP

5.01  SITE RESTORATION AND CLEANUP

A. At all times during the work, keep the premises clean and orderly, and upon
completion  of  the  work,  repair  all  damage  caused  by  equipment  and  leave  the
project free of rubbish or excess materials of any kind.

B. Stockpile excavated materials in a manner that will cause the least damage to
adjacent lawns, grassed areas, gardens, shrubbery, or fences, regardless of
whether these are on State or Village rights-of-way. Remove all excavated
materials from grassed and planted areas, and leave these surfaces in a condition
equivalent to their original condition.

Page 164



71

5.02  FINISHING OF SITE, BORROW, AND STORAGE AREAS

A. Upon completion of the project, all areas used by the Contractor shall be properly
cleared of all temporary structures, rubbish, and waste materials and properly
graded to drain and blend in with the abutting property. Areas used for the deposit
of  waste  materials  shall  be  finished  to  properly  drain  and  blend  with  the
surrounding terrain. Grassed areas shall be restored as specified.

PART 6 PERMITS

6.01  GENERAL

A. Permits to be Obtained by the Contractor may include, but are not limited to the
following:

1. Local Building permits.
2. Local and State contracting licenses.
3. State utility permit.
4. State/County dewatering permit.

END OF SECTION

Page 165



72

SECTION 01020

ALLOWANCE

PART 1 SCOPE OF WORK

1.01 DEFINITION

A. Included in the contract sum is an allowance account for unforeseen conditions,
potential construction changes and adjustments, if ordered and authorized by the
Village in accordance with the contract documents.

1.02 ALLOWANCE ACCOUNT

A. Monies in the allocation account will be used only with pre-approval in writing by
the Village and issuance of change order.

B. At the closeout of contract, monies remaining in the allowance account will be
credited to the Village by change order.

1.03 SELECTION OF PRODUCTS UNDER ALLOWANCES

A. Engineer's Duties:

1. Consult with the Contractor in consideration of products and supplier or
installers or changes in quantities of Proposal items.

2. Make selection in consultation with the Owner. Obtain Owner's written
decision, designating:

a. Product, model and/or class of materials.
b. Accessories and attachments.
c. Supplier and installer as applicable.
d. Cost to Contractor, delivered to the site or installed, as applicable.
e. Warranties
f. Quantities

3. Transmit Owner's decision to the Contractor.

4. Prepare change orders.

Page 166



73

B. Contractor's Duties:

1. Assist Engineer and Owner in determining qualified suppliers, quantities or
subcontractor.

2. Obtain proposals from a minimum of three (3) suppliers and/or subcontractors
when requested by Engineer.

3. Make appropriate recommendations for consideration of the Engineer.

4. Notify Engineer promptly of:

a. Any reasonable objections Contractor may have against any supplier, or
party under consideration for installation.

b. Any effect on the construction schedule anticipated by selection under
consideration.

1.04 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR PURCHASE,
DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION

A. On notification of selection, execute purchase agreement with designated
suppliers and/or subcontractors.

B. Arrange for and process shop drawings, product data and samples, as required.

C. Make all arrangements for delivery.

D. Upon delivery, promptly inspect products for damage or defects.

E. Submit claims for transportation damage.

F. Install and finish products in compliance with requirements of referenced
specification sections, including restoration.

1.05 ADJUSTMENT OF COSTS

A. Should the net cost be more or less than the specified amount of the allowance,
the contract sum will be adjusted accordingly by change order. Should work be
changed by change order:

Page 167



74

1. The amount of the change order will recognize any changes in handling costs
at the site, equipment, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other
expenses caused by the change order.

2. For products specified under a unit cost in the change order schedule of
values, the unit cost shall apply to the additional quantities actually used.

B. Submit any claims for anticipated additional costs at the site, or other expenses
caused by the selection under the allowance, prior to execution of the work.

C. Failure to submit claims within the designated time will constitute a waiver of
claims for additional costs.

D. At contract closeout, reflect all approved changes in contract amounts in the final
statement of accounting.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used

END OF SECTION

Page 168



75

SECTION 01150

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF THIS SECTION

A. The following explanation of the Measurement and Payment for the Bid Form
items is provided; however, the omission of reference to any item shall not alter
the intent of the Bid Form or relieve the Contractor of the necessity of
constructing a complete project under this Contract.

1.02 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. Measurement of Length: Unless otherwise specified for the particular items
involved, all measurements of distance for items to be paid for on the basis of
length shall be taken horizontally or vertically.

B. Measurement of Area: In the measurement of items paid for on the basis of area
of finished work, the lengths and/or widths to be used in the calculations shall be
the actual dimensions measured along the surface of the completed work within
the neat lines shown or designated. At intersections, the measurement used for
length of side area will be measured from the outside edge of the width allowed
along the main trench.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 BID ITEMS

A. BID ITEM NO. 1 - Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance

Measurement: Work as specified in this section shall consist of work preparatory
to actual construction at the site. It shall include, but not be limited to, movement
of personnel, equipment, supplies, and incidentals to the project site, and for the
establishment of temporary offices, buildings, safety equipment and first aid
supplies, sanitary and other facilities as required by these Specifications and state
and local laws and regulations.  This cost should include the construction of two

Page 169



76

(2) project signs that shall be displayed at approaches to the project area.  The
intent is that the signs will be freestanding.  The sign shall display on both sides
the project name, Village Logo, elected officials, and contact information. The
costs of permits, bonds and any required insurance, and any other preconstruction
expense necessary for the start of the work, excluding the cost of construction
materials, shall be included in this section.  Also included in this section will be
all costs associated with meetings and coordination with the Owner and Engineer
for the purpose of discussing project progress.

Payment: Payment shall be made as a lump sum quantity in accordance with the
following schedule and the contract documents:

Percentage Allowable
Contract Percentage of
Amount Earned Lump Sum Price

5% 25%
10% 50%
25% 75%
50% 100%

The standard retainage will be applied to these allowances.

B. BID ITEM NO. 2 – Maintenance of Traffic

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with Maintenance of
Traffic throughout the duration of the project.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall
include all labor and equipment needed to maintain vehicular and pedestrian
traffic during the replacement of all water meters, repair or replacement of water
service lines, site impacts, and site restoration.  All crosswalks and sidewalks
shall remain open and free of obstructions.  Temporary painting for roadways and
crosswalks shall be maintained throughout the project.  Costs shall include the use
of flagmen.

C. BID ITEM NO. 3 – Mobile Based AMI System Implementation and Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design,
material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile
Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure as specified.

Page 170



77

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall
include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and
install the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all
necessary set-up, start-up, training, and support for a period of one year after
completion and acceptance of the project.

D. BID ITEM NO. 4 – Mobile AMI Analytics Software Implementation and
Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design,
material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the
Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure analytics software as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall
include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and
install the analytics software associated with the Mobile Based Advanced
Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up, training,
and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of the
project.

E. BID ITEM NO. 5 – Water Loss Management System Implementation and
Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design,
material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the Water
Loss Management System as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall
include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and
install a Water Loss Management System associated with the Mobile Based
Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up,
training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of
the project.

F. BID ITEM NO. 6 – Customer Engagement Program Implementation and
Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design,
material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the
Customer Engagement program as specified.

Page 171



78

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall
include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and
install a Customer Engagement program associated with the Mobile Based
Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up,
training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of
the project.

G. BID ITEM NO. 7 through 13 – Furnish and Install 5/8”, 3/4”, 1”, 1 ½”, 2”, 3”
and 4” Solid State Water Meters

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with
installing new water meters in accordance with the unit prices contained in the
proposal.  Contractor shall receive payment for service connections, Bid Items 21
through 23,  on a unit price basis per installed service connection as specified in
accordance with the unit prices contained in this proposal.

Payment: Payment  for  this  work  shall  be  made  at  the  unit  cost  basis  and  shall
include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing
utilities prior to construction, water meter installation, existing water meter
removal, installation of new locking curb stop, fittings, couplings, disposal of
undesirable material, associated site restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection
and bacteriological testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or
replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a
complete water meter installations.  Any item not specified shall be considered
incidental to the work.

H. BID ITEM NO. 14 through 20 – Furnish and Install 5/8”, 3/4”, 1”, 1 ½”, 2”,
3” and 4” Standard Water Meters

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with
rehabilitant/replacing existing mechanical water meters if needed and as directed
by the Village in accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal.
Contractor shall receive payment for service connections if required, Bid Items 21
through 23, on a unit price basis per installed service connection as specified in
accordance with the unit prices contained in this proposal.

Payment: Payment  for  this  work  shall  be  made  at  the  unit  cost  basis  and  shall
include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing
utilities prior to construction, water meter installation, existing water meter
removal, installation of new locking curb stop, fittings, couplings, disposal of
undesirable material, associated site restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection
and bacteriological testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or

Page 172



79

replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a
complete water meter installations.  Any item not specified shall be considered
incidental to the work.

I. BID ITEM NO. 21 through 23 – 1”, 2” and 4” Service Connections

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with
installing water service connections as specified by the Miami-Dade Water and
Sewer specification and details and in accordance with the unit prices contained in
the proposal.    Assume 20’ service connection length.

Payment: Payment  for  this  work  shall  be  made  at  the  unit  cost  basis  and  shall
include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing
utilities prior to construction, water service installation, existing service piping
removal and disposal, water service corporation stops, service piping based on
service connection size, fittings, couplings, and taps, connection to water main
and water meter, clearing, grubbing, excavation and back fill, dewatering,
compaction, disposal of undesirable material, new fill, grading, associated site
restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection and bacteriological testing, pressure
testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing
utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a complete water service
installation.  Any item not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

J. BID ITEM NO. 24 – Meter Box and Lid Replacements

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with
replacing existing meter boxes with new meter boxes and lids as needed in
accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal.

Payment: Payment  for  this  work  shall  be  made  at  the  unit  cost  basis  and  shall
include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing
utilities prior to removal and installation of meter boxes with lids, clearing,
grubbing, excavation and back fill, dewatering, compaction, disposal of
undesirable material, new fill, grading, associated restoration, safety, dust/erosion,
survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing utilities
impacted or damaged during construction for a complete installation.  Any item
not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

Page 173



80

K. BID ITEM NO. 25 – Site Restoration

Measurement: The cost shall include all general construction requirements for
project restoration not included as part of a separate bid item so that all areas
disturbed or damaged during construction shall be restored to conditions existing
prior to the work.

Payment: Payment for the site work shall be made at the lump sum price and
shall include all materials, labor and equipment necessary to perform site
restoration work including grading, planting, sodding, landscape, irrigation,
lighting, striping, signage, fencing, monuments, removal and replacement of
asphalt, sidewalk, driveway, curb and gutter, limerock, base material, clean-up,
and any other work required to restore the project area to its original condition.
Any trench or site restoration costs referenced as part of other bid items should be
included in those bid items accordingly.

Restoration other than or in addition to what is indicated by the plans,
specifications, and defined herein will be considered incidental to the construction
and the costs of this incidental restoration should be included in the cost of
project.

L. BID ITEM NO. 26 – Allowance

Measurement: The cost shall include a fixed amount per the Bid Form.

Payment: Use of the allowance account shall be for unforeseen conditions, for
construction changes and for utility adjustments, if ordered and authorized by the
Village. At the closeout of contract, monies remaining in the allowance account
will be credited to the Owner by change order.

END OF SECTION

Page 174



81

SECTION 01300

SUBMITTALS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

A. This section covers the requirements for submittal procedures as they pertain to:

1. Construction progress schedules

2. Proposed Products list

3. Shop drawings

4. Product data

1.02 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

A. Submittals shall be addressed to:

North Bay Village
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300
North Bay Village FL 33141

B. Identify Project, Contractor, Subcontractor or supplier, pertinent Drawing sheet and
detail number(s), and specification Section number, as appropriate.

C. Drawings and schedules shall be checked and coordinated with the work of all
trades involved, before they are submitted for review by the Engineer and shall bear
the Contractor’s stamp of approval as evidence of such checking and coordination.
Drawings or schedules submitted without this stamp of approval shall be returned
to the Contractor for resubmission.

1.03 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES

A. Submit initial progress schedule in triplicate within 15 days after date established in
the Notice to Proceed for Engineer review.

Page 175



82

B. Revise and resubmit as project conditions require.  Revised schedules shall be
submitted a minimum of two (2) weeks prior to commencement of Work covered
by schedule.

C. An updated project schedule in accordance with this section will be provided with
every application for payment.

1.04 SHOP DRAWINGS

A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawings" shall be
considered to mean, Contractor's drawings plans for material and equipment which
become an integral part of the Project. These drawings shall be complete and
detailed.  Shop Drawings shall consist of fabrication, erection and setting drawings
and schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawings, and wiring and control
diagrams.  Cuts, catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature, and performance and
test data, shall be considered only as supportive to required Shop Drawings as
defined above.

B. Data on materials and equipment include, without limitation, materials and
equipment lists, catalog data sheets, cuts, performance curves, diagrams, materials
of construction and similar descriptive material.  Materials and equipment lists shall
give, for each item thereon, the name and location of the supplier or manufacturer,
trade name, catalog reference, size, finish and all other pertinent data.

1.05 MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATES

A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit manufacturers'
certificate to Engineer for review, in quantities specified for Product Data.

B. Indicate material or Product conforms to or exceeds specified requirements. Submit
supporting reference date, affidavits, and certifications as appropriate.

C. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or Product, but must
be acceptable to Engineer.

1.06 RECORD DOCUMENTS

A. Engineer will review submitted record documents for compliance with
specifications.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

Page 176



83

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

END OF SECTION

Page 177



84

SECTION 01400

QUALITY CONTROL

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

A. This section covers the work as required to provide and/or coordinate:

1. Quality assurance and control of installation

2. References

3. Inspection

4. Manufacturers' field services and reports

1.02 REFERENCES

A. Conform to reference standard by date of current issue on date for receiving bids.

B. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request
clarification from Owner or Engineer before proceeding.

C. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be altered from
the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any reference
document.

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL OF INSTALLATION

A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site
conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.

B. Comply fully with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence.

C. Should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request
clarification from Owner or Engineer before proceeding.

D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except when
more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher
standards or more precise workmanship.

Page 178



85

E. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.

F. Secure Products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to
withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion or disfigurement.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

END OF SECTION

Page 179



86

SECTION 01500

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

A. Temporary Utilities: Electricity, lighting, heat, ventilation, telephone service,
water, and sanitary facilities.

B. Temporary Controls: Enclosures and fencing, protection of the Work, traffic
control, temporary bypass sanitary pumping, and water control.

C. Construction Facilities: Access roads, parking, progress cleaning, and temporary
buildings.

D. Some of the items specified herein are not specifically required for the project.
However, these items shall be provided as required for the convenience of the
Contractor or as required for proper completion of the Work.

1.02 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY (AS APPLICABLE)

A. Provide and pay for power service, as required, from Florida Power and Light
source.

B. Provide temporary electric feeder from electrical service.  Power consumption shall
not disrupt Owner's need for continuous service.

C. Provide separate metering and pay Florida Power and Light for cost of energy used.

D. Provide power outlets for construction operations, with branch wiring and
distribution boxes located as required.  Provide flexible power cords as required.

E. Provide main service disconnect and overcurrent protection at a convenient
location.

F. Permanent convenience receptacles may not be utilized during construction.

1.03 TEMPORARY LIGHTING (AS APPLICABLE)

Page 180



87

A. Provide and maintain 1 watt/sq ft lighting to exterior staging and storage areas after
dark for security purposes.

B. Maintain lighting and provide routine repairs.

1.04 TEMPORARY VENTILATION

A. Ventilate enclosed areas to assist cure of materials, to dissipate humidity, and to
prevent accumulation of dust, fumes, vapors, or gases.

B. Provide ventilation and other equipment and procedures as required to meet OSHA
Confined Spaces Entry Requirements.

1.05 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE (AS APPLICABLE)

A. Provide and maintain suitable quality water service, as required, for construction
operations.

B. All water used must be metered by Owner, but Contractor will not be charged for
the metered water use.

C. Extend branch piping with outlets located so water is available by hoses with
threaded connections.

D. Make arrangements with Owner for obtaining meter.  Owner will also direct
contractor as to where water may be obtained.

1.06 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

A. Provide and maintain required facilities and enclosures. Existing private facilities
shall not be used.

1.07 FENCING

A. Construction:  Commercial grade chain link fence.

B. Provide 6-foot high fence to secure material storage areas.  Security fence shall be
equipped with gates and locks.

1.08 PROTECTION OF INSTALLED WORK

Page 181



88

A. Protect installed Work and provide special protection where specified in individual
specification Sections.

B. Provide temporary and removable protection for installed Products. Control activity
in immediate work area to minimize damage.

C. Prohibit traffic from landscaped areas.

1.09 SECURITY

A. Provide security and facilities to protect Work, and existing facilities, and Owner's
operations from unauthorized entry, vandalism, or theft.

1.10 PROGRESS CLEANING

A. Maintain areas free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. Maintain site in a clean
and orderly condition.

B. Broom and vacuum clean interior areas prior to start of surface finishing and
continue cleaning to eliminate dust.

C. Remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish from sites weekly and dispose of at an
approved site.

1.11 REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND
CONTROLS

A. Remove temporary equipment, facilities, materials, prior to Final Inspection.

B. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary work.

C. Restore existing facilities used during construction to original condition. Restore
permanent facilities used during construction to specified condition.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.
END OF SECTION

Page 182



89

SECTION 01700

CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

A. Contract Close-out Procedures.

B. Final Inspection.

C. Contract Close-out Submittals.

D. Final Application for Payments.

1.02 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

A. When Contractor considers the Work is substantially complete, he shall submit to
the Owner or Engineer:

1. A written notice that the Work, or designated portion thereof, is substantially
complete.

2. A list of items to be completed or corrected.

B. Within a reasonable time after receipt of such notice, the Owner or Engineer will
make an inspection to determine the status of completion.

C. Should the Owner or Engineer determine that the Work is not substantially
complete:

1. The Owner or Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, giving
the reasons therefor.

2. Contractor shall remedy the deficiencies in the Work, and send a second written
notice of substantial completion to the Owner or Engineer.

3. The Owner or Engineer will reinspect the Work.

Page 183



90

D. When the Owner or Engineer finds that the Work is substantially complete, he will:

1. Prepare and deliver to Owner a tentative Certificate of Substantial Completion
with a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment.

2. After consideration of any objections made by the Owner as provided in the
Contract Documents, and when the Owner or Engineer considers the Work
substantially complete, he will execute and deliver to the Owner and the
Contractor a definite Certificate of Substantial Completion with a revised
tentative list of items to be completed or corrected.

1.03 FINAL INSPECTION

A. When Contractor considers the Work is complete, he shall submit written
certification that:

1. Contract Documents have been reviewed.

2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.

3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents.

4. Equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of the Owner's
representative and are operational.

5. Work is completed and ready for final inspection.

B. The Owner or Engineer will make an inspection to verify the status of completion
with reasonable promptness after receipt of such certification.

C. Should the Owner or Engineer consider that the Work is incomplete or defective:

1. The Owner or Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, listing
the incomplete or defective work.

2. Contractor shall take immediate steps to remedy the stated deficiencies, and
send a second written certification to the Owner or Engineer that the Work is
complete.

3. The Owner or Engineer will reinspect the Work.

Page 184



91

D. When the Owner or Engineer finds that the Work is acceptable under the Contract
Documents, he shall request the Contractor to make closet submittals

1.04 RE-INSPECTION FEES

A. Should the Owner or Engineer perform re-inspections due to failure of the Work to
comply with the claims of status of completion made by the Contractor:

1. Owner will compensate the engineer for such additional services.

2. Owner will deduct the amount of such compensation from the final payment to
the Contractor.

1.05 CONTRACTOR'S CLOSE-OUT SUBMITTALS TO OWNER OR
ENGINEER

A. Evidence of compliance with requirements of governing authorities.

B. Shall be in accordance with Section 01720 - Project Record Documents.

C. Spare Parts and Maintenance Materials:  To requirements of the individual
Specification Sections, as applicable.

D. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens:  To requirements of Contract
Documents, Supplementary Conditions, and Supplementary Conditions
(Construction) Exhibit WWFS-04Li.

E. Certificate of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations, as applicable.

F. Consent of Surety for final payment.

G. Final building permit inspection documents and Certificate of Occupancy as
applicable.

1.06 FINAL ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

A. Submit a final statement of accounting to the Owner or Engineer.

B. Statement shall reflect all adjustments to the contract Sum:

1. The original Contract Sum.

Page 185



92

2. Additions and deductions resulting from:

a. Previous Change Orders.
b. Allowances.
c. Unit Prices.
d. Deductions for uncorrected Work.
e. Penalties and Bonuses.
f. Deductions for liquidated damages.
g. Deductions for re-inspection payments.
h. As-Built Quantities.
i. Other adjustments.

3. Total Contract Sum, as adjusted.

4. Previous payments.

5. Sum remaining due.

1.07 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

A. Contractor shall submit the final Application for Payment in accordance with
procedures and requirements stated in the Conditions of the Contract.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

END OF SECTION

Page 186



93

SECTION 01720

PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

A. Maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of:

1. Drawings.

2. Specifications.

3. Addenda.

4. Change Orders and other Modifications to the Contract.

5. Reviewed Shop Drawings.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Section 01300 – Submittals

B. Section 01700 – Contact Closeout

1.03 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS

A. Store documents in approved location apart from documents used for
construction.

B. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible condition and in good order.  Do not
use record documents for construction purposes.

C. Make documents available at all times for inspection by Owner and Engineer.

1.04 MARKING DEVICES

A. Provide felt tip marking pens for recording information in a color code.

1.05 RECORDING

A. Label each document "RECORD DRAWINGS" in neat large printed letters.

Page 187



94

B. Record information currently with construction progress.

1. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.

C. Drawings; Legibly mark to record actual construction:

1. Field changes of dimension and detail.

2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.

3. Details not on original Contract Drawings.

D. Specifications and Addenda; Legibly mark each Section to record:

1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number, and supplier of each item
actually installed.

2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 SUBMITTAL

A. During the entire construction operation, the Contractor shall maintain records of
all deviations from the Drawings and Specifications and shall prepare there from
"Record Drawings” showing correctly and accurately all changes and deviations
from the work made during construction to reflect the work as it was actually
constructed. Each month with the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or as
otherwise agreed, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a current listing and
description of each change incorporated into the work since the preceding
submittal. These drawings shall conform to recognized standards of drafting, shall
be neat and legible, and signed and sealed by a Florida Registered Professional
Land Surveyor.

Page 188



95

B. At Contract Close-out, the Contractor is required to provide one (1) set of
reproducible "Record Drawings" to the Engineer for the Owner. These drawings
shall conform to recognized standards of drafting, shall be neat and legible, and
signed and sealed by a Florida Registered Professional Land Surveyor.

C. Accompany “Record Drawing” submittal with transmittal letter in duplicate,
containing:

1. Date.
2. Project title and number.
3. Contractor's name and address.
4. Title and number of each record document.
5. Signature of Contractor or his authorized representative.

END OF SECTION

Page 189



96

SECTION 02064

MODIFICATIONS AND REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING
STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall furnish all supervised labor, materials, equipment, and
incidentals required to modify, rehabilitate, alter and/or convert existing structures
as required.

B. Replacement includes but is not limited to the following:

1. Removal of existing equipment and appurtenances as specified.

2. Installation of proposed utilities and structures.

1.02 NOTICES

A. The Contractor shall inform the Owner and the Engineer of the date of
commencement and anticipated completion of the work one week before actual
work beings. Sewage service must be maintained during Replacement work. The
Contractor shall coordinate all work and scheduling with the Owner.

1.03 SAFETY

A. The Contractor shall conform to all work safety requirements of pertinent
regulatory agencies and shall secure the site for working condition in compliance
with the same. The Contractor shall erect such signs and other devices as are
necessary for the safety of the work site. The Contractor shall perform all work in
accordance with the applicable OSHA standards. Emphasis is placed upon the
requirements for entering confined spaces, scaffolding, and the handling and
storage of chemicals.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

Page 190



97

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

A. The Contractor shall dismantle and remove all existing equipment, piping, and
other appurtenances required for the completion of the Work. Where called for or
required, the Contractor shall cut existing pipelines for the purpose of making
connections thereto.

B. No existing structure, equipment, or appurtenances shall be shifted, cut, removed,
or otherwise altered except as indicated in the Contract Documents or with the
express approval of and to the extent approved by the Engineer.

C. All cutting of existing concrete or other material which requires bonding to new
work shall be done in a manner to meet the requirements of the respective section
of these Specifications covering the new work. If the work is not covered, the
cutting shall be carried on in the manner and to the extent directed by the
Engineer.

D. The surfaces of any seals which are visible in the completed work shall be made
to match as nearly as possible the adjacent surfaces.

E. Where necessary or required for the purpose of making connections, the
Contractor shall cut existing pipelines in a manner to provide an approved,
restrained, joint. Where required, the Contractor shall weld beads, flanges, or
provide Dresser couplings, as required.

F. The Contractor shall supply, install and maintain all flumes, hoses, piping, plugs,
bulkheads and other related items used to divert or hold back the flow of
wastewater, water, or other liquids, as required in the performance of the work
under this Contract.

3.02 CONNECTING TO EXISTING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT

A. The Contractor shall verify exact location, material, alignment, joint, etc., of
existing piping and equipment prior to making the connections called out in the
Drawings. The verifications shall be performed with adequate time to correct any
potential alignment or other problems prior to the actual time of connection.

Page 191



98

3.03 REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PIPING AND APPURTENANCES

A. Removal of piping, anchors and accessories shall be done in a manner that will
cause as little damage to the structure as possible. Pipes and anchors shall be
drilled or sawed out with as little hammering as possible. Care shall be made to
preserve existing reinforcement as much as possible and not structurally damage
the structure. Before grouting of new piping, anchors or appurtenances into place,
the concrete surfaces shall be cleaned of all loose material curing compounds,
grease oil, standing water. The cleaned surface shall receive a coating of epoxy
bonding/grouting adhesive before application of grout.

3.04 FINAL ACCEPTANCE

A. After the specified work has been completed, the structures shall be visually
inspected and tested by the Contractor (as required and specified) in the presence
of the Engineer and found to be acceptable.

END OF SECTION

Page 192



99

SECTION 02800

RESTORATION OF SURFACE FEATURES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. The work includes restoration of driveways, lawn areas, trees and plants, and any
other existing areas affected by the utility replacement, rehabilitation, or
relocation work. This section includes furnishing equipment, labor and materials,
and performing all necessary and incidental operations to perform the required
work.

B. All areas disturbed or damaged during construction shall be restored to conditions
existing prior to the work.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Section 01000 – General Requirements

1.04 SUBMITTALS

A.  Certification of quality by producer shall be delivered to Engineer ten days prior
to use.

B. Submit sod certification for grass species and location of sod source.

C. Submit mix design for asphaltic concrete.

D. Submit data on joint filter, concrete admixtures, and curing compound.

E. Submit mix design for Portland cement concrete.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 SOD

A.  The sod used for restoration shall match the existing in the area.  In areas without
well-established sod, Argentine Bahia sod shall be used.

Page 193



100

B.  The sod shall be sufficiently thick to secure a dense stand of live grass, with a
minimum thickness of two inches. The sod shall be live, fresh, and uninjured at
the time of planting. It shall be planted as soon as possible after being dug and
shall be shaded and kept moist from the time it is dug until it is planted. The sod
shall be approved by the Engineer before placing.

C. The sod shall be a minimum age of 18 months, with root development that will
support its own weight without tearing when suspended vertically by holding the
upper two corners.

2.02 PLANTS

A. Existing damaged plants shall be replaced by plants of equal type, quality and size
whenever possible. All new plants shall be sound, healthy, vigorous, and free
from defects, decay, disfigurement, bark abrasions, plant diseases, insects, and
insect eggs/larvae. The new plants shall be approved by the Engineer before
placing.

B.  Existing plants may be removed, preserved, and replaced at the Contractor's
option. Plants shall be handled by an approved nursery.

2.03 COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER

A.  Commercial fertilizers shall comply with the state fertilizer laws.

B.  The numeral designations for fertilizer indicate the minimum percentages
respectively of (1) total nitrogen, (2) available phosphoric acid, and (3) water
soluble potash contained in the fertilizer.

C.  The chemical designation of the fertilizer shall be 12-8-8. At least 50 percent of
the phosphoric acid shall be from normal super phosphate or an equivalent source
that will provide a minimum of two units of sulfur. The amount of sulfur shall be
indicated on the quantitative analysis card attached to each bag or other container.

2.04 WATER

A.  The water used in the grassing operations may be obtained from any approved
spring, pond, lake, stream, or municipal water system. The water shall be free of
excess and harmful chemicals, acids, alkalies, or any substance that might be
harmful to plant growth or disruptive to traffic. Salt water shall not be used.

Page 194



101

2.05 ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVING

A. Asphaltic concrete for surface and base course applications shall be as specified in
Section 331 of the FDOT Standard Specifications.

B. Primer:  In accordance with FDOT Section 300, Prime and Tack Coats of Basis
Courses.

C. Tack Coat:  In accordance with FDOT Section 300.

D. Perform work in accordance with FDOT Section 300.

E. Pavement markings shall be replaced in their original location, color, and material
where disturbed.

F. All equipment associated with the operations of pavement placement and related
work shall be entirely suitable for the applicable operations performed and shall
be maintained in good condition.

2.06 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVING AND SIDEWALKS

A. Portland cement concrete used in the performance of this concrete shall be Type I
or Type II with a minimum 28-day compressive strength of 3,000 psi and shall
conform to the requirements of Section 345 of the FDOT Standard Specifications.

B. Form materials shall conform to ACI 301.

C. Joint filter material shall be per FDOT Section 932.

D. Reinforcement shall be welded steel and wire fabric: Deformed type, A497.

E. Concrete materials shall be in accordance with FDOT Section 345 and related
sections referenced under Section 345.

F. Curing compound shall be in accordance with FDOT Section 350.

G. Pavement markings shall be replaced in their original location, color, and material
where disturbed.

H. All equipment associated with the operations of pavement placement and related
work shall be entirely suitable for the applicable operations performed and shall
be maintained in good condition.

Page 195



102

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 LANDSCAPING RESTORATION

A.  Any lawn area affected by the required work shall be restored to a condition equal
to or better than the conditions existing before the work.

B. Where required plants shall be adequately balled with firm natural balls of soil,
sized as set forth in "Grades and Standards."  Balls shall be firmly wrapped with
burlap or equally approved strong cloth. No balled plant will be planted if the ball
is cracked or broken before or during the process of planting.

3.02 SOD PLACEMENT

A.  The areas over which the sod is to be placed shall be scarified or loosened to
suitable depth. On areas where the soil is sufficiently loose, particularly on
shoulders and fill slopes, the Engineer may, at his discretion, authorize the
elimination of the ground preparation.

B.  Contractor shall, at his expense, maintain the planted areas in a satisfactory
condition until final acceptance of the project. Such maintenance shall include
watering, filling, leveling, and repairing of any washed or eroded areas as
necessary.

3.03 PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

A.  Asphalt pavement shall be removed by saw cutting on a straight line with edges as
vertical as possible. Concrete pavement or asphalt surfaced concrete shall be
removed by cutting with a concrete saw in as straight a line and as vertically as
possible.

B.  When placing the aggregate base course:

1. Correct irregularities in substrate gradient and elevation by scarifying,
reshaping, and recompacting.

2. Place aggregate in maximum six inch layers and compact to 98%
AASHTO T180.

3. Add small quantities of fine aggregate as appropriate to assist compaction.

Page 196



103

4. Add water to assist compaction.  If excess water is apparent, remove
aggregate and aerate to reduce moisture content.

5. Use mechanical tamping equipment in areas inaccessible to compaction
equipment.

6. The following tolerances for the aggregate base course shall be
maintained.

a. Flatness: maximum variation of 1/4 inch measured with 10 foot
(3m) straight edge.

b. Scheduled compacted thickness: within 1/4 inch.

C. When placing asphaltic concrete paving:

1. Verify that compacted granular base is dry and ready to support paving
and imposed loads.

2. Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct.

3. Apply primer in accordance with FDOT Section 300.

4. Apply tack coat in accordance with FDOT Section 300.

5. Install Work in accordance with FDOT standards.

6. Place asphalt within 24 hours of applying primer or tack coat.

7. Compact pavement by rolling to specified density.  Do not displace or
extrude pavement from position.  Hand compact in areas inaccessible to
rolling equipment.

8. Perform rolling with consecutive passes to achieve even and smooth finish
without roller marks.

9. All existing pavement edges shall be saw cut prior to placing new abutting
asphalt pavement.

10. The following tolerances for the asphaltic concrete paving shall be
maintained.

Page 197



104

a) Flatness: maximum variation of 1/4 inch measured with 10 foot
(3m) straight edge.

b) Scheduled compacted thickness:  within 1/4 inch.

c) Variation from true elevation:  within 1/4 inch.

D. When placing Portland cement concrete paving and sidewalks:

1. Verify compacted subgrade is acceptable and ready to support paving and
imposed loads.

2. Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct.

3. Prepare subbase in accordance with FDOT Section 350 Compact
Subgrade to 100% maximum density AASHTO T-99.

4. Moisten subgrade to minimize absorption of water from fresh concrete.

5. Notify Engineer at least 24 hours prior to commencement of concrete
operations.

6. Place and secure forms to correct locations, dimension, profile, and
gradient.

7. Place joint filler vertical in position, in straight lines.  Secure to formwork
during concrete placement.

8. Place reinforcement at bottom of slabs-on-grade, 2" clear.

9. Place concrete in accordance with FDOT Section 350.

10. Place joint filler between paving components and building or other
appurtenances.

12. Sidewalk paving:  Broom finished with even, dustless surface.

13. Immediately after placement, protect pavement from premature drying,
excessive hot or cold temperatures, and mechanical injury.

Page 198



105

3.04 CURB REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

A. Curb removal and replacement required in the construction of this work shall be
done by the Contractor. Reasonable care shall be exercised in removing the curb,
and the Contractor shall either stockpile or dispose of this material as directed by
the Engineer. Curb shall be replaced of like material in a manner and condition
equal to or better than that existing at the time of removal. Materials and methods
of replacing state highway sidewalks or curbs shall conform to the FDOT
Standard Specifications.

3.05 CONCRETE SIDEWALK

A. Concrete sidewalk shall be removed by saw cutting on a straight line with edges
as vertical as possible. The new sidewalk segments shall match the existing
sidewalk as to width, thickness, and elevation and have a medium broom finish.

B. Expansion joints between the sidewalk and the curb or driveway or at fixed
objects and sidewalk intersections shall be 1/2-inch joints formed with a
preformed joint filler.
Not Used.

END OF SECTION

Page 199



106

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Appendix A

Mobile Based AMI System Specifications:

1 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................ 108

1.1 OVERVIEW ......................................................................................................... 108

1.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS ............................................................................. 109

2 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS....................................................................... 110

2.1 WATER ENDPOINTS ........................................................................................ 110

2.2 RADIO FREQUENCIES ..................................................................................... 111

2.3 METER COMPATIBILITY ............................................................................... 112

2.4 RETROFIT HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS  ................................................. 112

2.5 APPLICATION SOFTWARE FOR ROUTE PROCESSING ........................... 112

2.6 HANDHELD COMPUTER AND RELATED HARDWARE ............................ 113

2.7 DRIVE-BY MOBILE COLLECTION SYSTEM ............................................... 115

2.8 ANALYTICS SOFTWARE ................................................................................. 116

2.9 CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT ........................................................................... 117

2.10 WATER LOSS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ...................................................... 117

3 SCOPE OF WORK .............................................................................................. 118

3.1 EXPERIENCED PROJECT MANAGEMENT ................................................. 118

3.2 SYSTEM CONFIGURATION ............................................................................ 119

3.3 SYSTEM DESIGN ............................................................................................... 119

Page 200



107

3.4 CONFIGURATION AND SET UP ..................................................................... 119

3.5 INSTALLATION ................................................................................................. 119

3.6 TRAINING ........................................................................................................... 121

4 MADE IN AMERICA .......................................................................................... 122

5 WATER METERS ............................................................................................... 122

6 SOLID STATE RESIDENTIAL WATER METERS ......................................... 123

7 SOLID STATE COMMERCIAL WATER METERS ....................................... 125

Page 201



108

1 Introduction

1.1 Overview

North Bay Village is hereby requesting proposals for a Mobile Based Advanced Metering
Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and
cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village’s unaccounted for and non-revenue
water. The Village also seeks to conduct advanced data analysis through this system
based upon the data it provides.
This invitation to bid (ITB) requests a response for purchase of the following:

 Radio endpoints to encode, store, and transmit register data, interval data, leak data and
tamper data.

 A Mobile Based AMI reading system (Flexible collection of data, using handhelds,
mobile and fixed collection systems in tandem or migrating from one system to another
without costly equipment change-outs) to collect register data, interval data, tamper data
and reliably process this data, and pass this data to the customer information system
(CIS) or Analytics software.

 A Water Loss Management system that values a solution that supports water conservation
programs for both the utility and its customers.

 Replacement of residential water meters that support either standard mechanical
measuring elements or non-moving part “solid state meters” that can give added benefit
and support to the Mobile AMI system.

 An endpoint programming system with the capability to initialize endpoints upon
installation and pass pertinent installation data to the system.

 A solution that supports conservation through meter right-sizing without complicated IT
support.

 A user interface for all value-added functionality which is simple to use, ubiquitous in
nature, and allows access from all appropriate departments.

 Customer support services, including: assistance with software operation; troubleshooting
and reconciling failed devices; network growth and the addition of new devices; training
needs; recurrent software upgrades; and other activities to sustain proper operation of the
system.

 A system with flexible customer engagement options, data presentment through PC and
smart phones.

 A system with user-friendly data display so that customer service representatives can
provide clear and accurate information to customer who call with usage questions or
billing concerns.

Page 202



109

 A system that provides multiple, flexible reading options for all endpoints.
 Application software and licenses
 Experienced and Local professional services for installation and training
 Ongoing hardware and software maintenance and support

Any systems and services proposed must cover the meters in use at North Bay Village
and must be compatible with standard communication protocols to cover other meters
and/or service types, as well as other applications in the future.

North Bay Village seeks to acquire a meter reading system that meets the following
objectives:

 Meter reading and meter data collection in the most safe and cost-effective manner
possible

 Data collection using mobile based reading processes.
 The System must be capable functioning as a “Hybrid System” for both mobile base and

fixed based reading. This ITB does not include the installation of a fixed based
network at this time.

 Manual entry of meter readings and other meter data using the computer keyboard
 Collection of meter readings, tamper data and up to 40 days of daily and hourly interval

data from water meters via handheld, drive-by radio or fixed base.
 Ability to perform remote disconnect and reconnect of water service via handheld, drive-

by, or fixed based radio incorporated into meter reading routes
 Ability to collect acoustic water leak sensor data via handheld, drive-by or fixed based

radio incorporated into meter reading routes
 Ability to collect data from endpoints where the data is in an encrypted format
 Ability to migrate from walk-by or drive-by data collection to advanced meter

capabilities using a networked system using the same meters and modules
 Ability to integrate readings from a network with the mobile system allowing for: mobile

to fixed network migration, contingency reading of meters under the network, and a
single interface to the billing system for all meter readings

 Provide in-home leak detection flags by monitoring minimum usage to reduce lost water
and avoid high water bills for improved customer service.

 Enhance service to our customers with ability to conduct timelier bill complaint
investigation and resolution using detailed data collected by the mobile AMI system that
can be used by the customer support team as well as shared directly with the customer.

1.2 General Instructions

Page 203



110

1.2.1 This ITB outlines the requirements for a Mobile Based AMI system to be purchased and
owned by North Bay Village.

1.2.2 The system shall be comprised of all new equipment. Components shall be produced by
established manufacturers.  Bidder supplying proposal must provide local service and
provide documentation that bidder has been in business for more10 years.

1.2.3 Bidder will provide 3 references of projects in Southeast Florida. References shall
include the name and phone number of the Utility contact.

1.2.4 Bidder to document as part of their bid any areas of non-compliance with the
system specifications.  Areas of non-compliance may result in rejection of a bid.

2 Technical Requirements
The bidder’s system shall meet the following technical requirements:

2.1 Water Endpoints

2.1.1 The endpoint must be capable of operating in harsh environments. As a minimum, the
endpoint must function accurately and not be damaged over an operating temperature
range of -40 to +70 degrees Celsius.

2.1.2 The endpoint must withstand submersion in one (1) meter of water for a minimum of 30
minutes in accordance with IPx7 testing, per IEC 529 (EN 60529).

2.1.3 The endpoint must be designed to last in the field without need for servicing for a
minimum of 20 years.

2.1.4 Battery operated endpoints must have a battery design life of 20 years with
engineering data to support the claim.

2.1.5 The bidder’s solution must provide the same functionality for both indoor water meters
and those located in pit settings. Endpoints proposed for pit settings must be able to
withstand the harsh pit environment and have no exposed electrical connections.

2.1.6 The endpoint must be factory installable at the meter manufacturer.
2.1.7 The endpoint in pit setting must offer an in-line connector that enables removal of the

meter for periodic testing while allowing the endpoint to stay in the field. Connector must
be a proven device with three 3 or more years of use in the field.

2.1.8 The endpoint must utilize an accurate and reliable encoding technology to capture
readings.

2.1.9 The endpoint must be capable of detecting and reporting potential theft. At a minimum,
the endpoint must report cut cable tampers, register communication errors, and
reprogramming attempts.

2.1.10 The system must be capable of detecting and reporting reverse flow events.

Page 204



111

2.1.11 The endpoint must be capable of detecting and reporting metered leak events.
2.1.12 The system shall allow the addition of meter modules at any time without the need for

system reconfiguration.

2.1.13 The endpoint shall have the option of having a remote antenna for exceptionally
unfriendly RF environments where standard mobile read mode is not sufficient for
satisfactory reading performance.

2.1.14 The endpoint should have a second port to connect an acoustic leak sensor, telemetry
device or automatic shut off valve

2.1.15 Bidder must have sold a minimum of ten million radio-frequency based endpoints to the
water utility market to assure familiarity with the water market.

2.1.16 The endpoint must be able to connect to pulse accumulating or absolute encoder-type
registers.

2.1.17 Endpoints capable of auto-configuring themselves when connected to encoded registers
are preferable over endpoints that require programming after being connected to an
encoded register.

2.1.18 Endpoints shall be capable of reading the water meter on top of the hour every hour and
storing a minimum of 40 days of readings. The endpoint shall be capable of transmitting
any or all of the readings via radio commands to avoid having to physically visit the
endpoint site.

2.1.19 The endpoint shall be capable of being read by a Mobile Reading System as well as by a
Fixed Network System. If different operating modes are required, the endpoint shall be
capable of switching from one mode to the other without the need of replacing any
equipment or visiting each meter box.  When in Fixed Network mode (future application)
the endpoint shall still be capable of being read by a Mobile System for contingency
readings.

2.1.20 The endpoint should support remote shut-off.
2.1.21 As part of North Bay Village’s commitment to system integrity and conservation, North

Bay Village requires the ability to meter right-size. One-minute resolution is preferred.

2.1.22 Endpoint should have secure data communications.

2.2 Radio Frequencies

2.2.1 North Bay Village is seeking a solution with low power and high-throughput data
handling characteristics.

2.2.2 The endpoint can operate in the licensed or non-licensed ISM band according to the rules
and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and Industry Canada
(IC).

Page 205



112

2.3 Meter Compatibility

2.3.1 Bidder must be compatible with multiple meter bidders to allow for complete freedom of
meter choice.

2.4 Retrofit Hardware Requirements

2.4.1 Bidder must be capable of performing retrofit installations of endpoints in the field as
needed.

2.5 Application Software for Route Processing

2.5.1 Application Architecture
2.5.1.1 The application software must be a multi-tier client-server application based on the

Microsoft’s .NET development environment.

2.5.1.2 The application software database management system must support Microsoft® SQL
Server 2012 or Oracle® 11g.

2.5.1.3 The application software server operating system must support Windows Server 2012.

2.5.1.4 The application software client operating system must support Windows 7 and
Windows 8.

2.5.1.5 The application software must support the ability to horizontally scale to support
potential utility growth without installing multiple instances of the software.

2.5.1.6 The application software must support the ability to operate in a virtual environment
using the VMWare platform.

2.5.1.7 The application software must support wired and wireless communications to handhelds
and mobile collectors.

2.5.2 System Configuration
2.5.2.1 The application software must provide the ability to configure lists of codes and

translations for the various meter reading and route processing functions.

2.5.2.2 The application software must provide the ability to configure various business process
rules.

2.5.2.3 The application software must provide the ability to integrate user defined scripts, batch
files and programs that can then be accessed and executed by application users.

2.5.2.4 The application software must provide the ability to configure the main display of the
handheld device using drag and drop mechanisms.

2.5.2.5 The application software must provide the ability to install and manage multiple
versions of handheld software components.

Page 206



113

2.5.2.6 The application software must automatically update software on handheld devices based
on software components assigned to specific handhelds or groups of handhelds by a
system administrator.

2.5.3 Security
2.5.3.1 The application software must provide the ability to configure organizational hierarchy

of the utility and assign routes, employees and collection devices to groups in the
hierarchy

2.5.3.2 The application software must provide the ability to control access to groups of the
organizational hierarchy and the routes, employees and collection devices within those
groups for each employee on the system.

2.5.3.3 The application software must provide the ability to integrate users and authentication
with LDAP compliant systems including Windows Active Directory.

2.5.3.4 The application software must provide the ability to store and manage user names and
passwords for application users and handheld users

2.5.3.5 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to
define the minimum length of user passwords.

2.5.3.6 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to
define the duration of time before passwords expire.

2.5.3.7 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to
define the maximum amount of failed log in attempts by a user before the user is locked
out.

2.5.3.8 The application software must provide the ability to view a history of successful logins
and failed login attempts.

2.5.4 Drive-by Computer Interface
2.5.4.1. The proposed system must provide for complete interface to the drive-by data collection

device.  Route unloading and loading must be provided either by manual operation or
by automatic loading with pre-assigned reading activity.

2.5.4.2. Transfer of route data shall be allowed through the use of external compact flash media
including USB drives or via a direct transfer over wired or wireless network connection.

2.5.4.3. The application server software must have the ability to automatically post uploaded
route files from the mobile computer.

2.6 Handheld Computer and Related Hardware

2.6.1 Collection Characteristics and Memory
2.6.1.1 Memory for application and data used in the data capture devices must be secure data

technology, a non-volatile memory that improves data integrity and security.

Page 207



114

2.6.1.2 The handheld computer must have the capability to store all meter reading data
collection information—including routes—on a removable, user accessible Secure Data
(SD) Compact Flash (CF) card. This removable media should be able to be copied to an
alternate handheld in the event of a handheld failure to retain and restore the meter
reading data.

2.6.1.3 The device must have persistent memory storage of system configuration and user
setting to prevent having to reload them after a system reset or the main battery gets
completely discharged.

2.6.2 Keyboard
2.6.2.1 The device must have an easy-to-use data input system. The keyboard must provide the

following:

 Environmental protection without the need for special covers or cases.
 Alphanumeric data entry without need for a Shift key.
 Dedicated New Service and/or Meter keys.
 A dedicated Change Meter Information key.
 A keyboard legend that facilitates the use of the application indicating software

shortcuts or speed keys.
 Large numeric and Enter keys to support use with gloved hands.
 Keyboard and key legends that are backlit for use in low-light settings.
 Keyboard keys must give the user a tactile feedback.

2.6.3 Display and Physical Characteristics
2.6.3.1 The devices must use color liquid crystal display (LCD) technology with a minimum of

16 bits of resolution for applications that require a graphical user interface (GUI).

2.6.3.2 The display must be backlit and be readable in outdoor applications.
2.6.3.3 A touch-screen display shall be standard with every system. It needs to be pressure-

sensitive and activated by the finger or a passive stylus.

2.6.3.4 The display must support the use of a protective transparent film without negatively
affecting its usability or readability.

2.6.3.5 All handheld devices must be equipped with:

 Hot swappable, field replaceable and rechargeable batteries
 Battery capacity indicator with at least 4 levels
 A battery charging system that completely charges the battery pack within 4 hours

Page 208



115

 The handheld computer must provide data security in the event of loss of power from
the main battery supply. This protection is required even if the main battery supply is
removed while the handheld computer is turned on for a minimum of 24 hours.

 Battery must utilize smart lithium-ion technology with a minimum capacity of 2500
mAH.

 The device must be chargeable outside of the communications cradle, including in a
utility vehicle.

2.6.4 Processing
2.6.4.1 The system shall support a minimum processor running at least 800 MHz

2.6.4.2 The system must be able to run at a minimum Microsoft® Windows CE® 5.0
Professional.

2.6.5 Communications
2.6.5.1 The handheld must have the capability to perform its functions via radio with no wire

connections required to the meter or meter module.

2.6.5.2 All radio components must be fully integrated into the handheld computer.

2.6.5.3 Should North Bay Village choose to purchase a non-radio version of the handheld; it
must be feasible to upgrade these units in the future to support wirelessly reading
meters.

2.6.5.4 The handheld must be IP-addressable and must communicate via Ethernet, USB, and
serial port connections.

2.6.5.5 The system shall have, as an option, an internal GPS radio to capture latitude and
longitude coordinates.

2.7 Drive-by Mobile Collection System

2.7.1. The drive-by system must be capable of operating inside of any utility vehicle in harsh
environments.

2.7.2. The drive-by system must be easily installed into new or existing utility vehicles.

2.7.3. The drive-by system must provide the ability collect meter readings, tamper data and up
to 40 days of daily and hourly interval data from water meters via handheld or drive-by
radio.

2.7.4. The drive-by system must provide the ability to perform remote disconnect and
reconnect of water service via handheld or drive-by radio incorporated into meter
reading routes. The commands must be secured using industry standard encryption and
authentication protocols.

2.7.5. The drive-by system must provide the ability to collect acoustic water leak sensor data
via handheld or drive-by radio incorporated into meter reading routes.

Page 209



116

2.7.6. The drive-by system must provide diagnostics capability to allow troubleshooting in the
field.

2.7.7. The drive-by system must distinguish endpoints to be read based on priority via colored
symbology on the mapping application.

2.7.8. The drive-by system must provide a mapping application, including GPS, that allows
the meter reader to visually determine which meters have been read and those that
remain to be read via colored symbology.

2.7.9. The drive-by system mapping application must provide the meter reader the flexibility
to see only those meters that have not been read.

2.7.10. The drive-by system mapping application must provide the meter reader the ability to
view geographically where the vehicle is in relation to the end points being read.

2.7.11. The drive-by system application must include functionality to calculate latitude and
longitude GPS data for mapping purposes from address locations provided by the
utility.

2.7.12. The drive-by system must provide the ability to filter out interference that may be
interpreted as meter reads.

2.7.13. The drive-by system must have 80 channels of read capability.

2.7.14. The drive-by system must be able to migrate from handheld to drive-by and to fixed
network without changing the endpoint.

2.8 Analytics Software

2.8.1. North Bay Village requires that our existing Tyler Technologies billing and customer
information software be usable with the Mobile Based AMI system. As a minimum, a
utility employee will see the mobile AMI data and be able to accomplish daily activities
such as:

 Reconciling bill complaints
 Recognizing possible leaks
 Creating new bills for move-out
 Identifying usage in unoccupied locations

2.8.2. North Bay Village billing department employees and customer service representative
need accurate, up-to-date data about individual customers. North Bay Village Manager
needs accurate, complete information about routes, groups of customers, and the system
as a whole.

2.8.3. North Bay Village requires proof of system performance with software that tracks system
performance and reports it to North Bay Village employees.

Page 210



117

2.8.4. As part of our commitment to system integrity and accuracy, North Bay Village requires
the ability to identify tampers such as usage on an inactive meter or no usage on an active
meter.

2.8.5. As part of our commitment to system integrity and conservation, North Bay Village
requires the ability to conduct district metering analysis.

2.8.6. North Bay Village requires that Interval data be accessible in multiple views such as:
Hourly, Daily, Weekly, as well as current billing period, any of the above compared to a
previous period, filtered by week, weekend, holidays, etc.

2.8.7. North Bay Village requires the ability to schedule reports to be run and e-mailed to
customers.

2.8.8. North Bay Village requires that the software have the ability to check for reading
anomalies (high/low) and report them.

2.8.9.  North Bay Village requires leak detection capabilities.

2.9 Consumer Engagement

2.9.1. North Bay Village requires that vendor’s consumer engagement interface provide near
real-time data for end-customer use.

2.9.2. North Bay Village require that the consumer engagement data be readable by end-
customers on a variety of platforms such as a PC and smartphone.

2.9.3. North Bay Village requires interactive budgeting capabilities for end-use customers.
2.9.4. North Bay Village requires that CIS customers have available multi-site, multi-resource

usage data that provide the opportunity to analyze, date limit, and email reports.

2.10 Water Loss Management System

2.10.1. North Bay Village requires a permanent monitoring and proprietary (non-third party)
integrated distribution level leak detection system.

2.10.2. North Bay Village requires leak detection system software that prioritizes leaks by
severity.

2.10.3. North Bay Village requires that the leak detection system be hosted and accessible in the
field.

2.10.4. North Bay Village requires a leak management system that can record history of previous
leaks/ repairs at sensor locations.

2.10.5. North Bay Village requires the leak detection sensors to have a minimum of 10-year
battery life and must be completely submersible without impacting sensor integrity or
performance.

Page 211



118

2.10.6. North Bay Village requires a web-based user interface (UI) that displays a digital map of
the service territory with each sensor location properly identified with GPS coordinates.
UI must also display leak status for each sensor with an appropriate legend, such as: red
for probably leak, yellow for possible leak and green for no leak likely.

2.10.7. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensor be readable with a two-way radio
controller. Digital leak sensors must: employ a two-way, multi-band radio protocol, use
advanced direct sequence techniques to increase range; and be approved by the FCC for
unlicensed or licensed operation under FCC rules in the U.S. or equivalent applicable
rules in other territories.

2.10.8. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensors have a self-calibrating, real-time
calendar clock for implementation of nighttime recording and power management.

2.10.9. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensors record vibrations during the night a
minimum of 256 times over a 4-hour period in order to characterize nighttime vibrations
in the environment of the sensor.

2.10.10. North Bay Village requires that the analysis software include computation of a leak
status for every acoustic leak detection sensor.  The leak status is derived from a leak
index, which is a number between 0 and 99 that represents the relative likelihood of there
being a leak in the vicinity of the acoustic leak detection sensor.

2.10.11. North Bay Village requires that bidders must offer 24 hours per day customer support, 7
days a week.

3 Scope of Work

3.1 Experienced Project Management
The bidder, and its representatives, shall have a proven program of professional project
management to ensure detailed follow-through for successful execution of system
installations.  Project managers shall be experienced in managing the design, installation
and optimization of systems.  Project management experience shall include system
integration capabilities and any necessary training support.

3.1.1 Selected vendor’s authorized distributor is to provide local technical support and project
management for 1 year after initial system implementation.

3.1.2 Project Management will be responsible for working with Utilities and Customer Service
to develop Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s) for post implementation maintenance.

Page 212



119

3.2 System Configuration
The bidder selected shall provide a preliminary study team that works with North Bay
Village to determine exact requirements and recommends a configuration solution. This
team will deal with the entire project, including an agreed-upon phased approach to
implementation, if required.

3.3 System Design
The Bidder selected shall provide a project team to determine what system configuration,
installation options, performance criteria and redundancy will work best.  This includes
interface requirements with the Village’s Tyler Technology billing software, application
requirements, platforms supported, and program management responsibilities.

3.4 Configuration and Set Up
Include as part of your pricing proposal (Bid Items #3 through #6) all costs associated
with the expected hardware configuration setup, operating system and software
installation, parameter setups, definition of required reports, and development of input
and output files.  If your software must be customized include all costs to customize in
your system pricing.

3.5 Installation

3.5.1. Include as part of your pricing proposal all aspects of the installation and construction of
the systems used to provide the proposed Mobile Based AMI meter reading services.

3.5.2. Electronic Data Collection

3.5.2.1. Contractor shall utilize a Field Computer or electronic device for the specific purpose of
collecting new meter information. The field computer shall be equipped with a barcode
code scanner, camera and integrated GPS, at a minimum, to ensure data collection
accuracy and integrity. It is acceptable to utilize a hardcopy form in the field for the
purpose of production planning and supervision, but at no time should the hardcopy be
used to solely collect the new meter information to be later hand keyed into a database
for data processing, this is specifically to prevent human error in the field and in the
office.

3.5.2.2. It is required that a job Forman, or crew leader, perform the data collection at each
location, to include a final quality control review of the installation upon completion. A
picture shall be taken of old meter read and new meter set.

3.5.2.3. Contractor shall have the means to automate and perform a thorough quality control
review on a daily basis. The specifics are noted below, at a minimum, and must be able
to demonstrate their process in detail if required.

 Endpoint – Verify there are no duplicates in the system.

Page 213



120

 Endpoint – Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to ensure data
accuracy.

 New Meter – Verify there are no duplicates in the system.
 New Meter – Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to ensure

data accuracy.
 Final Read – Compare final read to a threshold, including an upper and lower limit, to

prevent erroneous reads from inadvertently entering billing.
 Meter Attributes – Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to

ensure data accuracy.
3.5.2.4. Contractor shall prepare nightly reports to reflect the day’s production.

3.5.2.5. Contractor shall prepare weekly project progress reports to communicate inventory
levels as well as project progress.

3.5.2.6. Contractor shall prepare weekly and / or monthly system integrity reports to include
route/book saturation levels as well as read rates.

3.5.2.7. Contractor shall have the in-house expertise to work with the client’s billing provider to
develop and implement an interface that will facilitate the electronic exchange of data.

3.5.2.8. Typical interface specification:
 Download:
 Account Number
 Account Status
 Service Type
 Meter Number
 Meter Type
 Meter Size
 Previous Read
 Service Address
 Occupant
 Occupant Contact
 Location Notes
 Upload:
 Account Number
 Meter Number
 Final Read

Page 214



121

 New Read
 New Meter Number
 New MIU / MXU Number
 Meter Brand
 Meter Type
 Meter Size
 Install Date
 Latitude
 Longitude

3.5.3. Contractor will be responsible for any site or utility damage resulting from the
installation of meters, meter boxes, and/or new water services. See Bit Item #23 for
additional criteria.

3.5.4. Contractor shall include a current Safety Program.
3.5.5. Contractor is responsible for obtaining all applicable permits from the Village’s Public

Works and Building Departments and for arranging for all required inspections
associated with this project.

3.5.6. Contractor shall put out door hangers 24 to 48 hours prior to meter installation.
3.5.7. All employees will wear a uniform marked with a visible company logo.

3.5.8. All vehicles will be marked with appropriate company logos.
3.5.9. Contractor shall schedule appointments for all commercial accounts.

3.5.10. Contractor shall report any unauthorized use of water.
3.5.11. It is the Contractor's responsibility to return all old meters back into the Village.

3.5.12. Experience:
3.5.12.1.Contractor shall have a minimum of 8 years of experience performing meter

installations with AMR and AMI type systems.

3.5.12.2.Contractor shall have a verifiable experience record of having installed 25,000 meters
per year, during the previous 4 consecutive years, of this ITB.

3.6 Training

3.6.1. North Bay Village requires training on all facets of the Mobile Based AMI System.

3.6.2. North Bay Village requires training on the Hand held meter reading system.
3.6.3. North Bay Village requires training on the Mobile meter reading system.

3.6.4. North Bay Village requires training on Hand held and Mobile meter reading Software.

Page 215



122

3.6.5. North Bay Village requires training on the Reporting and Analysis Processes.
3.6.6. North Bay Village requires training on the Endpoint Installation and Maintenance.
3.6.7. North Bay Village requires training on Field Maintenance Procedures for Meter boxes,

endpoints and Network hardware.

4 Made in America

In Accordance with Appendix D of the FDEP Supplemental Conditions, North Bay
Village requires that all major components of the Mobile Based AMI System be
manufactured and supported in the United States of America.

5 Standard Water Meters (Rehabilitation/Replacement of Existing Meters
Only)

5.1. All meters offered must comply with the latest NSF 372 standards. These specifications
include the rehabilitation or replacement of existing water meters if needed and as
directed by the Village.  The specifications cover cold water meters and the materials and
workmanship employed in their fabrication.  The displacement meters covered are known
as nutating disc meters and are positive in action in that the discs displaces or carries over
a fixed quantity of water for each nutation of the disc when operated under positive
pressure. Only nutating disc meters offering bronze bodies conforming to NSF 372
standards are acceptable. Displacement meters with coatings applied on their housing
bodies to meet NSF 372 standards are not acceptable.

5.2. An affidavit from the manufacturer that the meters furnished under the purchaser's order
comply with all applicable requirements of AWWA specifications and these detailed
specifications.

5.3. All meters shall have a bronze outer case with a separate removable bottom plate made of
bronze or polymer material for meter sizes 5/8” x ¾” and bronze for 1” meters. A bronze
removable top plate shall be supplied for larger size meters. The size, model, and
direction of flow shall be molded in the upper casing of the meter housing. Meters shall
meet AWWA standards as it applies to working pressure and shall be in conformance to
NSF 61 standards.

5.4. The outer case shall be so designed to accept either a totally sealed straight reading or
digital absolute encoder register as described in these specifications.

5.5. 1 ½” and 2” meters shall be equipped with female threads or oval flanges. Oval flanged
meters shall have casted in place a 1” NPT threaded test plug, for inline field testing, or
pressure checks and shall accept the register configurations stated above.

Page 216



123

5.6. All external closures shall be designed for easy removal after long service.  Special torx
tamper style seal screws shall be available and provided. Plastic push through pins are not
acceptable. Bolts to secure the top and bottom plates to the meter body shall be made of
non-corrosive stainless steel.

5.7. All meters shall have an absolute encoder register that is permanently sealed using a glass
reading dome and brass or stainless steel housing, reading in US gallons. The encoder
register shall incorporate a sweep hand and leak indicator on the dial face. The encoder
register shall have a plastic lid with the meter serial number stamped on it. The encoder
register shall be designed with a resolution encoder which includes eight-digit resolution
to AMR/AMI Endpoints and the option of four, five, six, seven or eight-dial resolution.
The Encoder register shall be mechanical; LCD or LED will not be accepted.

5.8. The measuring chambers shall be self-contained units smoothly finished, firmly seated,
easily removed from the main cases, and shall not be a part of the main case.  The
measuring chamber, 5/8" through 2", shall be made of a dimensionally stable reinforced
thermoplastic.  They shall be of two-piece snap joint design and shall be secured in the
main casing so that the accuracy of the meter will not be affected by any distortion of the
cases that may occur when operating under pressures to 150 psi.

5.9. The measuring device shall be made of a suitable synthetic polymer as near the specific
gravity of water as possible.  It shall be smoothly finished and shall be fitted accurately
into the measuring chamber.  The disc style shall be equipped with a thrust roller and disc
spindle. The disc nutations shall not exceed those listed below.

5.10.  All meters shall be provided with strainer screens of rigid non-ferrous material which fit
snugly, are easy to remove, and have an effective straining area at least double that of the
main-case inlet.

5.11. All meters offered shall meet or exceed the latest AWWA accuracy standards for new
water meters.

5.12.  Meters supplied under these specifications shall operate without leakage or damage to
any part at a working pressure of 150 psi.

5.13.  All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

6 Solid State Residential Water Meters (New Meters)
6.1. These specifications include the installation of new Solid State meters throughout the

Village’s system.  This specification covers Cold Water Ultrasonic Meter in sizes 5/8”,
5/8” x 3/4”, 1”, and the material and workmanship employed in their fabrication. The
meter must utilize ultrasonic measurement technology and have no moving parts within
the meter.

Page 217



124

6.2. The basis for measurement is the use of ultrasonic signals sent consecutively in forward
and reverse directions of flow. Velocity is determined by measuring the time difference
between the measurement in the forward and reverse direction. Flow totalization can then
be calculated from the measure flow velocity using water temperature and pipe diameter.
The meter is all electronic with totally potted circuitry, display and battery. There are no
moving parts to wear or replace and no part of the meter is removable or serviceable.

6.3. The purchaser may require, in their supplemental specifications, an affidavit from the
manufacturer or vendor that the meters furnished under the purchaser's order comply with
all applicable requirements of this specification. Failure to meet any part of the
specification shall be sufficient cause for rejection.

6.4. Meters supplied under this specification shall operate without leakage or damage at a
working pressure of 175 psi.

6.5. The housing shall be lead-free, made of stainless steel or engineered polymer, and shall
be designed so that at a working pressure of 175 psi, any distortion will not affect the
accuracy of the meter. Metering tube shall not be repaired in any manner. The flow
direction and meter size shall also be cast in the meter tube and the inlet and outlet shall
have a common axis.

6.6. The ultrasonic metering insert shall be self-contained within the meter flow tube, seated,
and not removable. The insert shall be secured to the main case, providing a method of
minimizing turbulence and cleaning the reflectors, so that the accuracy of the meter will
not be affected by any distortions of the case when operating at a pressure of 175 psi. The
metering insert shall be made of engineered polymer and stainless steel and the ultrasonic
transducers shall be wetted components that extend through the meter tube and shall have
a surface of stainless steel.

6.7. The electronic circuit shall be micro-processor based and include a non-replaceable
battery, and non-volatile memory capable of storing all programmable data and
accumulated data. The circuit shall control the ultrasonic transducers. No field
programming or calibration shall be necessary. The entire meter circuit and related
components shall be fully potted and sealed from water intrusion. No components shall
require service or replacement over the life of the meter. For reliability, the use of
inductive coil technology shall not be permitted with an electronic residential meter.

6.8. The name of the manufacturer shall be permanently molded and the serial number shall
be imprinted on the lid of the register box. The lid and shroud components shall overlap
to protect the lens. Register box enclosures and lids shall be made of engineered polymer.

6.9. The Register shall be encased in an integral non-corrosive polymer housing, with the
electronics, display, and battery completely potted within. It must be permanently epoxy
sealed to provide moisture resistance to flooded pit or submerged conditions. The
permanent seal between the lens and non-corrosive plastic housing shall utilize an
adhesive seal.

Page 218



125

6.10. The Register shall be an integral part of the meter assembly. The register must be
available as factory pre-wired to an endpoint, or factory pre-wired to an inline connector
that can be used to connect to an endpoint.

6.11. The Register shall consist of an electronic local display combined with electronic
circuitry to provide either a high resolution absolute encoder output. This electronic
register assembly shall transmit a signal through properly shielded (grounded)
transmission wire for electronic reading connectivity.

6.12. The High Resolution Absolute Encoder Register option, available for the engineered
polymer and stainless steel meters, shall use an industry ASCII protocol. Capable of
sending a 9-digit encoder output to the endpoint as well as extended status messages.
Resolution being sent to the reading software is based on the output of the endpoint.

6.13. The display shall be a straight reading, permanently sealed electronic LCD with digits
0.25 inches high. The display will contain 9 digits plus a decimal point and display
consumption, units of measure, rate of flow and alarm information. The digital display
shall provide a totalized consumption resolution to 0.01 gallons.

6.14. The size, model, and direction of flow through the meters shall be permanently visible on
the topside of all meter displays. The units of registration, U.S. gallons, cubic feet, or
meters cubed shall also be designated on the Register display. The enhanced resolution of
the totalized flow display can be utilized as a flow indicator for leak detection.

6.15. The Register shall have a lid that covers the display face for added protection and
optional identification of serial number.

6.16. The meter shall register not less than 98.5% and not more than 101.5% of the water
actually passed through the meter. At the extended low test flow rate, the meter shall
register not less than 97.0% and not more than 103.0% of the water actually passed
through the meter.

6.17. All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

7 Solid State Commercial Water Meters (New Meters)
7.1. These specifications include the installation of new Solid State meters throughout the

Village’s system.  This specification covers Commercial Water Meters sizes 1 ½”- 4”
meters under this specification shall be a microprocessor- based electronic water meter
capable of displaying total net consumption and flow rate in both forward and reverse
flow direction.

7.2. The water meter shall have no moving parts to ensure that there is no damage from
particulate matter, e.g. stones, sticks, weeds, etc.

Page 219



126

7.3. The meter shall be suitable for operation from internal batteries that provide an operating
life of 10 years for sizes 1 ½” up to 4”.  The meter shall provide an alarm at least 3
months prior to end of life to alert user of battery status.  The alarm shall be visible on the
meter display. Once the battery is dead the display should still function, showing the final
registered volume, and provide another alarm stating the meter is no longer measuring
flow.

7.4. As an optional feature, meters 2” and larger may include a replaceable battery pack as the
means of powering.  The battery pack shall be interchangeable among all of these sizes of
meter and shall be labeled with the anticipated battery life for each size of meter to which
it may be attached.

7.5. The battery pack shall include Torx head screws to secure the battery to the meter.  The
meter will have further features to indicate or prevent removal of the battery by
unauthorized personnel.  The battery pack connection port shall be double O-ring sealed
and include material to indicate contact with moisture.  The battery cells shall be encased
in an engineering polymer or epoxy resin to protect them from physical or water damage.

7.6. Accuracy in the normal flow range shall be comparable to AWWA C701, AWWA C702,
AWWA C703 and AWWA C712 in both forward and reverse flow direction.  The meter
shall have a turndown ratio of 350:1. The lowest measured flow should be 350th of the
max flow and the accuracy shall be >95%.

7.7. An accuracy of ±1.50% shall be achieved for normal flows starting at 1% of max flow
and up to the stated maximum flow (for 1.5” meters or larger).  This performance is
required for water management and/or billing purposes.

7.8. The battery powered electromagnetic meter shall have a sampling rate of at least 500ms
and maintain a 10-year battery life (with sealed battery supply) at this sampling rate. Any
slower sampling rate will not be accepted.

7.9. The 500ms sampling rate is required to ensure that the meter maintains its accuracy
during variable flow rates and will provide an accurate reading in commercial billing
applications.

7.10. The meter must contain internal grounding rings to ensure that any electro-static charge
that could affect the meter’s performance is dissipated before entering the flow tube.
External groundings rings will not be accepted.

7.11. The meter performance shall have been verified on a fully traceable test facility that is
internationally accepted (such as NAMA, NIMJ, NIST or equivalent).  Laboratory
traceability packs shall be available on request.

7.12. Meters sizes 1 ½” to 4” shall have laying lengths no more than specified by AWWA
C701 Turbine Type Meter Standard, most recent revision.

7.13. Flanged ends for meters 1 ½” to 4” shall conform to ANSI B16.5 Class 125.

Page 220



127

7.14. The wetted materials shall be compatible with, and suitable for, potable water.  An
internationally recognized body such as AWWA, NSF, WRC or equal shall certify the
liner.  Acceptable electrode material is 316 Stainless Steel.  All other electrode material is
not accepted.

7.15. The meter body and display enclosure must be constructed of a durable 304 stainless
steel.  The flow tube shall be constructed of 316 stainless steel.

7.16. The flow tube liner must be of a high density polyethylene to ensure that it is not
susceptible to mineral build up.

7.17. The meter and register display shall be rated to IP68 (NEMA 6P) and be suitable for
indefinite submergence to a depth of up to 33 feet (10 m).  The meter should be fully
IP68 sealed at the factory and not require additional potting material at installation. The
sensor shall also be suitable for installation in underground pipes without the need for a
meter vault or pit.  The manufacturer shall, on request, provide evidence of satisfactory
operation of similar sensors for a minimum period of 5 years in buried installations.

7.18. A remote-mounted display suitable for installation up to 200 feet from the sensor must be
available and easily retrofitted in the field for pit applications.

7.19. The remote mounted display must be able to provide a pulse output capable of interfacing
with external data loggers, AMR/AMI devices and 4-20mA Frequency to Analog
converters.

7.20. The Remote display unit shall be protected to IP63 (NEMA 4P) resistant to water spray at
a 60° angle. An IP68 (NEMA 6P) protective box may also be required.

7.21. There shall be independent totalizer displays to give net total and flow rate.
7.22. The meter shall be compatible with electronic meter reading systems, including hand-

held scan reading and Walk-by, Drive-by and Fixed Network radio frequency systems.

7.23. The meter shall provide two pulse outputs. The pulse outputs must be capable of
interfacing with external data loggers, AMR/AMI devices and 4-20mA Frequency to
Analog converters. The meter shall also have the ability to provide an absolute encoded
output for interfacing with AMR/AMI devices.

7.24. The output of the meter shall be easily changed out in the field without removal of the
register, without compromising the IP68 rating, without the need to remove and replace
potting material and without programming.

7.25. Manufacturers shall, on request, provide a reference list of battery-powered electro-
magnetic flow meters that have been supplied to users on major international leakage
detection and water supply projects and which have been in operation for at least 5 years.

7.26. All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

Page 221



128

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Appendix B

1. Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department (WASD) Specifications for reference:

 Section UC-075 Water Service Installations

 Section UC-080 Meter Boxes, Sectional Plates and Vaults for Water Service

 Section UC-085 Water Meter Valves

 Section UC-170 Cleaning and Testing of Main

 Section UC-175 Disinfection of Water Main

 Section 15060 Piping and Fittings

 Section 15100 Valves, General

2. WASD Details for reference:

 GS 0.5, 1 of 2 Standard Requirements Water and Sewer Construction

 GS 0.5, 2 of 2 Standard Requirements Water and Sewer Construction

 GS 2.0, 1 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint

 GS 2.0, 2 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint

 GS 2.0, 3 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint

 GS 2.0, 4 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint

 GS 2.0, 5 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint

 WS 2.05, 1 of 1 Casting Standards

 WS 2.10, 1 of 3 Single Meter Box Installation

Page 222



129

 WS 2.10, 2 of 3 Single Meter Box Installation

 WS 2.12, 1 of 2 Dual Meter Box Installation

 WS 2.12, 2 of 2 Dual 5/8” Meter Installation

 WS 2.16, 1 of 4 Typical 2” Service Installation with 2” Meter

 WS 2.16, 2 of 4 Typical 2” Service Installation with 1 1/2” Meter

 WS 2.16, 3 of 4 Typical 1” Service Connection (Copper or HDPE)

 WS 2.16, 4 of 4 Typical 2” Service Connection (HDPE)

 WS 2.21, 1 of 3 Easement Requirements for Service and Fire Hydrant

 WS 4.10, 1 of 1 Typical Service Plan

 WS 4.16, 1 of 2 Meter Bank – 2” Supply

 WS 4.16, 2 of 2 Meter Bank – 4” Supply

 WS 4.20, 1 of 4 Typical Fire & Domestic Water Service Connections

 WS 4.21, 1 of 2 Dual 2” Meter Installation for Typical 4” Domestic Service

Lines

 WS 4.21, 2 of 2 Dual 2” Meter Installation for Typical 2” Domestic Service

Lines

Page 223



MDWASD 7/2013 
 

 
 UC-075 - 1 R-2 

 
SECTION UC-075 

 
WATER SERVICE INSTALLATIONS 

 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 SCOPE 
 

This Contractor shall furnish all labor, material and equipment required to construct water service 
installations, as specified herein. 

 
1.02 RELATED SECTION 
 

Section UC-080 - Meter Boxes, Sectional Plates and Vaults for Water Service 
Section UC-085 - Water Meter Valves  

1.03 LEAD FREE REQUIREMENT 

A. It is a requirement that all components of water service installations be certified lead free. All 
brass components for water service installations shall comply with the S3874 amendment 
(Reduction of Lead in Drinking Water Act) to Section 1417 of the Federal Safe Drinking Water 
Act. 

B. All meters, meter accessories, copper pipe, brass pipe, fittings, corporation stops, saddles, 
washers, tailpieces, couplings and other appurtenant items used for water services shall be 
“NL” no lead Type for installation in the WASD system. Solders and flux shall contain no more 
than 0.2% lead. 

C. All brass components shall be marked “NL” to indicate no lead. 

D. All valves 2-inch and smaller shall conform to the No Lead, NL, requirement. Valves larger 
than 2-inches are exempt. 

 
 

 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 HDPE Pipe for Services 
 

A. All 2-inch high density polyethylene pipe used for services shall be IPS-O.D. Controlled with 
Standard Outside Dimension Ratio (SODR) of 9, pressure rating of  250 psi, nominal outside 
diameter of 2.375-inches, minimum wall thickness of 0.264-inches, in conformance with Materials 
Standard PE 4710 "Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (DR-PR) Based on Controlled Outside 
Diameter".  Pipe shall conform with ANSI/AWWA C901 "Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and 
Tubing, ½ In. (13 mm) Through 3 In. (76 mm), for Water Service" as modified herein. Pipe shall 
have a (natural) inner core with a blue colored outer shell. Pipe shall have footage marks at a 
maximum interval of every two feet. Polyethylene material shall have a minimum cell classification 
in accordance with ASTM D3350 "Polyethylene Plastics Pipe and Fitting Materials" of 445576D for 

Page 224



MDWASD 7/2013 
 

 
 UC-075 - 2 R-2 

the core, which shall be 100% virgin material, and 445576E for the outer shell. Note that both of 
these materials are UV stabilized as signified by the "D" for natural colored and "E" for the colored 
shell. Pipe shall conform with NSF 61 or 14. Manufacturer shall supply certification of compliance 
with all of the above requirements. Certification shall ship with the pipe on material sold to the 
Department and shall always be submitted with shop drawings and catalogue cuts. When required 
by the Chief, Engineering Division, Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department or his designee, 
certification shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the state 
in which the manufacturer is located or in the State of Florida. 

 
B. All 1-inch high density polyethylene tubing used for services shall be CTS-O.D. Controlled with 

Standard Outside Dimension Ratio (SODR) of 9, pressure rating of  250 psi, nominal outside 
diameter of 1.315-inches, minimum wall thickness of 0.125-inches, PE 3408, all in conformance 
with Materials Standard PE 4710 "Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Tubing".  Tubing shall conform 
with ANSI/AWWA C901 "Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and Tubing, ½ In. (13 mm) Through 3 
In. (76 mm), for Water Service" as modified herein. Tubing shall have a (natural) inner core with 
a blue colored outer shell. Tubing shall have footage marks at a maximum interval of every two 
feet. Polyethylene material shall have a minimum cell classification in accordance with ASTM 
D3350 "Polyethylene Plastics Pipe and Fitting Materials" of 445576D for the core, which shall be 
100% virgin material, and 445576E for the outer shell. Note that both of these materials are UV 
stabilized as signified by the "D" for natural colored and "E" for the colored shell. Tubing shall 
conform with NSF 61 or 14. Manufacturer shall supply certification of compliance with all of the 
above requirements. Certification shall ship with the tubing on material sold to the Department 
and shall always be submitted with shop drawings and catalogue cuts. When required by the 
Chief, Engineering Division, Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department or his designee, 
certification shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the 
state in which the manufacturer is located or in the State of Florida. 

 
C. All HDPE services require the use of a 10 gauge direct bury stranded copper blue tracer 

wire tapped every four feet with poly or duct tape for location purposes. The tracer wire 
shall be accessible at the meter box and connected to the corporation stop for continuity 
of the signal. The 10 AWG standard tracer wire shall have 0.030” HDPE insulation and 
measure 0.162” min O.D. 

 
2.02 COPPER 
 
 A. Copper tubing shall conform to the requirements of NSF 61 and ASTM Standard B88.  

“Seamless Copper Water Tube”, Type “K”.  All tubing shall be furnished in straight lengths.  
Fittings and valves shall be of the solder-joint type except where specified otherwise. Type L 
copper shall only be used on the customer side of the property and is not allowed on public 
right-of-ways. 

 
 B. Fittings for use with copper tubing shall be one of the following: 
 
 1. Cast bronze solder-joint fitting shall be in accordance with ANSI Standard B-16.18, “Cast 

Brass Solder-Joint Fittings”, and ASTM Standard B62-90, “Composition Bronze or Ounce 
Metal Castings”.  Cast bronze solder-joint fittings shall be as manufactured by Chase Brass 
and Copper Co., Stanley G. Flagg & Co., Inc. Or approved equal. 

 
 2. Wrought copper solder-joint fittings shall be in accordance with ANSI Standard B16.22, 

“Wrought Copper and Bronze Solder-Joint Pressure Fittings”. 

Page 225



MDWASD 7/2013 
 

 
 UC-075 - 3 R-2 

 
Connection of copper pipe or fittings with galvanized pipe or fittings shall be made with dielectric 
fittings. Solder shall be lead free type.  

 
2.03  SERVICE TERMINAL FITTINGS 
 

A. Single Meter Box Installation 

a. One inch or 2-in copper or High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) tubing and terminal fittings. 
b. 1” lock wing style valve, drilled for wire sealing, Cat. No. KV23-444W Ford Meter Box Co. or 

Cat. No. 14255, Mueller Co. 
c. C.I. cover and lid as per MDWASD Standard Details 

 

B. Duel Meter Box Installation 

a. One inch or 2-in copper or High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) tubing and terminal fittings. 
b. 1” branch valve assembly, with Standard 7 ½ -in spacing between outlet centers, drilled for 

wire sealing, Cat. No. UV23-42W Ford Meter Box Co. or 1-in branch connection with 
Standard 7 ½ in spacing between outlet centers Cat. No. H-15362, fitted with angle stops 
for 5/8 inch meters, drilled for wire sealing, Cat. No. H-14265, (3/4’ Inlet) Mueller Co. 

c. C.I. cover and lid as per MDWASD Standard Details 
 

2.04 CASINGS FOR TORPEDO INSTALLATIONS 
 
 A Provide a PVC Schedule 40 casing or black steel pipe casing one inch in diameter larger than the 

service pipe when the service is installed with the use of a torpedo. When the service is installed by 
the direct bury method, no casing is required. 

 
2.05 BRASS FITTINGS AND VALVES 
 
 A.  All brass components shall be marked “NL” to indicate no lead. 
 
 B. Angle Key Meter Valves – Ford Meter Box Company KV-444W, Mueller or approved equal. 
 
 C. Brass Fittings – Merrit Brass or approved equal 
 
 D. Pack Joint, Swivel Nut – A.Y. McDonald Model 4761-22 
 
 E. Ball Corporation Stop – Ford Meter Box Company FB800, Mueller H-10003 or approved equal. 
 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 INSTALLATION OF SERVICES 
 

A. Services from the new water mains shall consist of corporation stops,  HDPE or copper tubing 
and terminal fittings as shown in the Standard  Details.  All service installations from the new 

Page 226



MDWASD 7/2013 
 

 
 UC-075 - 4 R-2 

main shall be installed by the Contractor. Service installations from existing mains, if required, will 
be installed by Department forces, and the cost for materials and labor furnished by the 
Department shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 
B. Where possible, all meter boxes shall be installed in non-traffic and non-parking areas. 

 
C. Where meter boxes are located in existing sidewalks, the whole flag of sidewalk shall be removed 

and replaced with new concrete.  The concrete walk shall be 4 inches thick and finished with the 
proper tools and techniques to resemble the existing walk.  The concrete support for meter boxes 
shall be eliminated when the box is installed in an existing sidewalk.  Where meter boxes are 
located out of sidewalk areas, a concrete support is required.  Concrete supports shall be to the 
established line and grade. 

 
D. Meter boxes shall be set flush with the finished grade if in sidewalks, or flush with the top of the 

ground if out of sidewalk areas. 
 

E. All bends in copper tubing shall be made with an approved type tube bender to the satisfaction of 
the Department. Flattened, out of round or kinked tubing will not be permitted. 

E. One inch service connections shall be one of the following: 
 

1. Short Single - Consisting of a short run of HDPE or copper tubing from the main on the 
same side of the street as the proposed meter, to the meter installation approximately 2 
½ feet from property line.  Single meter box installation included. 

 
2. Long Single - Same as above but from a main on the opposite side of the street from the 

proposed meter. 
 

3. Short Dual - Consisting of a short run of HDPE or copper tubing from the main on the 
same side of the street as the proposed meter to the meter installation, approximately 2 
½ feet from the property line and branched off to serve an additional customer.  Dual 
meter box installation included. 

 
4. Long Dual - Same as above but from a main on the opposite side of the street from  the 

proposed. 
 

F. If PVC or black steel casing pipe for services crossing existing pavement is required, the 
pipe may be driven from the side of the street which affords the most room for the driving 
trench, thus resulting in the least number of couplings in the casing.  Extra care shall be 
used in leveling and heading the first length of casing in the proper direction.   One method 
of driving casing, known to work in this area and offered here as a suggestion, is to use an 
ordinary coupling screwed on the leading end of the casing as a cutting edge, and driving 
against a coupling screwed on the tailing end with a special tool in a pneumatic hammer, 
while maintaining a steady pull forward on the hammer with a small winch.  Each length of 
casing as driven shall be cleaned out with compressed air introduced through a 
one-half-inch pipe at least as long as the casing.  The purpose of driving casing pipe is to 
make it unnecessary to repair paving over one-inch service cuts.  Should the Contractor 
elect to open-trench any one-inch service line across pavement, he will be required to repair 
the paving. 

 

Page 227



MDWASD 7/2013 
 

 
 UC-075 - 5 R-2 

G. The Contractor shall install the meter box, 1-inch branch assembly, 30 inch tailpieces and 
perforated spacers. 

 
H. When installing services the Contractor shall  temporarily plug the ends of the tail pieces for 

protection against dirt. 
 

I. Pipe bedding and the backfill material to at least 6 inches above the crown  of the copper 
tubing shall be clean white masonry sand.  Backfilling and  compaction of material lying 
above a point 6 inches above the crown of the  tubing and below the surface of the ground 
shall be as specified in Section  02315, "Trenching and Backfilling for Piping Systems". 

 
J. Department forces will install the meters into the boxes installed by the Contractor. 

 
 END OF SECTION 

Page 228



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-080 - 1 R-1

SECTION UC-080

METER BOXES, SECTIONAL PLATES AND VAULTS FOR WATER SERVICE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall furnish and install all concrete meter boxes, lids, sectional plates and
precast vaults required for a complete installation.

B. All concrete meter boxes, sectional plates and vaults shall be in accordance with the
Department's Standard Details and as specified herein.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.01 GENERAL

All materials used in the production of the concrete meter boxes, lids sectional plates and vaults
shall be new and or recent manufacture.  Aggregates shall not originate in salt or brackish water
areas and no calcium chloride containing admixtures shall be used.

2.02 FINE AGGREGATE

Fine aggregate for concrete mixes shall consist of sand or stone screening, composed of hard
durable grains, free of foreign matter such as loam, clay, dirt, organic matter or other impurities.
Fine aggregate shall conform to the following gradation requirements:

Size Sieve       Percent Passing
3/8"    100
No. 4 90 to 100
No. 8 70 to 95
No. 16 50 to 85
No. 30 30 to 70
No. 50 10 to 45
No. 100  0 to 10

2.03 COARSE AGGREGATE

A. Coarse aggregate for concrete mixes shall consist of gravel, broken stone or local limerock.

B. Coarse aggregate shall be hard, durable and free of foreign matter such as loam, clay, dirt,
organic matter or other impurities. It shall be free of adherent coatings. Coarse aggregate
shall conform to the following gradation requirements:

Page 229



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-080 - 2 R-1

1. Meter Boxes, Lids and Sectional Plates

 Size Sieve      Percent Passing
3/4"    100
1/2" 90 to 100
3/8" 40 to 70
No. 4 0 to 15
No. 8 0 to 5

2. Vaults

Size Sieve      Percent Passing
1-1/2"    100
  1" 95 to 100
1/2" 25 to 60
No. 4 0 to 10
No. 8 0 to 6

2.04 CEMENT

A. Cement shall be a standard brand of Portland cement meeting the requirements of ASTM
C150-86, "Portland Cement", Type I.

B. Different brands of cement, even if tested and approved, shall not be mixed during use.

2.05 REINFORCING STEEL

A. General: All reinforcing steel shall be free of rust, grease, dirt or mortar and shall be
thoroughly cleaned of any such foreign matter or loose mill scale before being placed in
position.

B. Wire reinforcement shall conform to ASTM A82, "Steel Wire, Plain, for Concrete
Reinforcement".

C. Wire mesh reinforcement shall conform to ASTM A185, "Steel Welded Wire, Fabric, Plain for
Concrete Reinforcement".

D. Bar reinforcement shall conform to ASTM A615-7a, "Deformed and Plain Billet-Steel Bars for
Concrete Reinforcement", Grade 60, deformed, except that steel manufactured by the
Bessemer process will not be accepted.

2.06 WATER

Water used in mixing concrete that is not in the form of surface moisture on the aggregate shall
be from the Department's water supply or other approved source.  (See "Water Used in
Construction" of Section 01100)

Page 230



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-080 - 3 R-1

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.01 MANUFACTURE

A. General

All concrete meter boxes, lids, sectional plates and vaults shall be manufactured in
accordance with the applicable provisions of ASTM C858, "Underground Precast Concrete
Utility Structures", as modified herein.

B. Forms

1. The Forms shall be made from of a non-porous material with smooth surfaces and shall
be accurate and strong enough to maintain the structure's dimensions within one half
of the allowable tolerances given in Section 3.4 of ASTM C858

2. The precast sections for 4' x 4' vaults shall be constructed with a threaded metal insert
in accordance with Standard Detail No. WS 2.20, Sheet 1 of 2, contained herein. Also,
each section shall be furnished with a corner bolt.

C. Cleaning and Oiling: Forms shall be cleaned before each use, and shall be free of paint or
other protective coatings that might cling to the surface of the concrete. Releasing agents
applied to the form to aid in breaking the bond shall not be injurious to the concrete.

D. Reinforcement: Steel reinforcing shall be securely positioned in the form to maintain the
concrete cover shown on the Standard Details.

E. Mixture

1. The aggregates shall be sized, graded, proportioned and thoroughly mixed in a batch
mixer with proportions of cement and water that will produce a homogeneous concrete
having a compressive strength of 3500 psi at 28 days of age for the boxes and plates
and 3000 psi for the vaults after the same curing period.

2. Batched concrete shall be made in standard concrete mixers only, and not in mortar
boxes, wheelbarrows or similar equipment.

3. Mixers shall be standard mechanical (power-driven) rotary type for concrete. Mixers
normally used for mortar or plaster mixing will not be permitted.

F. Concrete Placement

1. Concrete shall be placed either by gravity into the form at a rate such that the concrete
is plastic at all times and flows readily into all parts of the form and around all
reinforcement steel without segregation of materials, or by highspeed pneumatic
rammer resulting in sense, evenly compacted concrete without disturbing the
reinforcement. The surfaces from top to bottom shall show uniform compaction.

Page 231



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-080 - 4 R-1

2. The top surface of the molded items shall be flat and finished smooth while in the mold.
Capping will not be permitted. Where required by the Department, corners shall be
rounded.

G. Curing: Curing shall be by any method or combination of methods that will develop the
required compressive strength within 28 days or less.

H. Repairs: The precast units may not be repaired without specific approval by the Department.

I. Inspection: The quality of materials, manufacturing process, and the finished units shall be
subject to inspection at any time by the Department, and the supplier shall afford access for
this purpose, if so required.

3.02 CERTIFICATION

Prior to installation of any of the above mentioned units, the Contractor shall furnished the
Engineer, upon his required, with a statement giving the following information:

A. Name of manufacturer.

B. The source and type of cement.

C. The source and specific gravities of the aggregates.

D. The concrete mix proportions, and strength at 28 days.

E. Name of admixtures, if any.

F. Mill certificates for the reinforcement steel.

G. Source of water.

3.03 REJECTION

The Precast units shall be subject to reject, either at the manufacturing plant or at delivery, upon
failure to conform to any  of the specified requirements herein.  The following imperfections shall
also be cause for rejection:

A. Defects that indicate any imperfect concrete mixing and molding.

B. Surface defects such as honey-combed or open textured and damaged area which would
affect the structural adequacy.

C. Repaired areas or capping.

D. Improper radius at corners or improper tolerances.

Page 232



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-080 - 5 R-1

END OF SECTION

Page 233



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-085 - 1 R-1

SECTION UC-085

WATER METER VALVES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE

This Contractor shall furnish meter valve and accessories for cold water displacement meters (to
be furnished and installed by the Department) and shall supply all labor, material and equipment
necessary for a satisfactory installation.

1.02 RELATED SECTION

Section UC-080 - Meter Boxes, Sectional Plates and Vaults for Water Service
 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 METER VALVE ASSEMBLY

A. Meter valves (inlet side of meter) for single meter box installations, including single meter
boxes for multi-story buildings, shall be the lock wing type with coupling nut drilled for wire
seal. The inlet end of the valve shall be for 1-inch copper tubing as specified herein, and the
outlet end (coupling nut) shall connect to a 1-inch meter. The valves shall be as manufactured
by the following or an approved equal:

Ford Meter Box. - Angle Inverted Key Meter Valves, No. KV23-444W

or

Mueller Co. - Angle Meter Stop, No. H-14255

B. Meter valves (outlet side of meter) for single meter boxes (multi-story building) shall be the
plain type with coupling nut drilled for wire seal. The inlet end of the valves (coupling nut) shall
be for 1-inch copper tubing as specified herein, and the outlet end shall connect to a 1-inch
meter. The valves shall be as manufactured by the following or approved equal:

Ford Meter Box. - Straight Inverted Key Meter Valves,  No. KV23-444W

or

Mueller Co. - Straight Inverted  Key Meter Valves,  No. H-14348

Page 234



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-085 - 2 R-1

C. Meter branch valve assemblies (inlet side of meter) with standard 7-1/2 inch spacing for dual
meter boxes (two 5/8-inch water meters) shall be lock-wing types with coupling nuts drilled
for wire seal. The inlet side of the branch valve assembly shall be for 1-inch copper tubing as
specified herein, and the outlet side (coupling nut) shall connect to a 5/8-inch by 3/4-inch
meter. The branch valve assembly shall be as manufactured by the following or an approved
equal:

Ford Meter Box. - Branch Valve Assemblies, No. UV23-42WW

or

Mueller Co. - "U" branch connection No. H-15362 with 7-1/2 inch
spacing, 3/4 I.P. male thread (outlet) and inlet for 1-inch
copper tubing

and

Angle meter stops No. H-14265 with 3/4-inch I.P. female
thread (inlet), and coupling nut (outlet) for 5/8-inch by 3/4-
inch meter and drilled for wire seal.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

(Not Used)

END OF SECTION

Page 235



MDWASD 2/2011 

 UC-170 - 1 R-5 

 SECTION UC-170 
 
 CLEANING AND TESTING OF MAIN 
 
 
PART 1  - GENERAL 
 
1.01 SCOPE OF WORK 

A. The Contractor shall furnish all material, labor and equipment necessary to clean and test 
force main and/or water main. 

 
 B. The material herein specifies cleaning and testing of mains 24-inches in diameter and less 

unless otherwise allowed by the MD-WASD. 
 
1.02  RELATED SECTION 
 
 Section UC-175 -  Disinfection of Main 
 Section UC-370 -  Cleaning and Testing Gravity Sewers 
 
1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 
 A. Testing shall be in accordance with ANSI/AWWA Standard C-600, latest edition, as 

modified herein. 
 
 B. Cleaning and testing shall be performed in strict accordance with these specifications. 
 
 C. The Contractor is cautioned that Miami-Dade County or other governing body having 

jurisdiction over the work location may have regulatory rules and ordinances prohibiting or 
limiting the discharge of water from any excavation into sanitary and storm sewer 
systems, or to canals and drainage ditches. The Contractor shall comply with all 
regulations of all governing agencies. 

 
 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
 (Not Used) 
 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION  
 
3.01 GENERAL 
 
 A. As soon as the installation of each run of main is completed, including valves sufficient for 

control and anchored sufficiently to withstand any test pressure, the run shall be 
thoroughly cleaned by pigging (or, if required by the MD-WASD, flushing), discharging the 
water through a riser into the pipe trench, unless some other method of disposal is 
approved by the MD-WASD. Note that in some circumstances it may be necessary to 
install valves after the line segment has been pigged. In such in instance, permission to 
use this sequence of operations must be approved in writing by the MD-WASD. 

Page 236



MDWASD 3/2009 

 UC-170 - 2 R-5 

 B.  THE Contractor shall clean the inside of the main in intervals during its installation. The 
Contractor shall utilize pigging to clean the main unless otherwise specified herein or 
instructed by the MD-WASD. A Bare Swab No. 5, density 1 lb./ft.3 by Knapp Polly Pig, Inc. 
1209 Hardy Street, Houston, Texas 77020, 1-800-231-7205, or approved equal, shall be 
utilized for this work. Any damage to the pipe lining caused by pigging shall be repaired or 
replaced to the satisfaction of the MD-WASD at the Contractor’s sole expense. The 
Contractor shall furnish all materials and equipment necessary to clean the mains. 

 
 C. Volume flushing, if required, shall be of sufficient velocity to produce a scouring action in 

the main meeting the approval the MD-WASD. 
 
 D. The Contractor shall furnish and install all piping necessary to dispose of the flushing 

water and shall exercise care to prevent any damage to the surrounding area and 
adjoining and adjacent properties.  

 
 E. Water Main: Mains shall be tested as a whole or in sections between line valves, unless 

otherwise specified or approved by the MDWASD. Unless otherwise approved by the 
MDWASD, the total length of pipe for any single test shall not exceed 2,000 feet. Where a 
segment is being tested which includes more than one line valve to line valve section the 
maximum allowable leakage, defined below, shall be based on the length of the small 
segment being tested. All offset connections, fire hydrants, fire hydrant branch mains, and 
services between line valves shall be tested with the water main.  

 
 F. Force Main: The force main shall be tested in a manner identical to the water main test 

specified above. Offset connections and blow offs will be tested along with the main. 
Corporation stops shall be installed prior to testing and shall be included in the test with no 
leak permitted. 

 
3.02 WATER FOR CLEANING AND TESTING 
 
A.  Water for cleaning and testing shall be furnished as specified in "Water Used in 

Construction" of Section 01100.  The Contractor shall furnish and install all necessary 
pumps, piping and fittings, including the corporation stop(s), to connect the section under 
test to the source of water.  The test pump shall be a centrifugal or gear pump producing a 
steady pressure free of pulsation.  The MD-WASD may furnish a suitable meter or 
container for measuring the flow of water into the line, if available and requested by the 
Contractor in a timely manner, but will not be considered as obliged to do so.  If the meter 
is not furnished by the MD-WASD, a meter or container, calibrated to the satisfaction of 
the MD-WASD shall be provided by the Contractor. A Contractor-supplied meter or 
container must be approved in writing by the MD-WASD. The test pressure shall be 100 
psi and, as specified in AWWA C600, Section 5.2 “Hydrostatic Testing”, shall not vary 
more than ± 5 psi for the duration of the testing. 

 
3.03 LEAKAGE TESTING 
 
 A. Force Main: All corporation stops and blow offs in the section being tested shall be 

opened and left open until water comes out of them, in order that as much air as possible 
may be removed from the line.   

 

Page 237



MDWASD 2/2011 

 UC-170 - 3 R-5 

 B. Water Main: All fire hydrants, corporation stops, air release valves and meter valves in the 
section being tested shall be opened and left open until water comes out of them, in order 
that as much air as possible may be removed from the line.   

 
 C. Water shall be pumped into the line from a MD-WASD approved calibrated container or 

through a MD-WASD approved meter up to the required pressure, and pumping shall be 
continued to maintain that pressure for a minimum period of 2 hours, or such longer 
period as the Inspector requires to inspect the line for leaks.  Leakage shall be defined as 
the quantity of water that must be supplied into the newly laid pipe, or any isolated section 
thereof, to maintain the specified leakage test pressure after the air in the pipeline has 
been expelled and the pipe has been filled with water. 

 
 D.  The inspector will record the amount of water supplied to the pipeline at the end of the first 

hour of the test and at each hour thereafter for the full duration of the test. Should the 
amount of leakage (ie water supplied to the pipe) recorded for any hour exceed the 
amount recorded for any previous hour, even if the amount of leakage is less than the 
allowable amount, the test shall continue for additional one-hour periods until the leakage 
stabilizes or decreases.  

 
 E. The maximum allowable leakage for ductile iron mains shall be determined by the 

following formula from the ANSI/AWWA Standard C600-05 "Installation of Ductile-Iron 
Water Mains and Their Appurtenances", latest edition: 

 
 

L = SD times the square root of P 
148,000 

 
 

where: L is the allowable leakage in gallons per hour; S is the length of pipeline tested 
in feet; D is the nominal diameter of the pipe in inches; and P is the average 
test pressure during the leakage test, in pounds per square inch gage. 

 
  Note:  For force mains, also see "Tightness Standards" in Section UC-370, as applicable. 
 
 
 E. No pipe installation will be accepted if the leakage is greater than that determined by the 

above requirements.   
 
 F. The Contractor shall locate and repair all leaks until the leakage is reduced to the limits 

specified.  The Contractor may use the leak detector belonging to the MD-WASD but shall 
reimburse the MD-WASD for the actual cost of the operation of the instrument by MD-
WASD personnel.  Any observed leaks or any obviously defective joints or pipes shall be 
repaired or replaced as directed by the MD-WASD, even though the total leakage is below 
that specified above.  The tests and repairs shall be continued or repeated until the 
Engineer is assured that the leakage from the section of line under test is less than the 
amount specified. 

 
 END OF SECTION 

Page 238



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-175 - 1 R-1

SECTION UC-175

DISINFECTION OF WATER MAIN

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

The Contractor shall furnish the necessary labor, equipment, and material to disinfect

sections of water main and fittings as applicable to this project.

1.02  RELATED SECTION

Section UC-170 -  Cleaning and Testing of Main

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Disinfection shall be performed in strict accordance with these specifications and with AWWA

Standard C651, "Disinfection of Water Mains", latest edition, except as otherwise modified

herein.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 Liquid Chlorine, available from local sources.

2.02 Calcium hypochlorite, HTH, Perchloron, or approved equal.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

A. The Contractor shall clean, flush and disinfect every piece of pipe, fitting and valve in

accordance with these specifications and to the satisfaction of the Department.

B. Liquid chlorine is available locally and shall be purchased by the Contractor.

3.02 DISINFECTION

A. The pipelines shall be disinfected after they have been pressure tested and while still full of

water, as specified in Section UC-170.

B. A suitable chlorinator shall be used to inject chlorine into the lines. All connections required

for the introduction of chlorine into the water lines shall be made by the Contractor.  Chlorine

and water shall be introduced at one end and shall be allowed to flow slowly through the lines

to the other end where it shall be removed and disposed of at the Contractor's expense.

Several points of introduction and removal of chlorine solution may have to be employed to

get an even distribution through the entire section being disinfected. 

Page 239



MDWASD 1/1999

UC-175 - 2 R-1

C. The quantity of chlorine introduced shall be such as to insure a concentration of at least 50

parts per million in the water flowing from the line.  

D. The chlorine solution shall be allowed to stand in the line for at least 24 hours or longer, if

required, to destroy all harmful bacteria. At the end of the required time, the concentration

of chlorine in all parts of the section shall be at least 25 ppm.  

E. All valves and appurtenances in the section shall be operated at least once during the above

period. After the required period, the treated water shall be thoroughly flushed from the

section and the system filled with potable water. 

F. The Contractor shall be responsible for coordination with Dade County Department of Health,

who shall collect and test samples from main. The Contractor shall provide assistance to the

Dept. of Health for the collection of samples. The samples shall be taken from each main or

section of main to be placed in service where designated by the Dept. of Health. The

samples must be approved by the Department of Health before the main is placed in service.

G. The Contractor shall be responsible for any rechlorination and retesting that may be required

until the Department of Health's approval is obtained. The Contractor shall be responsible

for the disposal of all water flushed from the system and shall safeguard all adjoining

properties from damage from flooding. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the

protection of private property from water damage due to his operations. In addition, the

Contractor shall assume complete liability for any damage which was directly or in-directly

caused by his operations.

H. All of the connections shall be disinfected by the Contractor.  

I. The inside of each pipe and fitting laid by the Contractor in connecting to existing mains

which are isolated from the main line by valves shall be swabbed with calcium hypochlorite,

HTH, Perchloron, or approved equal, mixed in solution with water. The quantity of

hypochlorite shall in all cases be subject to the approval of the Department, whose

representative shall be present at all times while this phase of the work is in progress.

J. Wherever practicable, water from the existing mains flowing through the disinfected

connections shall be used in disinfecting the main line in order that the hypochlorite may be

removed to the greatest extent possible.  In other cases, the water from the disinfected

connections shall be removed by allowing it to flow into the main line as it is being drained.

END OF SECTION

Page 240



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 1

SECTION 15060

PIPING AND FITTINGS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE:

A. This section describes materials, testing, and installation of ductile-iron pipe and fittings for 
water mains, Cast Iron Soil Pipe, and Vitrified Clay Pipe for sanitary Sewer Service, and
small diameter Poly Vinyl Chloride Pipe (PVC) with threaded, flanged and solvent cemented 
joints; Copper Pipe and Fittings, and High Density Polyethylene Pipe for water services. The 
work included in this section consists of furnishing all material, equipment, craft labor and 
performing all operations necessary for the supply, installation, and commissioning of all 
piping, fittings and accessories within the limits of work, as shown on the drawings and 
specified herein.

B. Where references are made to other standards or codes, unless specific date references are 
indicated the latest edition of said standard or code shall govern.

1.02 WORK NOT INCLUDED UNDER THIS SECTION:  

Piping installation for various types of piping systems is specified other sections herein that 
constitute MDWASD’s Design Standards and Construction Details. Installations specified in 
this section are supplementary to those sections and in the case of conflict the more 
stringent condition shall prevail. For type PSM SDR-35 PVC and AWWA C900 PVC sewer 
pipe and fittings see Section UC-250, "Gravity Sewer Systems".

1.03 RELATED SECTIONS:

A. Section 15010 - Basic Mechanical Requirements

B. Section 15065 - Miscellaneous Materials

C. Section 15070 - Jacking and Boring

D. Section 15075 - Aerial Crossings

E. Section UC-250 - Gravity Sewer Systems

F. All sections specifying various types of valves.

1.04 PIPING LAYOUT AND DESIGN CRITERIA:

A. Field verify dimensions prior to preparation of layout and shop drawings. Obtain the following
information from the drawings and specifications:

1. Elevation of the pipe centerline and of the completed ground.
2. Alignment of the pipeline.
3. Field test hydraulic gradient elevation (HGL).
4. Nominal internal diameter, ID.
5. Design internal pressure class or HGL

Page 241



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 2

6. Joint types.

B. Obtain shop drawing approval prior to fabrication of piping. All items not specifically men-
tioned in the Specifications or noted on the approved Plans, but which are reasonably nec-
essary to for a complete, functional, and satisfactory installation shall be included.

1.05 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit shop drawings in accordance with the General Provisions.

B. Provide an affidavit of compliance with standards referenced in this specification, e.g., AW-
WA C151, AWWA C153, etc.

C. Submit copy of report of pressure tests for qualifying the designs of all sizes and types of 
pipe and fittings that are being used in the project. The pressure test shall demonstrate that 
the minimum safety factor described in relevant standard is met.

D. Submit piping layout profile drawings showing location and dimensions of pipe and fittings; 
submit after equipment and valve submittals have been reviewed and marked "Resubmittal 
not required." Include laying lengths of valves, meters, in-line pumps, and other equipment 
determining piping dimensions. Label or number each fitting or piece of pipe. Piping having 
identical design pressure class, laying lengths, and bell-and-spigot dimensions that is to be 
placed in long straight reaches of alignment may have the same identifying label or number.

E. Provide the following information:

1. Mortar lining thickness.

2. Wall thickness.

3. Material test data for this project.

4. Show deflections at push-on and mechanical joints.

5. Submit joint and fitting details and manufacturer’s data sheets.

F. Fully detailed drawings of all fittings proposed shall be supplied by the manufacturer with his 
bid. The tabulated nominal weight of each size and type of fitting shall also be supplied by 
the manufacturer for all items proposed. This weight shall be that of the bare casting prior to 
application of any lining or coating.

G. Submit calculations and test data proving that the proposed restrained joint arrangement for 
restrained joint pipe can transmit the required forces with a minimum safety factor of 1.5.

H. Submit copy of manufacturer's quality control check of pipe material and production. Include 
hydrostatic test records and acceptance test records. For each acceptance test, submit a 
stress-strain diagram showing yield strength, yield point, tensile strength, elongation, and re-
duction in area. Provide specimen test section dimensions and speed and method used to 
determine speed of testing, method used for rounding of test results, and reasons for re-
placement specimens, if any. Submit ring-bending test of pipe of the same diameter and 
pressure class as the pipe required for this project to prove ring-bending stress at 48 ksi re-
sults in a factor of safety of 2.0.

Page 242



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 3

I. For Ductile Iron Pipe and fittings, submit certificate that cement for mortar lining complies 
with ASTM C150, designating type.

J. Submit test report on physical properties of rubber compound used in the gaskets.

K. Submit test reports and certifications for ceramic epoxy lining as specified herein.  Submit
applicators qualifications.  Submit manufacturer’s written recommendations for application 
and repair of coating.

L. Submit drawing or manufacturer's data sheet showing flange facing, including design of fac-
ing serrations.

M. Submit weld procedure specification, procedure qualification record, and welder's qualifica-
tions prior to any welding to ductile-iron pipe or fittings.

1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. During shipping, delivery and installation of pipe and accessories, handle in a manner that is 
incompliance with the manufacturer’s recommendations, and employ procedures that ensure
delivery of an undamaged operable product

B. Exercise particular care not to damage coatings by limiting exposure or physical contact with 
other materials, objects, or the environment.

1.07 INSPECTION

The Owner's Representative will inspect materials, production, and testing of pipes, fittings, 
and special pieces at manufacturer's plant.

1.08 QUALITY ASSURANCE

All pipe, fittings and other materials supplied under this contract shall be subject to 
inspection while still on the delivery truck. It is the sole responsibility of the vendor and 
supplier to make prior contact with the Storekeeper or the Construction Management section 
and provide a minimum of 48-hours prior notice of delivery. When so notified, the 
Department will make arrangements for inspection of the material upon arrival or within a 
reasonable time thereafter.  Material shall not be unloaded without inspections taking place 
either prior to or, if necessary for examination, during the unloading procedure. The 
Department will not be responsible for any delays or additional costs created by non-
compliance with the requirement for prior notification or the requirement for thorough 
inspection.

Materials shall be delivered in complete compliance with the AWWA Standards as modified 
herein, without damage, and shall match or exceed the quality of any samples supplied. The 
Department absolutely reserves the right to require samples of any material supplied and to 
perform whatever tests considered by the Engineer, whose decision shall be final, to be in 
the Department’s best interest on said samples. Where such tests are of a destructive 
nature, the sample, if it passes the test will be paid for (at cost as shown by invoice) by the 
Department. Samples failing will be immediately replaced with suitable material at the 
supplier’s/contractor’s expense. Samples required prior to order as a condition for purchase 
or as a materials submittal for approval will be at the supplier’s/contractor’s expense but, if 
approved and not used for destructive tests, may be used in the work with permission from 

Page 243



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 4

the Engineer.

Materials found to be defective, not in strict compliance with the quality standards of samples 
supplied or these specifications shall be immediately returned to the vendor at his expense. 
If defects are discovered at a later time, the vendor shall be required to remove said items 
and shall bare all costs for so doing together with any replacement costs. Rejection of items 
may subject the vendor to liquidated and/or actual damages as specified elsewhere herein.

Foundries supplying materials shall maintain their metallurgical records for a minimum 
period of two years after fabrication and firms not doing so may be found in default.

Flaws which provide cause for rejection include; 

1. Incorrect metallurgy or metallurgy which cannot be verified to the complete satisfaction 
of the Engineer;

2. Foundry identification/location, size, pressure and material identification information lost, 
removed, non-existent, or not visible when assembled;

3. Not in complete compliance with all applicable AWWA Standards as modified herein 
and/or these specifications;

4. Not in compliance with NSF;

5. Not in compliance with approved shop drawings;

6. Out of roundness in excess of AWWA requirements;

7. Dimensional differences in excess of AWWA requirements;

8. Rough exterior coating;

9. Chipped, cracked, scratched or otherwise damaged interior or exterior coatings or 
linings;

10. Interior or exterior coatings which are too thin;

11. Coatings too thick to allow proper assembly; coatings too thick to allow proper grip by 
restraining gaskets or other restraining elements;

12. Pin holes or honey combing of pipe; 

13. Weld spatter or excess metal in gasket grooves or the whole of the bell area;

14. Bell areas which are distorted or otherwise improperly cast; 

15. Spigots which are out of round, not of proper dimension, or not beveled to an extent that 
will allow easy assembly of the pipe joint; 

16. Gaskets which are defective or of the wrong material; 

17. Lack of joint materials; 

Page 244



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 5

18. Improper or defective joint materials; 

19. Bolting of the wrong material or size; 

20. Electro galvanizing or other exterior plating when hot-dip galvanizing is required; 

21. Incorrect, flawed or damaged interior coating or lining;

22. Lack or non-submittal of all required certifications; 

23. Non-timely submission of certifications;  incorrect/incomplete certifications or 
certifications lacking the signature, date and seal of a professional engineer when so 
required;

24. Flanges which are too thin, not a right angles to the pipe centerline, or otherwise 
distorted; 

25. The above listed items together with all other flaws or defects which in the opinion of the 
Engineer, whose decision shall be final, adversely affect the assembly and/or function 
of the piping system as intended.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 PIPE AND FITTINGS:  DUCTILE IRON 

A. GENERAL

As used herein, "ANSI" denotes the American National Standards Institute, "AWWA" denotes 
the American Water Works Association, and "ASTM" denotes the American Society for 
Testing and Materials.

All pipe and fittings to be furnished hereunder shall conform to the referenced ANSI and/or 
AWWA Standard as modified herein, as appearing in the following sections.

All markings required on pipe and fittings, shall be permanent and clearly legible and located 
such that they will not be hidden or destroyed when assembled into the intended system.
Plainly mark each length of straight pipe and each fitting at the bell end to identify the design 
pressure class, the wall thickness, and the date of manufacture, and the proper location of the 
pipe item by reference to the layout schedule. Mark the spigot end of restrained joint pipe to 
show clearly the required depth of insertion into the bell.

B. DUCTILE IRON PIPE

All pipes shall be ductile iron pipe conforming to ANSI/AWWA Standard C151/A21.51-09,
"Ductile-Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast, for Water". All pipe and fittings for water applications 
shall be in full compliance with ANSI/NSF 61, "Drinking Water System Components-Health 
Effects". Manufacturers shall maintain their NSF certification for the duration of the Contract 
and any extensions thereof.

The pipe thickness and outside diameter of pipe for sanitary sewer and water usage shall 

Page 245



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 6

conform to Tables 1 and 2 (for push-on and mechanical joint pipe, respectively) of 
ANSI/AWWA Standard C151/A21.51-09 for the following sizes. The pressure class specified 
is the minimum permitted:

Size Pressure Class
4-inch through 12-inch 350
14-inch through 20-inch 250
24-inch 200
30-inch through 54-inch 150

For restrained joint pipe, the thickness of the pipe barrel remaining after grooves are cut, if 
required in the design of restrained end joints, shall not be less than the nominal wall 
thickness of equal sized non-restrained joint pipe as shown above. 

Minimum wall thickness for pipe having threaded flanges shall be Special Class 53 or 
Pressure Class 350.

Minimum pipe wall thickness required for corporation stops and tapped outlets shall be in 
accordance with Table A.1 of ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51-09 for three full threads for design 
pressures up to 250 psi and four full threads for design pressures over 250 to 350 psi.

For flanged ductile-iron pipe with integrally cast flanges or threaded flanges, the nominal wall 
thickness of the pipe barrel shall be as specified in Section 3.3, "Joints and Accessories" 
under "Flanged Joints", herein below.

Minimum wall thicknesses for pipe having grooved-end joints shall be as shown in the 
following table:

DI Pipe and Fitting Sizes
(inches)

Grooved End Joint 
Wall Thickness*

16 and smaller Special Class 53
18 Special Class 54
20 Special Class 55
24 to 36 Special Class 56
42 and larger Special Class 53 or Pressure 

Class 350
*Special Class and Pressure Class per AWWA C151-09.

Each piece of pipe shall be marked as required in Subsection 4.7 of AWWA C151-09. Letters 
and numerals on pipe sizes 12-inch and smaller shall be not less than 3/8-inch.

The Water and Sewer Department absolutely reserves the right to require the use of 
"thickness" class pipe or higher pressure class pipe in applications where in the opinion of the 
Engineer (i.e. the Chief, Engineering Division, M-D WASD or his representative) such use is 
in the best interest of the Department.  The Engineer's decision in this regard shall be final.

A sufficient quantity of non-toxic vegetable soap lubricant shall be supplied with each 
shipment of pipe.  The soap lubricant shall be suitable for use in subaqueous trench 

Page 246



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 7

conditions.

Single gasket push-on pipe shall be shipped in standard 18-foot or 20-foot lengths, but not 
both.  Restrained single-gasket push-on joint pipe shall be shipped in standard 18 or 20-foot 
lengths as specified above or fabricated lengths as noted in each order.  At least two lengths 
of each size of single gasket push-on pipe furnished under each order shall be tested with 
circumferential gauges to ensure that the pipe may be cut at any point along its length and 
have an outside diameter which will be within the manufacturer's standard design dimensions 
and tolerances for plain pipe.  These lengths shall be identified with an easily distinguished, 
painted marking, longitudinally along the full length of the pipe.

C. FITTINGS

Fittings Conforming to ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.11-12 (Water & Sewer Use)

Restrained push-on joint fittings shall be cast ductile iron for use with ductile-iron pipe as 
specified above.  Standard mechanical joint, push-on joint and flanged joint fittings shall also 
be ductile iron for use with ductile-iron pipe as specified above. Cast ductile-iron fittings in the 
3-inch through 24-inch size range shall be pressure rated at 350 psi, minimum; (except 
flange-joint fittings shall be rated at 250 psi, minimum); and in the 30-inch through 54-inch-
inch size range shall be pressure rated at 250 psi, minimum.  All fittings with mechanical 
joints, flange joints and push-on joints shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C110/A21.10-
12, "Ductile-Iron and Gray-Iron Fittings ".  In addition, fittings with mechanical joints and push-
on joints shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12, "Rubber-Gasket Joints for 
Ductile-Iron Pressure Pipe and Fittings".

The weight of fittings shall be as given in ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.11-12 for ductile-iron 
fittings.  The weight of mechanical joint fittings shall be as established in Tables 4 through 13.
The weight of flanged joint fittings shall as established in Tables 14 through 21.

Fittings Conforming to ANSI/AWWA C153/A21.53-11 (Water & Sewer Use)

All fittings shall be cast ductile-iron for use with ductile-iron pipe as specified above.  Fittings 
in the 3-inch through 24-inch size range shall be pressure rated at 350 psi, minimum; 30-inch 
through 48-inch size range shall be pressure rated at 250 psi, minimum; and in the 54-inch 
through 64-inch size range shall be pressure rated at 150 psi, minimum (except for those 
fittings such as plugs, caps, and sleeves which are normally rated at a higher pressure). No 
flanged fittings or mixtures of flanged with other end type fittings will be allowed in the range
of 3-inch through 48-inch. All fittings with mechanical joints, flange joints and push-on joints 
shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C153/A21.53-11, "Ductile-Iron Compact Fittings ".  In 
addition, fittings with mechanical joints and push-on joints shall conform to ANSI/AWWA 
Standard C111/A21.11-12, “Rubber-Gasket Joints for Ductile-Iron Pressure Pipe and Fittings" 
except as otherwise allowed in C153.  Mechanical joint glands shall be ductile-iron only.

The weight of a fitting supplied under the contract shall not be less than ninety-five (95) 
percent of the tabulated nominal weight supplied by the manufacturer’s catalog literature for
that fitting. Further, the weight of fittings supplied shall not be more than five (5) percent 
above the same tabulated nominal weight.

D. JOINTS AND ACCESSORIES

Joints in below-ground piping shall be flexible push-on or Mechanical joints, except where 

Page 247



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 8

flanged joints are required to connect to valves, meters, and other equipment. Provide 
unrestrained buried joints except where restrained joints are specifically shown in the 
drawings.  Joints in aboveground or submerged piping or piping located in vaults and 
structures shall be grooved end or flanged.

Restrained joints for piping 6 inches and larger shall be American Cast Iron Pipe "Lok-Ring" or 
"Flex-Ring," U.S. Pipe "TR-Flex," or equal. Weldments for restrained joints shall be tested by 
the liquid penetrant method per ASTM E165. Restrained joints for field closures shall be 
“Megalug” by EBAA Iron.

Push-On Type Joints (Single Gasket and Single Gasket with Gasket Restraint)

Push-on joints shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12, except that the 
gaskets for pipe and fittings shall be neoprene unless otherwise specified.  

The required number of gaskets for each push-on joint pipe plus one extra for every 50 joints 
or fraction thereof, shall be furnished with each order.  The gaskets shall be shipped in 
suitable protective containers.  All single gasket pipe shall be as manufactured by United 
States Pipe and Foundry Company (Tyton), by the American Cast Iron Pipe Company 
(Amarillo Fastite), by McWane, Inc. (Mix of Tyton and Fastite), Tyler/Union (Tyton) or 
approved equal. 

Push-on joints together with both their regular and gasket-restraint gaskets shall be of the 
design, dimensions and tolerances of either those provided by American Cast Iron Pipe 
Company (Amarillo Fastite/Fast-Grip) or those provided by United States Pipe and Foundry 
Company (Tyton/Field Lok). No other designs will be acceptable. 

The pressure rating shall be stamped on the restrained gasket. The restrained gasket and joint 
restraining system shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12 (with neoprene 
required for sewer) rated at the following: 

Size Pressure Rating (Min.)
4-inch through 12-inch 350
14-inch through 20-inch 250
24-inch 200
30-inch and above 150

The restrained gasket shall be manufactured a color other than black to allow for visual 
inspection of the pipeline. The restrained gasket color shall be consistent throughout the 
system and shall be inherent within the rubber, not painted. 

Mechanical Joints

Mechanical joints for fittings shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12, except 
that the gaskets for each fitting under Groups D and D1 shall be neoprene.  Bolt holes for 
mechanical joints shall be equally spaced, and shall straddle the vertical centerline.  Tee head 
bolts and hexagonal nuts for all mechanical joints in fittings shall be of high strength low-alloy 
steel with composition, dimensions and threading as specified in ANSI/AWWA Standard 
C111/A21.11-12.  Glands shall be of ductile-iron construction for ductile iron fittings, and cast 
gray iron or ductile iron for cast gray-iron fittings.

Page 248



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 9

The proper number of gaskets, glands, bolts and nuts, all conforming to ANSI/AWWA 
Standard C111/A21.11-12, plus one extra gasket for every 10 joints or fraction thereof, shall 
be furnished with each order.  The gaskets and joint accessories shall be shipped in suitable 
protective containers.  Follower glands held in place with set screws will not be acceptable.  
Segmented glands will not be acceptable.

Mechanical Joint Megalug-Type Restraining Systems

In any mechanical joint or push on joint underground piping system restrained glands may be 
utilized for underground pipeline. The ASTM A536 ductile iron casting of the restrained gland 
shall be bonded powder coated. The wedge and wedge assembly shall have a bonded liquid 
polymer coating applied for corrosion protection. The gland shall utilize torque limiting twist off 
wedge actuation screws.

Foreign and domestic manufactured restrained glands are allowed for pipelines 24-inches and 
below unless otherwise required by the Department due to Federal or State funded projects 
which require domestic manufacture. In sizes 30, 36, 42 and 48-inch the prior written 
permission of the Engineer is required to use non-domestic manufactured restraining glands. 
The country of origin shall be clearly identified on the restraining gland and shop drawing.

The Department absolutely reserves the right to require other forms of restraint where in the 
opinion of the Engineer the use of this form of restraint is not in the best interest of the 
Department and his decision shall be final. Use of this type of restraint is restricted to 
underground mechanical joint or push-on joint applications and in general may not be used 
above grade or as a substitute for flanged joints.

The Megalug restraint systems manufactured by EBAA Iron Sales, Eastland Texas, will be 
considered the standard of quality for comparison purposes and if the Department has any 
doubts as to the durability, quality or ability to restrain of a proffered substitute, the entity 
offering the substitute shall bear the entire burden of proving this equality to the complete 
satisfaction of the Engineer. Other manufacturers producing this type of restraint system shall 
submit data with their shop drawings showing that their restraint system has been in the 
marketplace for a minimum of three years in this country.

Each thrust-resistant mechanical joint or push on joint made up with this type of restraint and 
the pipe and fitting of which it is a part, shall be designed to withstand an axial thrust from an 
internal pipeline pressure of at least 150 psi at bulkhead conditions without reduction because 
of its position in the pipeline nor for support from external thrust blocks.

This type of joint restraint shall not be used above grade except as previously specified nor 
shall it be used as a carrier pipe within a casing. This type of restraint shall not be used with 
tape wrapped pipe or with too great a coating thickness on the exterior of the pipe.

Restrained Push-on Joints (Single Gasket Non-Gasket Restrained)

Restrained joints in pipe and fittings shall be of the single gasket push-on type, and shall 
conform to all applicable provisions of ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12, except that 
gaskets for pipe and fittings shall be neoprene, where so specified, and the following 
requirements:

Thickness of the pipe barrel remaining at grooves cut, if required in the design of restrained 
end joints, shall not be less than the nominal wall thickness of equal sized non-restrained pipe

Page 249



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 10

as specified in Section 3.1 above.

Restrained joints using field welding, set screws, or gaskets with expanding metal inserts are 
not acceptable.

The restraining components, when not cast integrally with the pipe and fittings, shall be ductile 
iron or a high strength non-corrosive alloy steel.

Tee head bolts and hexagonal nuts for all restrained joints in pipe and fittings shall be of high 
strength low-alloy steel with composition, dimensions and threading as specified in 
ANSI/AWWA Standard C111/A21.11-12, except that the length of the bolts shall meet the 
requirements for the restrained joint design.

The proper number of gaskets, bolts, nuts and all necessary joint material, plus one extra 
gasket for every 10 joints or fraction thereof, shall be furnished with each order.  The gaskets 
and joint accessories shall be shipped in suitable protection containers.

Each thrust-resistant joint and the pipe and fitting of which it is a part, shall be designed to 
withstand the axial thrust from an internal pipeline pressure of at least 150 psi at bulkhead 
conditions without reduction because of its position in the pipeline nor for support from external 
thrust blocks.

Restrained push-on joint pipe and fittings shall be capable of being deflected after assembly.  
During deflection, all components in the restrained system shall be in contact to provide an 
equal force on all contact areas.

When restrained spigot ends are ordered for items of Group A, the corresponding bell ends of 
the pipe to be restrained (also within Group A), shall be furnished with the required matching 
restraining features at no additional cost other than the price bid per foot of pipe.

Flanged Joints

Connecting pieces with one end flanged and the other end either plain-end or mechanical 
joint, shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C110/A21.10-12.  Joint material for both the 
flanged end and the mechanical joint accessories for connecting pieces with a mechanical 
joint end shall be furnished as specified.

Other types of flanged fittings, and flanged pipe, shall conform to the following requirements 
unless otherwise stated in the order:

Flanged fittings shall conform to ANSI/AWWA Standard C110/A21.10-12, as specified 
hereinabove.

Flanged ductile-iron pipe with integrally cast flanges shall be manufactured in accordance with 
ANSI/AWWA Standard C151/A21.51-09, and with provisions contained hereinabove for 
centrifugally cast ductile iron pipe, and shall be furnished with ANSI Standard Class 125 
flanges, plain faced and drilled, conforming to ANSI Standard B16.1, "Cast Iron Pipe Flanges 
and Flanged Fittings", latest revision. Hollow back flanges are not acceptable.

Flanged ductile-iron pipe with threaded flanges shall be manufactured in accordance with 
ANSI/AWWA Standard C115/A21.15-11, "Flanged Ductile-Iron Pipe With Ductile-Iron or Grey-
Iron Threaded Flanges", and shall be rated for a working pressure of 250 psi, minimum.  The 

Page 250



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 11

nominal thickness of flanged ductile-iron pipe, 6-inch and larger, shall not be less than those 
shown in Table 1 of ANSI/AWWA Standard C115/A21.15-11.  The nominal thickness of 4-inch 
flanged ductile-iron pipe shall be Class 54 (min.) conforming to Tables 3 and 4 of ANSI/
Standard C151/A21.51-09. Flanges shall be solid-back.

The pipe shall be furnished with ANSI Standard Class 125 flanges, plain faced and drilled, 
conforming to ANSI Standard B16.1, latest revision.  Hollow back flanges and grey-iron 
flanges shall not be acceptable for use as threaded flanges. Threaded flanges shall be 
individually fitted and machine tightened on the threaded pipe by the manufacturer, and shall 
not be interchangeable in the field.  

Flanges shall be back-faced parallel to the face of flange. Prior to assembly of the flange onto 
the pipe, apply a thread compound to the threads to provide a leak-free connection. There 
shall be zero leakage through the threads at a hydrostatic test pressure of 250 psi without the 
use of the gasket. Pipe lengths shall be as ordered.  Removal of flanges, cutting and re-
threading the pipe, and re-installing the flanges will not be permitted in any case. Where a 
raised face flange connects to a flat-faced flange, remove the raised face of the flange.

All flanges on ductile-iron pipe and fittings shall be of ductile iron, class 70-50-5 in accordance 
with ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10.  All joint materials for flanged pipe and fittings, shall be 
supplied with all pipe or fittings ordered. Bolts and nuts shall comply with all requirements of 
Appendix Section A.1 of ANSI/AWWA Standard C115/A21.15-11 except that both shall be 
stainless steel. Bolts shall be of sufficient length to fully engage all threads in the nut. Unless 
ring gaskets are specified, gaskets shall be full-faced, and gaskets shall be of 1/8-inch 
thickness. Gaskets shall fully conform to the requirements of ANSI/AWWA Standard 
C115/A21.15-11 Appendix Section A.2 except that gaskets shall be SBR for water and 
neoprene for sewer usages.

Grooved-end Fittings and Couplings

Grooved-end fittings shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10-12 with grooved ends 
conforming to ANSI/AWWA C606-11, radius cut rigid joints. Fitting material shall conform to 
ASTM A48, Class 30; ASTM A126, Class B; or ASTM A536, Grade 65-42-10. Wall thickness 
of ductile-iron (ASTM A536) fittings shall conform to AWWA C110 or C153; wall thickness of 
cast-iron fittings shall conform to AWWA C110. Fittings and couplings shall be furnished by the 
same manufacturer.

Grooved-end pipe couplings shall be ductile iron, ASTM A536 (Grade 65-45-12). Gaskets shall 
be Buna-N and shall conform to ASTM D2000. Bolts in exposed service shall conform to 
ASTM A183, 110,000-psi tensile strength. Bolts in buried or submerged service shall be ASTM 
A193, Grade B8, and Class 2.

Couplings for pipe 24 inches and smaller shall conform to AWWA C606 for flexible radius 
ductile-iron pipe, except where rigid radius couplings are required to connect to fittings. 
Couplings for pipe sizes 30 and 36 inches shall be in accordance with the coupling 
manufacturer's published literature for tolerances and dimensions for flexible and rigid radius 
cut joints. Couplings shall be Victaulic Style 31, Gustin-Bacon No. 500, or equal.

Couplings for pipe larger than 36 inches shall conform to AWWA C606 for shouldered end 
pipe. Couplings shall be Victaulic Style 44 or equal.

Page 251



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 12

Grooved-end adapter flanges for piping 24 inches and smaller having an operating pressure of 
150 psi and less shall be Victaulic Style 341 or 342 or equal. Flange dimensions shall conform 
to ASME B16.1, Class 125.

Grooved-end transition couplings for connecting ductile-iron pipe 12 inches and smaller to 
steel pipe shall be Victaulic Style 307 or equal.

Outlets and Nozzles

Provide outlets three quarters of an inch and smaller by direct tapping Ductile Iron Pipe in 
accordance with AWWA C600-10, Section 4.8.  Provide outlets larger than three quarters of 
an inch up to 2 inches by tapping the pipe and attaching a service clamp. or use a threaded 
welded-on boss. Use stainless steel clamps for exposed piping. For outlets larger than 2 
inches, use a tee with a flanged outlet. For outlets larger than 2 inches in buried piping, use a 
tee with a restrained joint outlet.

Ductile-Iron Pipe Weldments

All welding to ductile-iron pipe, such as for bosses, joint restraint, and joint bond cables, shall 
be done at the place of manufacture of the pipe. Perform welding by skilled welders 
experienced in the method and materials to be used. Welders shall be qualified under the 
standard qualification procedures of the ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code, Section IX, 
Welding Qualifications.

Welds shall be of uniform composition, neat, smooth, full strength, and ductile. Completely 
grind out porosity and cracks, trapped welding flux, and other defects in the welds in such a 
manner that will permit proper and complete repair by welding.

Material for fittings with welded-on bosses shall have a Charpy notch impact value of minimum 
10 ft-lbs under the conditions defined in ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51-09. Test completed welds 
by the liquid penetrant method per ASTM E165.

Completed welds shall be inspected at the place of manufacture by the liquid penetrant 
method. Conform to the requirements specified in ASTM E165, Method A, Type I or Type II. 
The materials used shall be water washable and nonflammable.

E. LININGS AND COATINGS

Polyethylene Encasement

For non-submerged applications, all Ductile Iron Pipe and fittings shall be wrapped with V-Bio 
Polyethylene Enhanced Encasement in accordance with AWWA C600 and ANSI/AWWA 
C105/A21.5-, Standard for Polyethylene Encasement of Ductile-Iron Pipe Systems. . Film low-
density, polyethylene film and shall be 8 mils thick.  Color shall be Blue for Potable Water, 
Purple for Recycled water, and green for sanitary sewage service.  Alternatively, or if 
specified, polyethylene encasement for use with ductile iron pipe systems shall consist of three 
layers of co-extruded linear low density polyethylene (LLDPE), fused into a single thickness of 
not less than eight mils. The inside surface of the polyethylene wrap to be in contact with the 
pipe exterior shall be infused with a blend of antimicrobial biocide to mitigate microbiologically 
influenced corrosion and a volatile corrosion inhibitor to control galvanic corrosion. Product:  V-

Page 252



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 13

Bio or equal.

Polyethylene encasement for ductile-iron pipe shall be supplied as a flat tube meeting the 
dimensions of Table 1 in AWWA C105 and shall be supplied by the ductile-iron pipe 
manufacturer.

Plastic adhesive tape shall consist of polyolefin backing and adhesive which bonds to common 
pipeline coatings including polyethylene. Products: Canusa Wrapid Tape; Tapecoat 35; 
Polyken 934; AA Thread Seal Tape, Inc.; or equal.

Install the polyethylene to completely encase the pipe and fittings to provide a watertight 
corrosion barrier. Continuously secure overlaps and ends of sheet and tube with polyethylene 
tape. Make circumferential seams with two or more complete wraps, with no exposed edges. 
Tape longitudinal seams and longitudinal overlaps, extending tape beyond and beneath 
circumferential seams. Wrap bell-spigot interfaces, restrained joint components, and other 
irregular surfaces with wax tape or moldable sealant prior to placing polyethylene encasement. 
Minimize voids beneath polyethylene. 

Place circumferential or spiral wraps of polyethylene tape at 2-foot intervals along the barrel of 
the pipe to minimize the space between the pipe and the polyethylene. Overlap adjoining 
polyethylene tube coatings a minimum of 1 foot and wrap prior to placing concrete anchors, 
collars, supports, or thrust blocks. Hand-wrap the polyethylene sheet, apply two complete 
wraps with no exposed edges to provide a watertight corrosion barrier, and secure in place 
with 2-inch-wide plastic adhesive tape. Repair polyethylene material that is damaged during 
installation. Use polyethylene sheet, place over damaged or torn area, and secure in place 
with 2-inch-wide plastic adhesive tape.

Repair polyethylene encasement at all service connections in accordance with AWWA C600-
10, Section 4.8.

Asphaltic Coating

All Ductile Iron pipe and fittings shall be outside-coated with an asphaltic material applied by 
means of the airless spray method. The exterior coating shall comply with ANSI/AWWA 
C151/A21.51-09 for this type of coating, shall be smooth without pinholes, thin, bare or overly 
thick areas. Smoothness shall be such that when hand rubbed, no “sand paper” feeling will be 
experienced and such that the spigot area will readily slide through the gasket without pulling, 
tearing, rolling or otherwise disturbing the sealing capabilities of the gasket.  Spigot ends shall 
be beveled prior to coating to an extent that will permit ready insertion of the spigot through the 
gasket area.

Cement-Mortar Lining

Ductile Iron Pipe and fittings unless otherwise specified shall be double-thickness cement-
lined and seal-coated in accordance with ANSI/AWWA Standard C104/A21.4-14, "Cement-
Mortar Lining for Ductile-Iron Pipe and Fittings ".

Ceramic Epoxy Lining 

Ductile Iron Pipe and fittings where so specified shall be lined with ceramic epoxy

Ceramic epoxy shall contain pigmentation to resist ultraviolet exposure under the same 

Page 253



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 14

conditions.

All ductile iron pipe and fittings for which ceramic epoxy lining is to be applied shall be 
delivered to the application facility without asphalt, cement lining or other lining on the interior 
surface or the first 6 inches on the spigot end of the pipe exterior.
Ceramic epoxy material shall be a high-build multi-component Amine cured Novalac epoxy, 
Protecto 401, by Vulcan Painters, Inc. of Bessemer, AL 35021 or Department-approved equal.

Ceramic epoxy material shall meet the following criteria and shall be accompanied by 
certification of the following test results:

A. A permeability rating of 0.00 when tested according to Method A of ASTM E96-00 "Test 
Method for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials", Procedure A with a test duration of 
30 days.

B. The following test must be run on coupons from factory lined ductile iron pipe:

1. ASTM B117 Salt Spray (scribed panel) - Results to equal no more than 0.5mm 
undercutting after one year.

2. ASTM G95 Cathodic Disbondment 1.5 volts @ 77 degrees F. Results to equal no 
more than 0.5mm undercutting after 30 days.

3. Immersion Testing rating using ASTM D714-87 (1994).
a. 20% Sulfuric Acid - No effect after one year.
b. 25% Sodium Hydroxide - No effect after one year.
c. 160° F. Distilled Water - No effect after one year.
d. 120° F. Tap Water (scribed panel) - 0.0 undercutting after one year with no effect.

C. A statement from the manufacturer attesting to the fact that at least 20% of the volume of 
the lining contains ceramic quartz pigment.

D. A statement concerning recoat ability and repair to the lining.

Ceramic Epoxy Application

a. The lining shall be applied by a competent firm with a successful history of applying 
linings to the interior of ductile iron pipe and fittings.

b. Surface Preparation
Prior to abrasive blasting, the entire area which will receive the protective compound shall 
be inspected for oil, grease, etc.  Any areas where oil, grease or any substance is present 
which can be removed by solvent shall be solvent cleaned using the guidelines outlined in 
SSPC-1 Solvent Cleaning.  After the surface has been made free of grease, oil or other 
substances, all areas to receive the protective compounds shall be abrasive blasted using 
compressed air nozzles with sand or grit abrasive media.  The entire surface to be lined 
shall be struck with the blast media so that all rust, loose oxides, etc., are removed from 
the surface.  Only slight stains and tightly adhering annealing oxide may be left on the 
surface.  Any area where rust reappears before coating must be re-blasted to 
remove all rust.

c. Lining Application

Page 254



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 15

After the surface preparation and within 8 hours of surface preparation, apply to the 
interior of pipe and fittings a minimum forty (40) mils dry film thickness of the protective 
lining.  No lining shall take place when the substrate or ambient temperature is below 40 
degrees Fahrenheit. The surface also shall be dry and dust free.  If flange ends are 
included in the Project, the linings shall not be used on the face of the flange; however, 
full face gaskets must be used to protect the ends of the pipe.  The 40-mil system shall 
not be applied in the gasket grooves.

d. Coating of Gasket and Spigot Ends
Coat the gasket area and exterior of the spigot end for 6 inches back from the end of the 
spigot with six (6) mils minimum, ten (10) mils maximum of Protecto Joint Compound. 
This coating shall be applied by brush to ensure complete coverage. Care shall be taken
that the coating is smooth without excess buildup in the gasket groove or on the spigot 
end. All material for the gasket groove and spigot end shall be applied after the 
application of the lining as specified in the preceding paragraph.

e. Number of Coats
The number of coats of lining material applied shall be as recommended by the lining 
manufacturer.  However, in no case shall this material be applied above the dry thickness 
per coat recommended by the lining manufacturer in printed literature.  The time between 
coats shall never exceed that time recommended by the lining material manufacturer.  No 
material shall be used for lining which is not indefinitely recoated able with itself without 
roughening the surface.

f. Touch-Up and Repair
Protecto Joint Compound shall be used for touch-up or repair.  Procedures shall be in 
accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

F. INSPECTION AND CERTIFICATION
a. Inspection

1. All ceramic epoxy lined ductile iron pipe and fitting linings shall be checked for 
thickness using a magnetic film thickness gauge.  The thickness testing shall be done 
using the method outlined in SSPC-PC-2 Film Thickness Rating. Re-line any pipe 
whose lining is below the specified minimum thickness.

2. The interior lining of all pipe and fittings shall be tested for pinholes with a 
nondestructive 2,500 volt test. Re-line any pipe not passing the test.

3. Each pipe joint and fitting shall be marked with the date of application of the lining 
system and with its numerical sequence of application on the date.

Procedures for Sealing Cut Ends and Repairing Field Damaged Areas

1. Remove burrs caused by field cutting of ends or handling damage and smooth out the 
edge of the lining if rough.

2. Remove all traces of oil, grease, asphalt, dust, dirt, etc.

3. Areas of loose or damaged lining associated with field cutting the pipe shall be repaired, if 
approved by the Engineer, as recommended by the pipe manufacturer. The damaged area 
shall be stripped back by chiseling or scraping about 1 to 2 inches into the well-adhered 

Page 255



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 16

lining before patching.

The exposed metal and the 1 to 2-inch lining overlap shall be roughened with a coarse 
grade of emery cloth (#40 grit), rasp or small chisel.  Avoid wire brushing or similar buffing 
which would make the surface too smooth for good adhesion.

4. With the area to be sealed or repaired absolutely, clean and suitably roughened, apply a 
coat of Protecto Joint Compound by brush in accordance with the manufacturer's 
recommendations.

2.02 PIPE AND FITTINGS: CAST IRON SOIL

A. Cast iron soil pipe and fittings shall be cast gray iron, extra heavy, conforming to the 
requirements of ASTM Standard A74 "Cast Iron Soil, Pipe and Fittings".

B. Joints in soil pipe and fittings shall be made with neoprene rubber, compression type gaskets 
conforming to ASTM Standard C564, "Rubber Gaskets for Cast Iron Soil Pipe and Fittings".

C. Hubless EHCI with stainless steel and neoprene "Band-Aid" connections is only approved for 
use in size 2-inches. All EHCI of larger diameter shall be hub pipe.

2.03 PIPE AND FITTINGS: POLY VINYL CHLORIDE (PVC)

A. Poly (vinyl chloride (PVC) pipe and fittings specified herein are small diameter PVC with 
threaded, flanged and solvent cemented joints.

B. All poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) pipe and fittings shall be made from high impact, rigid poly (vinyl 
chloride) compounds.  Pipe and fittings shall be marked indicating size, type and schedule, 
ASTM Designation, manufacturer or trade mark, and shall bear the NSF (National Sanitation 
Foundation) seal of approval. Wherever the abbreviation PVC is used in these Specifications 
in relation to pipe and fittings, it shall mean poly (vinyl chloride) plastic pipe and fittings as 
specified herein.

C. PVC pipe shall be Schedule 80 unless Schedule 120 pipe is called for on the Plans or by the 
Engineer, Type I, Grade I, or Class 12454B with socket ends, and shall comply with ASTM 
Standard D1785, "Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe, Schedules 40, 80 and 
120".Products intended for contact with potable water shall be evaluated, tested, and certified 
for conformance with ANSI/NSF Standard No. 61 or the health effects portion of NSF Standard 
No. 14 by an acceptable certifying organization when required by the regulatory authority 
having jurisdiction.

D. Schedule 80 Socket-type fittings shall comply with ASTM Standard D2467, "Socket-Type Poly 
(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings,  Schedule 80" and D2464 "Specification for 
Threaded Poly Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 80, for threaded fittings.

E. Joining cement for PVC pipe and fittings shall comply with ASTM Standard D2564, "Solvent 
Cements for Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe and Fittings". Cemented joints shall be 
made in accordance with ASTM Standard D-2855, "Recommended Practice for Making 
Solvent-Cemented Joints with Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Pipe and Fittings".

F. Flanges:  One piece molded hub type flat face flanges, 125 pound standard as specified under 
fittings hereinbefore.

G. Gaskets:  Full faced, 1/8-inch thick, neoprene (for sewer) or SBR (for water).

Page 256



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 17

H. AISI Type 316 stainless steel, ASTM A193, Grade B8M hex bolts and ASTM A 194 Grade E8 
hex head nuts. Bolts shall be fabricated in accordance with ANSI B 1812 and provided with 
washers of the same materials as the bolts.

2.04 PIPE AND FITTINGS: COPPER

A. Pipe: Copper pipe shall be Type K for interior piping and Type K Soft Temper for exterior pip-
ing, both conforming to ASTM B88, seamless, round, drawn tubing.

B. Fittings: Solder joint fittings shall be wrought copper and bronze fittings conforming to ANSI 
B16.22 or cast brass fittings conforming to ANSI Standard B16.18.  Fittings for use with copper 
tubing shall be one of the following:

1. Cast Bronze Solder-Joint Fittings: Solder joint fittings of this type shall be cast bronze fit-
tings conforming to ANSI B16.18, "Cast Brass Solder-Joint Fittings", and ASTM Standard 
B62, "Composition  Bronze or Ounce Metal Castings", as manufactured by Chase Brass 
and Copper Co., Stanley G. Flagg & Co., Inc., or Department-approved equal.

2. Wrought Copper Solder-Joint Fittings: Solder joint fittings of this type shall be wrought 
copper fittings in accordance with ASNI B16.22, "Wrought Copper and Bronze Solder-Joint 
Pressure Fittings".

C. Solder:  Solder shall consist of 95 percent tin and 5 percent antimony.  Soldering shall be in 
conformance with Section 3 of the Copper and Brass Research Association Copper Tube 
Handbook.

D. Connection of copper pipe or fittings with galvanized pipe or fittings shall be made with dielec-
tric fittings. Connect copper pipe to direct-taps to Ductile Iron Pipe with an insulating union.  
Wrap the copper pipe with polyethylene tape at least two feet in length beyond the point of 
connection.

2.05 PIPE AND FITTINGS:  VITRIFIED CLAY

Vitrified clay pipe and fittings for gravity sewers shall be extra-strength, non-perforated. Pipe 
and fittings shall conform to the latest edition of ASTM Standard C700, "Vitrified Clay Pipe, Ex-
tra Strength, Standard Strength, and Perforated", and the following requirements.

A. Any fracture or crack passing through the socket of the pipe bell and exceeding a length of 
one-half (½) inch in any direction shall be cause for rejection of the pipe.  This requirement su-
persedes the portion of the ASTM Specifications cited above in conflict herewith.

B. Only factory bonded joints will be permitted for all vitrified clay pipe.  The joints shall have rub-
ber "O" ring type compression seals conforming to "Standard Specification for Compression 
Joints for Vitrified Clay Pipe and Fittings", ASTM C425, latest edition. Department approved 
pipe joints are Polyester Ring-Type joints as manufactured by Logan Clay Products Company 
under the trade name of "Logan-O-Ring", Can-Tex Industries under the trade name of 
"Can-O-Lock," or approved equal.

C. Where cast iron soil pipe or ductile iron pipe laterals are used with vitrified clay mains, the wye 
or tee shall be vitrified clay.  For the joint between the vitrified clay wye or tee and the lateral 

Page 257



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 18

pipe use FERNCO "Donut" No. 6-10-601 with E.H.C.I. soil pipe and "Donut" No. 6-08-607 with 
ductile iron laterals, or approved equals.  When using E.H.C.I. soil pipe with ductile iron tees or 
wyes, use transition gasket by Romac or approved equal.

2.06 HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE FOR USE IN POTABLE WATER SERVICES 

A. Smooth wall high density polyethylene pipe for use in potable water services 3.5-inch nominal 
outside diameter and less shall meet ASTM D3350, and shall be PE 335434C. Pipe shall meet 
the standards of ASTM F714, as modified herein, including the "Government/Military Procure-
ment" sections. Minimum hydrostatic design basis shall be 1600 psi. In all cases, hydrostatic 
design basis and pressure rating shall be as determined using the methods of ASTM F714. 
Pipe of this type shall be butt-fusion welded at joints. All welding of joints shall be in strict con-
formity with the recommendations of the pipe manufacturer and by a firm or individual recom-
mended to the Engineer of Record in writing by the manufacturer.

B. As a part of the shop drawing submittals, submit the following signed by a Florida Registered 
Engineer, all calculations to determine, the pipe thickness, SDR rating, allowable stresses, in 
accordance with ASME B31.8 -1992, Table A842.22 as required by the pipe manufacturer.

C. All mechanical fittings utilized with HDPE pipe and tubing services, shall conform with AN-
SI/AWWA C800-01 "Underground Service Line Valves and Fittings" as modified herein, shall
utilize AWWA Standard (Mueller) threads on tapped pipe and tapping saddles; shall be; de-
signed and manufactured to withstand a sustained working pressure of 150 psi and to restrain 
the pipe against pull out under loading beyond that causing tensile yield in the HDPE pipe or 
tubing connected. The manufacturer shall supply certification of these capabilities and fittings 
shall not be accepted or installed without said certification. If fittings are being supplied to the 
Department the certification shall ship with the fittings and payment will not be made without 
this certification. At the discretion of the Engineer, this certification may be required to be 
signed and sealed by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the state where the sup-
plying firm is located or in the State of Florida. His decision in this regard shall be final.

D. In all cases, fittings shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
1. HDPE PIPE FOR WATER SERVICES:

All 2-inch high density polyethylene pipe used for services shall be IPS-O.D. controlled
with Standard Outside Dimension Ratio (SODR) of 9, pressure rating of 200 psi at a Factor 
of Safety of 2.5 or greater, nominal outside diameter of 2.375-inches, minimum wall thick-
ness of 0.264-inches, PE 3408, all in conformance with ASTM D3035-95 "Polyethylene 
(PE) Plastic Pipe (DR-PR) Based on Controlled Outside Diameter".  Pipe shall comply with 
ANSI/AWWA C901-96 "Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and Tubing, ½ In. (13 mm) 
Through 3 In. (76 mm), for Water Service" as modified herein. Pipe shall have a (natural) 
inner core with a blue colored outer shell. 

Pipe shall have footage marks at a maximum interval of every two feet. Polyethylene mate-
rial shall have a minimum cell classification in accordance with ASTM D3350-14 "Polyeth-
ylene Plastics Pipe and Fitting Materials" of 345444D for the core, which shall be 100% 
virgin material, and 345444E for the outer shell. Note that both of these materials are UV 
stabilized as signified by the "D" for natural colored and "E" for the colored shell. Pipe shall
comply with NSF 61 or 14. 

Submit manufacturer’s certification of compliance with all of the above requirements. Certi-
fication shall ship with the pipe on material sold to the Department and shall always be 

Page 258



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 19

submitted with shop drawings and catalogue cuts. Certification shall be signed and sealed 
by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Florida.

2. HDPE TUBING FOR WATER SERVICES:

All 1-inch high density polyethylene tubing used for services shall be CTS-O.D. Controlled 
with Standard Outside Dimension Ratio (SODR) of 9, pressure rating of 200 psi, nominal 
outside diameter of 1.125-inches, minimum wall thickness of 0.125-inches, PE 3608, all in 
conformance with ASTM D2737-12 "Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Tubing".  Tubing shall com-
ply with ANSI/AWWA C901-08 "Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and Tubing, ½ In. (13 
mm) Through 3 In. (76 mm), for Water Service" as modified herein. Tubing shall have a 
(natural) inner core with a blue colored outer shell. 

Tubing shall have footage marks at a maximum interval of every two feet. Polyethylene 
material shall have a minimum cell classification in accordance with ASTM D3350-14 "Pol-
yethylene Plastics Pipe and Fitting Materials" of 345444D for the core, which shall be 
100% virgin material, and 345444E for the outer shell. Note that both of these materials 
are UV stabilized as signified by the "D" for natural colored and "E" for the colored shell. 

Tubing shall comply with NSF 61 or 14. Submit Manufacturer’ shall supply certification of 
compliance with all of the above requirements. Certification shall ship with the tubing on 
material sold to the Department and shall always be submitted with shop drawings and 
catalogue cuts. When required by the Chief, Engineering Division, Miami-Dade Water and 
Sewer Department or his designee, certification shall be signed and sealed by a profes-
sional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Florida.

2.07 WALL SLEEVES, PIPES AND CASTINGS

A. Wall Sleeves:  Wall sleeves shall be of cast iron, ductile iron or carbon steel with steel galva-
nized after fabrication as specified in Section 15065, Miscellaneous Materials, under wall pipe.  
Sleeves shall be provided with seals and shall be oversized as required for the installation of 
seals.  Sleeves shall terminate flush with finished surfaces of walls and ceilings, and shall ex-
tend 2-inches above the finished floor.  Escutcheons shall be provided at walls and floor to 
completely conceal the sleeves smaller than 3-inches.  Escutcheons shall be brass or cast 
iron, nickel plated split-type.

B. Interior:  Wall sleeves shall be installed for all piping passing through interior walls and floors, 
except where noted on the Drawings.  Sleeves shall be of sufficient size to pass the pipe with-
out binding. 

C. Wall Sleeve Seals:  Wall sleeve seals shall be modular mechanical type consisting of inter-
locking synthetic rubber links shaped to continuously fill the annular space between the pipe 
and wall sleeve.  Links shall be loosely assembled with bolts to form a continuous rubber belt 
around the pipe with a pressure plate under each bolt head and nut.  After the seal assembly 
is positioned in the sleeve, tightening of the bolts shall cause the rubber sealing elements to 
expand and provide an absolutely water-tight seal between the pipe and wall sleeve.  The syn-
thetic rubber shall be suitable for exposure to treated sewage effluent and groundwater.  Bolts, 
nuts and hardware shall be 18-8 stainless steel.  The seals shall be Link Seal as manufactured 
by Thunderline Corporation or Department-approved equal, and the wall sleeve and seal shall 
be sized as recommended by the seal manufacturer.

D. All piping passing through exterior walls and base slabs shall be provided with wall pipes.  All 

Page 259



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 20

wall pipes shall be of ductile iron and shall have an intermediate flange or waterstop located in 
the center of the wall.  Each wall pipe shall be of the same grade, thickness and interior coat-
ing as the piping to which it is joined.  Those portions of the wall pipes that are buried shall 
have a coal tar outside coating.

2.08 STEEL CASING (JACKING AND BORING)

See Section 15070, "Jacking and Boring"

2.09 STEEL PIPE (AERIAL CROSSING)

See Section 15075, "Aerial Crossings"

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 General:

A. Furnish and maintain all barricades and flashing warning lights necessary to warn of the con-
struction throughout the Project.

B. Pipe and fittings shall at all times be handled with great care to avoid damage.  Exercise par-
ticular care not to injure pipe coatings. In loading and unloading, they shall be lifted with 
cranes or hoists or slid or rolled on skidways in such manner as to avoid shock.  Under no cir-
cumstances shall this material be dropped or allowed to roll or slide against obstructions.

C All work shall be performed by skilled workmen experienced in pipeline construction.

D. All pipe and fittings shall be adequately supported by clamps, brackets, straps, concrete sup-
ports, rollers or other devices as shown and/or specified.  Supports or hangers shall be spaced 
so that maximum deflection between supports or hangers shall not exceed 0.050 inch for pipe 
filled with liquid, but shall not be further than 6 feet apart, whichever is closer, unless otherwise 
shown.  All pipe supports shall be secured to structures by approved inserts or expansion 
shields and bolts.

E. All pipe shall be thoroughly cleaned internally before being installed.  All pipes, except oxygen 
service, air and gas, shall be flushed with water and swabbed to assure removal of all foreign 
matter before installation.  Air and gas piping shall be tapped with a hammer to loosen scale or 
other foreign matter that might be within the pipe, and then thoroughly blown with a high pres-
sure air hose.  Furnish and maintain suitable air compressor.

F. Whenever possible, the pipe shall be installed with minimum 48-inches of cover.  Deviations 
shall not be installed without written approval by the Owner.

G. At all horizontal or vertical pipe deviation, install both restrained pipe and thrust blocks.  Joints 
may only be opened to adjust alignment by half of the AWWA or manufacturer's recommended 
opening (which is smaller).

H. Pipe Sleeves and Wall Casings:  Pipe sleeves and wall casings shall be provided at the loca-
tions called for on the Drawings and specified herein.  These units shall be as detailed and of 
the material as noted on the Drawings and specified herein.  They shall be accurately set in 
the concrete or masonry to the elevations shown.  All wall sleeves and castings required in the 
walls shall be in place when the walls are poured.  Ends of all wall casings and wall sleeves 

Page 260



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 21

shall be of a type consistent with the piping to be connected to them.

I. Tie Rods:  Unless otherwise indicated on the Drawings, the size and number of tie rods for a 
joint or installation shall be as recommended by the manufacturer's design chart for a working 
pressure of 150 psi.  Tie rods shall be installed as recommended by the manufacturer.

3.02 EXCAVATION FOR PIPING

A. Make all excavation necessary for the construction of the pipelines, connections, valves and 
appurtenances, to the lines and grades shown on the Plans.

B. Excavate the trench at least 6 inches below pipe laying grade as shown on the Plans.  Install
sheeting and shoring for the protection of workers in trenches, and where it is necessary for 
pipe installation and property protection or required by the Trench Safety Act.  The cost of de-
watering any excavation shall be at the Contractor's expense. The disposal of water removed 
from an excavation shall be in a manner which will not create a hazard, or be detrimental to 
the public health or to public or private property.

C. Obtain all necessary permits approving the location and proposed method of disposal before 
discharging water from any excavation into any portion of the public right-of-way or into any 
existing drainage structure or facility.  Furnish and maintain all construction signs required.

3.03 INSTALLATION OF PIPE, FITTINGS AND VALVES

A. General:

1. The design Drawings are in some cases diagrammatic.   They may not show every bend, 
off-set, elbow or other fitting which may be required in the piping for installation in the 
space allotted.  .  Install gravity lines at uniform grade to low point after field verification of 
low point invert.

2. The centerline of the pipe shall not vary by more than 2 inches from the location shown on 
the Plans and the top of the pipe shall not vary by more than 2 inches from the established 
grade, except at points where this tolerance must be changed to clear obstructions, or 
make connections.  

3. Limit onsite pipe storage to a maximum of one week. Use unloading and installation pro-
cedures that avoid cracking of the lining. If necessary, use plastic sheet bulkheads to close 
pipe ends and keep cement-mortar lining moist. Deliver the pipe alongside the pipe laying
access road over which the pipe trailer-tractors can travel under their own power. Place the 
pipe in the order in which it is to be installed and secure it from rolling. Sandbags may be 
used to support the pipe in the ditch but no pipe shall be laid on blocks, except by the writ-
ten permission of the Engineer of Record.  Do not move pipe by inserting any devices or 
pieces of equipment into the pipe barrel. Field repair linings damaged by unloading or in-
stallation procedures. Flanged joints, mechanical joints and push-on joints in cast iron pipe 
and fittings may be made under water.

B. Installation of Ductile Iron Pipe

1. Install Ductile Iron Pipe in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C600-10 “Installation of Ductile-
iron Mains and Their Appurtenances”, and the following. For potable water pipelines, com-
ply with NSF/ANSI 61 “Drinking Water System Components – Health Effects.  All bends, 

Page 261



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 22

tees, and plugs, unless otherwise specified, shall be backed with concrete to undisturbed 
ground. Provision shall be made to prevent concrete from adhering to plugs or bolts by 
wrapping in polyethylene sheet complying with ANSI/AWWA C105/A21.5-05.

2. Bolts, nuts and rubber gaskets for use in flanged and mechanical joints shall be stored un-
der cover.  During laying operations, do not place tools, clothing, or other materials in the 
pipe Gaskets shall not be exposed to heat, light or any petroleum products, shall be kept 
clean and shall not be handled with greasy or dirty hands. When pipe laying is not in pro-
gress, close the ends of the installed pipe by a child- and vermin-proof plug.

3. Assemble Flanged joints in accordance with the written recommendations of the pipe 
manufacturer. Before making up flanged joints in cast iron pipe and fittings, the back of 
each flange under the bolt heads, and the face of each flange shall have all lumps, blisters 
and excess bituminous coating removed and shall be wire brushed and wiped clean and 
dry. Cut the bore of the gaskets such that the gaskets do not protrude into the pipe when 
the flange bolts are tightened.

4. Before laying the ductile iron pipe, all lumps, blisters and excess asphaltic coating shall be 
removed from the bell and spigot ends of each pipe and the outside of the spigot and the 
inside of the bell wire brushed and wiped clean and dry.  The entire gasket groove area 
shall be free of bumps or any foreign matter which might displace the gasket.  The cleaned 
spigot and gasket shall not be allowed to touch the trench walls or trench bottom at any 
time.  Vegetable soap lubricant shall be applied in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's 
recommendations, to aid in making the joint.  Exercise caution to prevent damage to the 
gasket or the adherence of grease or particles of sand or dirt.  Deflections shall be made 
only after the joint has been assembled.

5. Cutting of ductile iron pipe for inserting valves, fittings, etc., shall be done  with a mechani-
cal pipe saw in a neat and workmanlike manner without damage to the pipe, the lining, or 
the coating.

6. Unless otherwise directed, ductile iron pipe shall be laid with the bell ends facing in the di-
rection of laying; and for lines on an appreciable slope, the bells shall, at the discretion of 
the Engineer, face upgrade. Small angular changes (less than 2.5 degrees) in horizontal 
alignment defined in the drawings by a point of inflection (PI) with no accompanying curve 
data shall be approximated as a curve by deflecting an equal amount of equal length pipe 
segments to create a curve equally distributed on both sides of the given PI. Accomplish a 
larger (greater than or equal to 2.5 degrees) change in horizontal alignment where a curve 
is not called for in the drawings through the use of an elbow placed at the station of the PI 
shown in the drawings. Small angular changes (less than 2.5 degrees) in vertical alignment 
may be accomplished by the use of pulled joints. For larger vertical deflections, place an 
elbow at the station and elevation of the vertical PI shown in the drawings.

7. Push-on and mechanical joints in ductile iron pipe and fittings shall be made in accordance 
with the manufacturer's written recommendations except as otherwise specified herein.  
Joints between push-on and mechanical joint pipe and/or fittings shall be made in accord-
ance with AWWA Standard Specifications, "Installation of Ductile Iron Water Mains and 
Appurtenances," C600-10, except that deflection at joints shall not exceed one-half of the 
manufacturer's recommended allowable deflection, or one-half of the allowable deflection 
specified in AWWA C600-10, whichever is the lesser amount.

8. Flanged joints shall be used only where indicated on the Plans.  Before making up flanged 

Page 262



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 23

joints in the pipeline, the back of each flange under the bolt heads and the face of each 
flange shall have all lumps, blisters and excess bituminous coating removed and shall be 
wire brushed and wiped clean and dry.  Flange faces shall be kept clean and dry when 
making up the joint, and the workmen shall exercise caution to prevent damage to the gas-
ket or the adherence of grease or particles of sand or dirt.  Bolts and nuts shall be tight-
ened by opposites in order to keep flange faces square with each other, and to insure that 
bolt stresses are evenly distributed.

9. Bolts and nuts in flanged and mechanical joints shall be tightened in accordance with the 
written recommendations of the pipe manufacturer for a leak-free joint. Exercise caution to 
prevent overstress. Torque wrenches shall be used until, in the opinion of the Engineer, 
the workmen have become accustomed to the proper amount of pressure to apply on 
standard wrenches.

C. Installation of PVC Pipe:

1. In the installation of glue joint PVC pipe, the pipe shall first be cut square and smooth.  
Wipe all surfaces to be connected with a cloth moistened with an appropriate solvent and 
remove any foreign matter from socket of fitting.  Using an ordinary paint brush of width 
about equal to the nominal pipe size, apply a generous coat of cement to inside and  
shoulder of socket, flowing on but not brushing out.  A similar coat shall then be applied to 
the end of the pipe for at least the same distance on the pipe as the depth of socket, and to 
the cut end.  Pipe and fittings shall then be pressed firmly together and the pipe turned a 
quarter to a half turn to evenly distribute the cement. The cementing and joining operation 
must not exceed one minute.  Allow 24 hours set-up time before applying pressure.  Sand 
shall be used as backfill material around pipe installed underground.

2. Thread Sealant:  Teflon tape.

3. All rigid PVC pipe shall be cut, made up, and installed in accordance with the pipe manu-
facturer's recommendations.  Plastic pipe shall be laid by snaking the pipe from one side of 
the trench to the other.  Offset shall be as recommended by the manufacturer for the max-
imum temperature variation between time of solvent welding and during operation.

4. Schedule 80 pipe shall not be threaded.  Use Schedule 80 threaded nipple where neces-
sary to connect to threaded valve or fitting.

5. Only strap wrenches shall be used for tightening threaded plastic joints, and care shall be 
taken not to over tighten these fittings.

6. Provide adequate ventilation when working with pipe joint solvent cement.

7. Testing:  All lines shall be hydrostatically tested at the pressures specified elsewhere here-
in or at the design pressures.

8. Supports And Hangers:  In accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.

D. Installation of Copper Pipe:

1. Tubing above ground shall, whenever possible, be run in full lengths between fittings, 
valves and connections and joints shall be kept to a minimum. All connections shall be 
made without sharp bends or kinks in the tubing. Above ground tubing shall be supported 
at short intervals to prevent sagging and vibration.

Page 263



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 24

2. All copper pipe shall be reamed to full diameter before joining. The ends of pipe and the 
inside of fittings shall be cleaned and flux applied to the entire area of pipe to be soldered.

E. Joint Pipe:

1. Threaded Pipe:  Ream all pipe after cutting and before threading.  Use non-hardening 
pipe compound "Tite-Seal" or approved equal, on male threads only.

2. Provide nipples of same material and weight as pipe used. Provide extra strong nipples 
when length of unthreaded part of nipple is less than 1-1/2".

3. Provide reducing fittings rather than bushings where changes in pipe sizes occur.

4. Provide dielectric unions or flanges between copper and steel piping and between brass-
ware and steel.  Do not use steel and copper piping in the same system without such iso-
lation.

F. Unions:  Provide unions or flanges in all domestic water service lines at each piece of equip-
ment, specialty valves or at other locations required for ready disconnect.

G. Pipe Protection:

1. Paint all un-insulated metal (ductile iron or steel) piping underground with two coats of as-
phaltic paint.

2. Wrap soil pipe that touches metal or is exposed to masonry with a layer of 6 mil polyeth-
ylene.

3. Spirally wrap all pipe lines embedded in concrete with two layers of 30 lb. felt prior to plac-
ing the concrete.

4. Coat all exposed threads on galvanized steel pipe after assembly with two coats of zinc 
chromate.

H. Cleaning and Testing: All of the piping installed under this project shall be tested as follows 
and as directed by the Engineer.

1. With exceptions as noted below, all ductile iron piping installed under this Contract shall be 
cleaned and tested according to Paragraph I hereinbelow in this Section:
a) Only potable water piping shall be disinfected.
b) No leakage shall be permitted for flanged piping.
c) No leakage shall be permitted for any type of above ground piping.

2. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere herein, all PVC pressure system bushings and gal-
vanized steel piping shall be tested at 100 psig.  No leakage will be permitted.

I. Installation of Aboveground and Exposed Piping

1. Aboveground and exposed pipe fittings, valves and accessories shall be installed as 
shown or indicated on the Drawings.

Page 264



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 25

2. Piping shall be cut accurately to measurements established at the job site and shall be 
worked into place without springing or forcing, properly clearing all equipment access are-
as and openings.  Changes in sizes shall be made with appropriate reducing fittings rather 
than bushings.  Pipe connections shall be made in accordance with the details shown and 
manufacturer's recommendations.  Open ends of pipe lines shall be properly capped or 
plugged during installation to keep dirt and other foreign material out of the system.  Pipe 
supports and hangers shall be provided where indicated and as required to insure ade-
quate support of the piping.

3. Welded connections shall be made in conformity with the requirements of AWWA Standard 
C 206 and shall be done only by qualified welders.  The Engineer may, at his option, re-
quire certificates that welders employed on the work are qualified in conformity with the re-
quirements of this standard and/or sample welds to verify the qualifications of the welders.  
Before testing, field welded joints shall be coated with the same material as used for coat-
ing its pipe in accordance with the requirements of AWWA.

4. Flanged joints shall be made up by installing the gasket between the flanges.  The threads 
of the bolts and the faces of the gaskets shall be coated with a suitable lubricant immedi-
ately before installation.

5. Joints using Dresser couplings shall be made up as recommended by the manufacturer.

6. Use of perforated band iron (plumber's strap), wire or chain as pipe hangers will not be ac-
ceptable.  Supports for pipe less than 1-1/2 inches nominal size shall not be more than 
8-feet on centers and pipe 2-inches nominal size and larger shall be supported at not more 
than 10-feet on centers, unless otherwise indicated.  Supports for PVC pipe shall be spaced 
one-half the distance specified above unless otherwise indicated. Any noticeable sagging 
shall be corrected by the addition of extra supports at the Contractor's expense.

J. INSTALLATION OF HDPE SERVICES

Furnish and install a 10 gauge stranded copper blue tracer wire above all HDPE services.

3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. All water mains shall be flushed to remove all sand, debris, rock and other foreign matter. Dis-
pose of the flushing water without causing a nuisance or property damage.

B. Pressure and Leakage Testing:  Hydrostatically test all pressure pipe.  Test Ductile Iron Pipe
mains in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C600-10 once all backfill is in place and fully compact-
ed, and after all thrust blocks have cured to their design strength.  Do not test against closed 
valves.  All pumps, piping and gauges shall be furnished, installed and operated by the Con-
tractor and all such equipment and devices and their installation shall be approved by the En-
gineer. Pump shall be of a non-pulsating type suitable for this application and gauge accuracy 
certification may be required at the Engineer of Record's discretion.   All pressure and leakage 
testing shall be done in the presence of a representative of the Department as a condition 
precedent to the approval and acceptance of the system.

C Disinfection:  

Page 265



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 26

Disinfect in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C651-14 – Disinfecting Water Mains. During the pe-
riod that the chlorine solution or slug is in the section of pipeline, open and close valves to ob-
tain a chlorine residual at hydrants and other pipeline appurtenances. Swab exposed faces of 
valves and blind flanges prior to bolting flanges in place with a 1% sodium hypochlorite solu-
tion. Disinfect isolation valves, pipe, and appurtenances per AWWA C651, Section 4.7. 

Flush with potable water until discolored water, mud, and debris are eliminated. Swab interior 
of pipe and fittings with a 1% sodium hypochlorite solution. After disinfection, flush with potable 
water again until water is free of chlorine odor. After confirming the chlorine residual, flush the 
excess chlorine solution from the pipeline until the chlorine concentration in the water leaving 
the pipe is either within 0.5 mg/L of the replacement water or no higher than that generally 
prevailing in the distribution system.

Discharge of chlorinated water into watercourses or surface waters is regulated by the Nation-
al Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). Disposal of the chlorinated disinfection 
water and the flushing water is the Contractor's responsibility. Schedule the rate of flow and 
locations of discharges in advance to permit review and coordination with Owner and cogni-
zant regulatory authorities. For measuring chlorine concentration, supply and use a medium 
range, drop count, DPD drop dilution method kit per AWWA C651, Appendix A.1. Maintain kits 
in good working order available for immediate test of residuals at point of sampling.

D. Tests for Drain and Gravity Sewer Lines:

1. Drain and gravity sewer lines shall be tested for infiltration and exfiltration.

2. The allowable limits of infiltration or exfiltration or leakage for the drain or sewer lines, or 
any portion thereof shall not exceed a rate of 100 gallons per inch of internal pipe diameter 
per mile of pipe per 24 hours with no allowance for laterals or manholes. Duration of test 
shall be a minimum of two hours.

3. Any part or all of the system may be tested for infiltration or exfiltration, as directed by the 
Engineer.  Prior to testing for infiltration, the system shall be pumped out so that normal in-
filtration conditions exist at the time of testing.  The amounts of infiltration or exfiltration 
shall be determined by pumping into or out of calibrated drums, or by other approved 
methods.

4. The exfiltration test will be conducted by filling the portion of the system being tested with 
water to a level which will provide a minimum head of 2-feet in a lateral connected to the 
test portion, or, in the event there are no laterals in the test portion, a minimum difference 
in elevation of 5-feet between the crown of the highest portion of the drain or sewer and 
the test level.

5. Where infiltration or exfiltration exceeds the allowable limits specified herein, the defective 
pipe, joints, or other faulty construction shall be located and repaired by the Contractor.

6. Furnish all labor, equipment and materials and shall conduct all testing required, under the 
direction of the Engineer of Record. No separate payment will be made for this work and 
the cost for this work shall be included in the prices quoted in the Proposal.

7. Locate and repair all leaks until the leakage is reduced to the limits specified. Any observed 
leaks or obviously defective joints or pipes shall be repaired or replaced as directed by the 
Engineer of Record, even though the total leakage is below that specified above.

Page 266



MDWASD 1/2016

15060 - 27

END OF SECTION

Page 267



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 1 R-2 

 
 SECTION 15100 
 
 VALVES, GENERAL 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 SCOPE 
 

A. The Contractor shall provide all tools, supplies, materials, equipment, and labor necessary 
for furnishing,  installing, adjusting, and testing of all valves and appurtenant work, complete 
and operable. For buried valves, the Contractor shall furnish and install valve boxes to grade, 
with covers, extensions, and position indicators. 

 
B. The provisions of this Section shall apply to all valves and valve operators called out in the 

various Sections of these Specifications except where otherwise specified. Valves and 
operators in particular locations may require a combination of units, sensors, limit switches, 
and controls specified in other sections of these Specifications. 

 
C. All valves specified herein shall be furnished with an affidavit from the manufacturer(s) 

certifying that the valves furnished comply with the applicable provisions of the AWWA 
specifications, as modified herein. That they were factory tested in accordance with the 
AWWA Standard Leakage and Hydrostatic Tests as modified herein, with a certified test 
report furnished to the Department for each valve. 

 
1.02 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 
 

A. Piping, General 
 

B. Painting 
 

C. Equipment General Provisions 
 

D. Electrical 
 

E. Valve (by type) Specification Sections 
 
1.03 REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS 
 

A. Codes:  All codes, as referenced herein, are specified in Section entitled "Reference 
Standards."  As used herein, "ANSI" denotes the American National Standards Institute; 
"AWWA", the American Water Works Association; and "ASTM", the American Society for 
Testing and Materials. 

 
B. Commercial Standards: 

 
ANSI B16.1  Cast Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings, Class 25, 125, 

250, and 800. 
 

Page 268



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 2 R-2 

ANSI B16.5  Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings, Steel Nickel Alloy and 
Other Special Alloys. 

 
ANSI/ASME B1.20.1 General Purpose Pipe Threads (Inch). 

 
ANSI/ASME B31.1 Power Piping. 

 
ASTM A 36   Specification for Structural Steel. 

 
ASTM A 48  Specification for Gray Iron Castings. 

 
ASTM A 126  Specification for Gray Iron Castings for Valves, Flanges, and 

Pipe Fittings. 
 

ASTM A 536  Specification for Ductile Iron Castings. 
 

ASTM B 61  Specification for Steam or Valve Bronze Castings. 
 

ASTM B 62  Specification for Composition Bronze or Ounce Metal 
Castings. 

 
ASTM B 148  Specification for Aluminum-Bronze Castings. 

 
ASTM B 584  Specification for Copper Alloy Sand Castings for General 

Applications. 
 

ANSI/AWWA C500 Gate Valves for Water and Sewerage Systems. 
 

AWWA C550  Protective Interior Coatings for Valves and Hydrants. 
 
1.04 MANUFACTURER 
 

All valves shall be the product of domestic manufacturing firms which have been engaged in 
the production of valves for not less than five (5) years. 

 
1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

A. Valve Testing: The Contractor is advised that he is required to furnish all labor, materials and 
equipment necessary to pressure test each valve furnished by himself or the Department, 
bi-directionally, prior to installation, to the satisfaction of the Engineer of Record. If the valves 
are available, the tests shall be performed prior to the start of construction. Otherwise, the 
tests shall be performed as soon as the valves are available to afford the maximum time for 
any corrective work required. The Contractor shall include all costs for this requirement under 
the appropriate Proposal Item(s), no other compensation will be provided. 

 
B. Bronze Parts:  Unless otherwise specified, all interior bronze parts of valves shall conform to 

the requirements of ASTM B 62. 
 

C. Provide valves that have the manufacturer's name and valve rating cast in body. 
 

Page 269



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 3 R-2 

1.06 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Shop Drawing:  Shop drawings of all valves and operators including associated wiring 
diagrams and electrical data. 

 
B. Approved Drawings: The Engineer of Record's drawings, which constitute an integral part of 

this Contract, indicate the general layout of the complete system. Field verification of scale 
dimensions on plans is directed since actual locations, distances and levels will be governed 
by actual field conditions. The Contractor shall also review architectural, structural, and 
mechanical plans and shall adjust his work to conform to all conditions indicated thereon. 
Discrepancies shown on different plans, or between plans and actual field conditions, or 
between plans and specifications, shall promptly be brought to the attention of the Engineer 
of Record, for a decision.  All items not specifically mentioned in the specifications or noted 
on the drawings, but which can be reasonably assumed as necessary to make a complete 
working installation shall be included. 

 
 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 VALVES 
 

A. General:  The Contractor shall furnish all valves, gates, valve operating units, stem 
extensions, operators and other accessories as shown or specified.  All valves and gates 
shall be new and of current manufacture.  All non-buried valves, 6-inch and larger, shall 
have operators with position indicators.  Where buried, these valves shall be provided with 
valve boxes, covers and valve extensions.  Valves mounted higher than 6-feet above 
working level shall be provided with chain operators.  All valves shall have a minimum 
design pressure rating of 150 psi unless otherwise specified elsewhere herein. 

 
B. Cast iron parts of valves shall meet the requirements of ASTM A126, "Standard 

Specifications for Gray Iron Castings for Valves, Flanges and Pipe Fittings, Class 'B'."  
Flanged ends shall be flat-faced and have bolt circle and bolt patterns conforming to ANSI 
B16.1 Class 125. 

 
C. All castings shall be clean and sound, without defects of any kind and no plugging, welding or 

repairing of defects will be permitted.  All bolt heads and nuts shall be hexagonal conforming 
to ANSI B18.2.  Gaskets shall be full-face and made of synthetic elastomers in conformance 
with ANSI B16.21 suitable for the service characteristics, especially chemical compatibility 
and temperature.  Non-ferrous alloys of various types shall be used for parts of valves as 
specified.  Where no definite specification is given, the material shall be the recognized 
acceptable standard for that particular application. 

 
D. All buried valves shall be provided with cast-iron valve boxes unless otherwise indicated.  

The boxes shall conform with Department Standards and be installed perpendicularly, 
centered around and covering the upper portions of the valve operator.  The top of each 
valve box shall be placed flush with finish grade unless otherwise indicated on the Drawings.  
Valve boxes shall be as specified elsewhere in this Section. 

 

Page 270



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 4 R-2 

E. All buried valves and other valves located below a concrete operating deck or level, specified 
or noted to be key operated, shall have an operator to finish grade or deck level, non-rising 
stem, a 2-inch square AWWA nut with skirt, and cover or box and cover, as may be required. 

 
F. Valve Flanges: The flanges of valves shall be in accordance with Section 15060, "Piping and 

Fittings." 
 

G. Gate Valve Stems: Gate valve stems shall be of bronze in accordance with AWWA C515, 
containing not more than 5 percent of zinc nor more than 2 percent of aluminum.  

 
H. Protective Coating:  Except where otherwise specified, ferrous surfaces, exclusive of 

stainless steel surfaces, in the fluid passages of all valves 4-inch and larger shall receive an 
epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C550.  Flange faces of valves shall not be epoxy 
coated.  The  valve manufacturer, shall certify in writing that such coating has been applied 
and tested in the manufacturing plant prior to shipment, in accordance with these 
Specifications. Exterior coating shall be asphalt varnish conforming to Federal Specification 
TT-C-494A. 

 
I. Valve Labeling:  A label shall be provided on all shut-off valves exclusive of hose bibs and 

chlorine cylinder valves.  The label shall be of 1/16-inch brass or stainless steel, minimum 2 
inches by 4 inches in size, and shall be permanently attached to the valve or on the wall 
adjacent to the valve or as indicated by the Department. 

 
2.02 VALVE OPERATORS 
 

A. General 
 

1. All butterfly valves, plug valves over 8-inch size and gate valves installed horizontally  
shall be furnished with geared operators, provided by the manufacturer. All valves of a 
particular size and pressure rating by a given manufacturer shall be supplied with the 
same operator. No variation will be permitted during the contract.  All valve operators, 
regardless of type, shall be installed, adjusted, and tested by the valve manufacturer at 
the manufacturing plant.  Operator orientation shall be verified with the Department 
prior to fabrication.  If this requirement is not met, changes to orientation shall be 
made at no cost the Department. 

 
2. All operators shall turn counter-clockwise to open.  Operators shall have the open 

direction clearly and permanently marked.   Field adjustment and testing of the 
operators and valves to ensure proper installation and operation shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

 
B. Manual Operators 

 
1. All manual operators shall be equipped with AWWA square nuts, handwheels or chain 

drives as appropriate. Some small (6-inch or less) valves may be lever operated if so 
specified elsewhere herein.  Where buried, the valves shall have extensions with 
square nuts or floor stands as indicated on the Drawings.  Valves mounted higher 
than 6 feet above floor or operating level shall have chain operators with chain 
terminating 4 feet above operating level.  

 

Page 271



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 5 R-2 

2. Operation of valves and gates shall be designed so that the effort required to operate 
the handwheel, lever or chain shall not exceed 40 pounds applied at the extremity of 
the wheel or lever.  The handwheels on valves 14 inches and smaller shall not be less 
than 8 inches in diameter, and on valves larger than 14 inches the handwheel shall not 
be less than 12 inches in diameter. 

 
3. Chainwheel operator shall be fabricated of malleable iron with pocketed type 

chainwheels with chain guards and guides.  Chainwheel operators shall be marked 
with an arrow and the word "open" indicating direction to open.  The operators shall 
have galvanized smooth welded link type chain.  Chain that is crimped or has links 
with exposed ends is not acceptable. 

 
2.03 TORQUE LIMITING DEVICE 
 

Each butterfly valve shall be provided with a torque limiting device designed to protect the actuator 
and valve parts. The device shall consist of an overtorque protection mechanism enclosed in a 
hermetically sealed cast iron housing. The mechanism shall be permanently lubricated and factory 
set to trip between 200 and 220 ft. lbs. of applied torque. The housing shall have integrally cast, 
2-inch AWWA operating nut and matching socket to operate and to fit over the actuator or 
extension shaft nuts, respectively. The socket shall be provided with a set screw to fit the device. 
The direction of rotation shall be permanently shown with word and arrow next to the operating 
nut. The entire device shall be coated inside and out with a 2-part epoxy. The torque limiting 
device shall be as manufactured by Annspach Controls Company of St. Louis, Missouri, or 
approved equal. 

 
2.04 FLOOR STANDS 
 

Floor stands shall be cast iron, non-rising stem type with lockable hand wheel operator, valve 
position indicator and stainless steel or bronze extension stem.  Hand wheel shall be lockable in 
the full open and full closed positions.  The floor stand shall be furnished with an armored padlock 
and six keys.  Lock shall be as manufactured by Master, Schlage or equal.  Floor stand shall be 
standard pattern type as manufactured by Clow Corporation, or equal. 

 
2.05 VALVE BOXES 

 
Cast iron valve boxes shall be provided for all valves installed  underground. All valves boxes 
shall be No. 2 or 3 (for water) and No. 52 or 53 (for sewer) in accordance with Department 
Standards. 

 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 INSTALLATION 
 

A. General: All work shall be performed by skilled workmen experienced in similar installations. 
All valves shall be adequately supported by clamps, brackets, straps, concrete supports or 
other devices as shown or specified. All supports shall be secured to structures by approved 
inserts or expansion shields and bolts. 

 

Page 272



MDWASD 9/2015 
 

 
 15100 - 6 R-2 

B. All valves shall be thoroughly cleaned internally before being installed. Installation of valves 
shall be done in accordance with construction methods specified in "Pipes and Fittings" 
Section of these Specifications. 

 
C. Install valves as recommended by manufacturer. 

 
D. Install valves so that they are easily accessible for operation, visual inspection and preventive 

maintenance. 
 

E. Location of valves and chain operators: Install valves so as to be accessible for operation and 
free from interferences when operated. Position so that leakage will not contact any electrical 
equipment that may be located below. 

 
F. The installation of all underground valves shall include a valve box and riser in accordance 

with the Details shown on the Plans or in the Standard Details for the various sizes and types 
of valves to be installed. Riser pipes and valve boxes shall be carefully centered and set flush 
with the finished grade if in paving, or with the top of the ground if out of paved areas. All valve 
boxes shall be held in position with concrete as shown on the Plans or in the Standard 
Details. 

 
G. Upon completion of the Project, but prior to final acceptance, the Contractor in the presence 

of the Engineer, shall fully open each valve installed by him, except at connections to existing 
Department mains. For valves 16-inch and larger, the Contractor, shall count the number of 
turns required to operate each valve from a completely closed to a fully opened position, and 
shall paint the number on the bottom of the valve box lid or manhole cover. Valves at 
connections to existing Department mains shall only be operated by Department forces. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



24-INCH AND ABOVE DIAMETER DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS SHALL BE RESTRAINED BY

ANY THRUST BLOCKS AND ANCHORS ARE TO BE DESIGNED BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.  SIGNED 
AND SEALED CALCULATIONS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO MDWASD FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4/10/2014 J. F.

Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



130

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2017-001

Appendix C

1. Florida Department of Environmental Protection State Revolving Fund Program
Supplementary Conditions.  The Contactor is required to comply with these
Supplementary Conditions and include all costs associated with complying with these
Supplemental Conditions in the overall cost of the Total Bid Amount.

2. Wage Rates, FL168 – Heavy Construction Projects

3. American Iron and Steel Guidance for State Revolving Fund Projects

Page 297



Revised July 2015 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS (CONSTRUCTION)

Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

State Revolving Fund Program 

Supplementary Conditions 

for

Formally Advertised 

Construction Procurement 

Page 298



Revised July 2015 

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Article
Number Article Title Page

1 DEFINITIONS FDEP-1 

2 PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT FDEP-2 

3 PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS FDEP-2 

4 RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES FDEP-2 

5 CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FDEP-3 

6 BONDS AND INSURANCE FDEP-3 

7 AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT FDEP-4 

8 ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN;
CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES FDEP-4 

9 FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE FDEP-4 

10 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES FDEP-4 

11 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549) FDEP-5 

12 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE
ORDER 11246) FDEP-6 

13 IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 FDEP-12 
STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116) 

14 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE FDEP-12 

15 FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION FDEP-12 

16 AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION FDEP-12 

17 PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES FDEP-12 

Appendix Title Page 

A CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS FDEP-13 

B GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES FDEP-14 

C FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION FDEP-15 

D AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION FDEP-23 

Page 299



FDEP-1
Revised July 2015

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

The intent of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Supplementary Conditions is to complement and 
supplement other provisions of the Bidding Documents.  However, if there is any conflict between the FDEP Supplementary 
Conditions and other provisions of the Bidding Documents, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions shall take precedence over 
the other provisions except when the other provisions are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP Supplementary 
Conditions.  When other provisions of the Bidding Documents are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP 
Supplementary Conditions, the more stringent provisions shall apply.

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in these Supplementary Conditions (except in the appendices to these Supplementary Conditions), the 
following terms have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

1.1 Addendum -A written or graphic instrument that is issued prior to the opening of bids and that clarifies, corrects, or 
changes the Bidding Documents.

1.2 Agreement or Contract - The written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor covering the Work to be 
performed and furnished; these Supplementary Conditions and other Contract Documents are attached to the 
Agreement/Contract and made a part thereof as provided therein.

1.3 Bid - The offer or proposal of a bidder submitted on the prescribed form and setting forth the price(s) for the Work 
to be performed and furnished.

1.4 Bidder - Any person, firm, or corporation that submits a bid directly to the Owner.

1.5 Bidding Documents - The Advertisement for Bids or the Invitation to Bid, the Instructions to Bidders or the 
Information for Bidders, the Bid Form, the proposed Contract Documents, and all addenda.

1.6 Bond - An instrument of security.

1.7 Change Order - A document that is recommended by the Engineer and signed by the Contractor and the Owner; that 
authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time; and 
that is issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract.

1.8 Contract Documents - The Agreement/Contract; the Contractor's Bid when attached as an exhibit to the 
Agreement/Contract; the Performance and Payment Bond(s); the General Conditions; the Supplementary Conditions 
(including these Supplementary Conditions); the Specifications (written technical descriptions of material, equipment, 
construction systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable 
thereto); the Drawings (drawings that show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and furnished); all 
addenda that pertain to the Contract Documents; and all change orders.

1.9 Contract Time - The number of days or the date stated in the Contract Documents for completion of the Work.

1.10 Contractor - The person, firm, or corporation with whom or which the Owner enters into the Agreement/Contract.

1.11 Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract - The date indicated in the Agreement/Contract on which the 
Agreement/Contract becomes effective, or if no such date is indicated in the Agreement/Contract, the date on which the 
Agreement/Contract is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver the Agreement/Contract.

1.12 Engineer - The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the Contract Documents.

1.13 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) - A historically Black college or university or a business that is (a) certified as 
socially and economically disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration, (b) certified as an MBE by a state or 
federal agency, or (c) an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled by minority
group members.  (A minority group member is an individual who is a citizen of the United States and one of the 
following:  [i] Black American; [ii] Hispanic American [with origins from Puerto Rico, Mexico, Cuba, or South or Central 
America]; [iii] Native American [American Indian, Eskimo, Aleut, or native Hawaiian]; or [iv] Asian-Pacific American 

Page 300



FDEP-2 
Revised July 2015 

[with origins from Japan, China, the Philippines, Vietnam, Korea, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific, 
Northern Marianas, Laos, Cambodia, Taiwan, or the Indian Subcontinent].)

1.14 Notice to Proceed -The written notice given by the Owner to the Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract 
Time will commence to run and on which the Contractor shall start to perform its obligations under the Contract 
Documents.

1.15 Owner - The local government (municipality, county, district, or authority; or any agency thereof; or a combination 
of two or more of the foregoing acting jointly) with which the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP)
may execute, or has executed, a State Revolving Fund loan agreement and for which the Work is to be provided.

1.16 Project - The total construction or facilities described in a State Revolving Fund loan agreement between the FDEP
and the Owner, of which the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part.

1.17 Sponsor – The recipient of the State Revolving Fund loan agreement that provides funds for the project.

1.18 Subcontract - A direct contract between a subcontractor and the Contractor, or any other subcontractor at any tier, 
for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including construction) necessary to 
complete the Work.

1.19 Subcontractor - A person, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor, or any other 
subcontractor at any tier, for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including 
construction) necessary to complete the Work.

1.20 Successful Bidder - The lowest responsive, responsible bidder to whom or which the Owner intends to award the 
Agreement/Contract.

1.21 Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) - A business that is (a) certified as a WBE by a state or federal agency or (b) 
an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled/operated by women.  (Determination 
of whether a business is at least 51-percent owned by women shall be made without regard to community property laws 
[e.g., an otherwise qualified WBE that is 51-percent owned by a married woman in a community property state will not be 
disqualified because the married woman's husband has a 50-percent interest in the married woman's share of the business; 
similarly, a business that is 51-percent owned by a married man and 49-percent owned by women will not become a 
qualified WBE by virtue of the married man's wife having a 50-percent interest in the married man's share of the 
business].)

1.22 Work - The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be 
performed and furnished under the Contract Documents; Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor, 
furnishing material and equipment, and incorporating material and equipment into the construction as required by the 
Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

2.1.  The Owner expects to finance this Agreement/Contract with assistance from the FDEP, which administers a State 
Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available by grants from the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  Neither the State of Florida nor the United States (nor any of their departments, 
agencies, or employees) will be a party to this Agreement/Contract or any lower-tier subcontract.

ARTICLE 3 - PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

3.1.  This Agreement/Contract and the Owner's solicitation and award of this Agreement/Contract are subject to requirements 
contained in Chapter 62-503 (Revolving Loan Program) and/or Chapter 62-552, Florida Administrative Code as applicable. 

ARTICLE 4 - RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES

Resolution of Protests Concerning the Owner's Solicitation and/or Award of this Agreement/Contract:

Page 301



FDEP-3 
Revised July 2015 

4.1.  Protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract must be filed in writing with the 
Owner to be considered.

4.2.  All timely written protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract are to be 
resolved in accordance with the Owner's dispute resolution process.  A copy of the ordinance(s), resolution(s), or written 
policy (policies) that set forth the Owner's dispute resolution process is included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents or is to 
be made available by the Owner upon request.

4.3.  Neither the (FDEP) nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, protests concerning the Owner's 
solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract.  Protest decisions made by the Owner cannot be appealed to the FDEP 
or the USEPA.

Resolution of Claims and Disputes Between the Owner and the Contractor:

4.4.  Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, all claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor 
arising out of, or relating to, the Contract Documents or the breach thereof are to be decided by arbitration (if the Owner and 
the Contractor mutually agree) or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Florida.

4.5.  Neither the FDEP nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, claims and disputes between the 
Owner and the Contractor.

ARTICLE 5 - CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

5.1.  All changes to the Bidding Documents made subsequent to the FDEP's acceptance of the Bidding Documents and prior to 
the opening of bids are to be documented via addendum (addenda) to the Bidding Documents; all changes to the Contract 
Documents made after the opening of bids are to be documented by change order(s) to the Contract Documents.  The Owner 
shall submit all addenda and change orders to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

Bid Guarantees:

6.1.  Each bidder's bid is to be accompanied by a bid guarantee made payable to the Owner in an amount at least equal to five 
percent of the bidder's maximum bid price and in the form of a certified check or bid bond.

Performance and Payment Bond(s):

6.2.  The Contractor shall furnish a combined performance and payment bond in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the 
Contract Price (or, if required elsewhere in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish separate performance and 
payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the Contract Price) as security for the faithful performance 
and payment of all the Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents.  This(these) bond(s) are to be delivered to the
Owner by the Contractor along with the executed Agreement/Contract.  The Owner shall forward a copy of this (these) 
bond(s) to the FDEP. 

Insurance:

6.3.  The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during
the period of construction, such liability insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and furnished and as will
provide protection from claims that may arise out of, or result from, the Contractor's performance and furnishing of the Work
(whether the Work is to be performed or furnished by the Contractor or any subcontractor at the Work site) and the 
Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents.  This insurance is to include workers' compensation insurance, 
comprehensive general liability insurance, comprehensive automobile liability insurance, and contractual liability insurance 
applicable to the Contractor's indemnification obligations and is to be written for not less than the limits of liability and
coverages determined by the Owner or required by law, whichever is greater.

Page 302



FDEP-4 
Revised July 2015 

6.4.  The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during 
the period of construction, property insurance upon the Work at the Work site in an amount equal to the full replacement cost 
of the Work or the full insurable value of the Work.  This insurance is to include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor,
and all subcontractors at the Work site (all of whom are to be listed as insured or additional insured parties); is to insure 
against the perils of fire and extended coverage; and is to include "all-risk" insurance for physical loss or damage due to theft,
vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse, water damage, and/or all other risks against which coverage is obtainable.

6.5. Before any Work at the Work site is started, the Contractor shall deliver to the Owner certificates of insurance that the 
Contractor is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions 
of the Contract Documents, and the Owner shall deliver to the Contractor certificates of insurance that the Owner is required
to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions of the Contract 
Documents.

ARTICLE 7 - AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

7.1. If this Agreement/Contract is awarded, it is to be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  A fixed price
(lump sum or unit price or both) agreement/contract is to be used.  A clear explanation of the method of evaluating bids and 
the basis for awarding this Agreement/Contract are included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents.  All bids may be rejected 
when in the best interest of the Owner. After the contract has been awarded, the Owner shall give the Contractor a notice to 
proceed fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run.  The Owner shall forward a copy of this notice to 
proceed to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 8 - ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN; CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES

8.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Owner, within ten calendar days after the Effective Date of this Agreement/Contract, 
an itemized construction cost breakdown and construction and payment schedules.

8.1.1.  The itemized construction cost breakdown, or schedule of values, is to include quantities and prices of items 
aggregating the Contract Price and is to subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis 
for progress payments during construction.  Such prices are to include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit 
applicable to each item of Work.

8.1.2. The construction, or progress, schedule is to indicate the Contractor's estimated starting and completion dates for 
the various stages of the Work and is to show both the projected cost of Work completed and the projected percentage of 
Work completed versus Contract Time.

8.1.3.  The payment schedule is to show the Contractor's projected payments cumulatively by month.

ARTICLE 9 – FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE

9.1. Authorized representatives of the Owner, the FDEP, and the USEPA shall have access to, for the purpose of 
inspection, the Work site(s), any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor that are pertinent to this 
Agreement/Contract at any reasonable time.  The Contractor shall retain all books, documents, papers, and records pertinent 
to this Agreement/Contract for a period of five years after receiving and accepting final payment under this 
Agreement/Contract.

NOTE:   ARTICLE 10 ONLY APPLIES TO FEDERAL CAP GRANT PROJECTS

ARTICLE 10 - DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

10.1 A goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation in
the Work, and a goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) 
participation in the Work.  If bidders or prospective contractors (including the Contractor) intend to let any lower-tier goods

Page 303



FDEP-5 
Revised July 2015 

or services (including construction) subcontracts for any portion of the Work, they shall physically include these percentage 
goals for MBE and WBE participation in all solicitations for subcontracts and shall take good faith efforts to assure that 
MBEs and WBEs are utilized, when possible, as sources of goods and services.  Good faith efforts are to include the 
following:  

10.1.1.   Require Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest 
extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities. For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government 
recipients, this will include placing DBEs on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.  

10.1.2.   Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and arrange time frames for contracts and 
establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by 
DBEs in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a 
minimum of 30 calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date.  

10.1.3. Consider in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with DBEs. 
For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically 
feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBEs in the competitive process. 

10.1.4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle 
individually.

10.1.5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development 
Agency of the Department of Commerce.  

10.1.6. If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, require the prime contractor to take the steps in paragraphs 10.1.1 
through 10.1.5 of this section.

10.2.   Within ten calendar days after being notified of being the apparent Successful Bidder, the apparent Successful 
Bidder shall submit to the Owner documentation of the affirmative steps it has taken to utilize Minority and Women's 
Business Enterprises (MBEs and WBEs) in the Work and documentation of its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the 
Work.  The Owner shall keep this documentation on file and shall forward to the FDEP a copy of the apparent Successful 
Bidder's documentation concerning its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the Work.

ARTICLE 11 - DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549)

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions

11.1. The bidder certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal 
department or agency.

11.2. Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall 
attach an explanation to this proposal.

11.3 . The bidder also certifies that it and its principals:

11.3.1. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state 
anti-trust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3.2. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state
or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 11.3.1 of this certification; and

11.3.3. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, state 
or local) terminated for cause or default.  Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the above, such owner shall attach 
an explanation to this proposal.

Page 304



FDEP-6 
Revised July 2015 

11.3.4. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was entered into.  If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency with 
which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

11.3.5. The bidder shall incorporate the foregoing requirements 11.1 through 11.3 in all subcontracts.

ARTICLE 12 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

12.1. Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 
11246). (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding $10,000)

12.1.1. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal 
Employment Specifications" set forth herein.

12.1.2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the 
Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in Florida, are as follows:

Goal for female participation:  6.9 percent statewide

Goal for minority participation: (See Appendix B at FDEP-20 for goals for each county)

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally assisted) 
performed in the covered area.  If the contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the 
covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed.  With 
regard to this second area, the contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally 
involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its 
implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set 
forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals.  The hours of minority and female employment and training 
must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a 
good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects.  The transfer of minority or female 
employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the 
Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4.  
Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

12.1.3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for 
construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation.  The notification shall list the name, address and 
telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of 
the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the 
subcontract is to be performed.

12.1.4. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is the State of 
Florida.

12.1.5. Contractors shall incorporate the foregoing requirements in all subcontracts.

12.2. Equal Opportunity Clause (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding $10,000)

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

12.2.1. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection 
for training, including apprenticeship.

Page 305



FDEP-7
Revised July 2015

12.2.2. The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices 
setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The notice can be obtained online at 
http://www.eeoc.gov/employers/upload/eeoc_self_print_poster.pdf. The Contractor shall state that all qualified applicants 
be considered without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

12.2.3. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, 
state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or 
national origin.

12.2.4. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' 
representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment.

12.2.5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the 
rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

12.2.6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his 
books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to 
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

12.2.7. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of 
the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the 
contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be 
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or 
order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

12.2.8. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions 
of paragraphs 12.2.1 through 12.2.8 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that 
such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such action with respect to 
any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, 
including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the 
contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

12.3. The Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive 
Order 11246)

12.3.1. As used in these specifications:
a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;

b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of 
Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;

c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly 
Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.

d. "Minority" includes:

(i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish Culture 
or origin, regardless of race);
(iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and

Page 306



FDEP-8
Revised July 2015

(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North 
America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community 
identification).

12.3.2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any 
construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these 
specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set 
forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.

12.3.3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. 
Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on 
all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have 
unions participating in the Plan.  Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the 
provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is 
individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each 
goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.  The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or 
Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or Subcontractor's failure to 
take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

12.3.4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through p of 
these specifications.  The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages
of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able 
to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area.  Covered construction Contractors 
performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a federal or federally assisted construction 
contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being 
performed.  Goals are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice form, and such notices may be 
obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from federal procurement contracting 
officers.  The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the 
period specified.

12.3.5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the 
Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's 
obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

12.3.6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such
apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have 
made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability 
of employment opportunities.  Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department 
of Labor.

12.3.7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity.  The evaluation 
of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its 
actions.  The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensive as the following:

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all 
facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work.  The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or 
more women to each construction project.  The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, 
and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a 
working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such 
facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to 
minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have 
employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.

Page 307



FDEP-9
Revised July 2015

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street 
applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what 
action was taken with respect to each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral 
and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be 
documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have 
taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a 
collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, 
or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to 
meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly 
include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the 
Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor.  The 
Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 12.3.7b above.

f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and 
requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy 
manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by 
specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once 
a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where 
construction work is performed.

g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications 
with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions 
including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, 
etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site.  A written record shall be made and maintained 
identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the 
subject matter.

h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, 
specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the 
Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates 
doing business.

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools 
with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the 
Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs.  Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of 
applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written 
notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in 
the selection process.

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where 
reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and 
in other areas of a Contractor's work force.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for 
promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., 
such opportunities.

m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a 
discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO 
policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

Page 308



FDEP-10
Revised July 2015

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet and 
necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female 
construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor 
associations and other business associations.

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO 
policies and affirmative action obligations.

12.3.8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their 
affirmative action obligations (12.3.7a through 12.3.7p).  The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, 
contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as 
fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these specifications provided that the contractor actively 
participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of 
minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's 
minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can 
provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor.  The 
obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense
for the Contractor's noncompliance.

12.3.9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established.  The Contractor, 
however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both 
male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.  Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of 
the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the 
Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a 
specific minority group of women is underutilized).

12.3.10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any 
person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

12.3.11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government 
contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

12.3.12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal 
Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or 
ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs.  Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation 
of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.

12.3.13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligation under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative 
action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve 
maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity.  If the Contractor fails to comply with the 
requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in 
accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.

12.3.14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that 
the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the 
Government and to keep records.  Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, 
construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, 
sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the 
indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed.  Records shall be maintained in an easily 
understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors 
shall not be required to maintain separate records.

Page 309



FDEP-11
Revised July 2015

12.3.15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish 
different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents 
(e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

12.4. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.7, if the price of this bid exceeds $10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this 
proposal, certifies the following:

12.4.1. Affirmative action programs pursuant to 41 CFR 60-2 have been developed and are on file;

12.4.2. Documentation of a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clause is available;

12.4.3. All reports due under the applicable filing requirements have been filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the 
Deputy Assistant Secretary or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission; and

12.4.4. Each prospective construction subcontractor that may be awarded a lower-tier construction subcontract with a 
price exceeding $10,000 shall meet the above requirements 12.4.1 through 12.4.3.

12.5. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.8, if the price of this bid exceeds $10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this 
proposal, certifies the following:

12.5.1. That he/she does not maintain or provide for his/her employees any segregated facility at any of his/her 
establishments;

12.5.2. That he/she does not permit employees to perform their services at any location, under his/her control, where 
segregated facilities are maintained;

12.5.3. That he/she will not maintain or provide for employees any segregated facilities at any of his/her 
establishments;

12.5.4. That he/she will not permit employees to perform their services at any location under his/her control where 
segregated facilities are maintained;

12.5.5. That a breach of this certification is violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause of this contract; and

12.5.6. That he/she will obtain identical certifications from proposed Subcontractors prior to the award of Subcontracts
exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, and that he will 
retain such certifications in his/her files.

As used in this certification, the term “segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work eating areas, time clocks, locker 
rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are in fact 
segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or otherwise.

12.6. If the price of this Agreement/Contract exceeds $10,000, the Owner shall give written notice to the Director of the 
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within ten working days of award of this Agreement/Contract.  The notice 
is to include the name, address, and telephone number of the Contractor; the employer identification number of the 
Contractor; the dollar amount of this Agreement/Contract; the estimated starting and completion dates of this 
Agreement/Contract; the number of this Agreement/Contract; and the geographical area in which the Work is to be 
performed.

12.7. If the price of this Agreement/Contract equals or exceeds $50,000 and if the Contractor has 50 or more employees, 
the Contractor shall electronically file Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) online at https://egov.eeoc.gov/eeo1/eeo1.jsp within 30 
calendar days after the award of this Agreement/Contract , unless the Contractor has submitted such a report within 12 
months preceding the date of award of this Agreement/Contract.  In addition, the Contractor shall ensure that each 
construction subcontractor having 50 or more employees and a lower-tier construction subcontract with a price equaling or 
exceeding $50,000 also electronically files this form within 30 calendar days after the award to it of the lower-tier 
construction subcontract, unless the construction subcontractor has submitted such a report within 12 months preceding the 
date of award of the lower-tier construction subcontract.  

Page 310



FDEP-12
Revised July 2015

ARTICLE 13 - IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 (STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE
ORDER 11-116)

The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 prohibits employers from knowingly hiring illegal workers. The 
Contractor shall only employ individuals who may legally work in the United States – either U.S. citizens or foreign 
citizens who are authorized to work in the U.S. The Contractor shall use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-
Verify Employment Eligibility Verification system (http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis) to verify the employment 
eligibility of:

 all new employees, during the term of this Agreement, to perform employment duties within Florida; and,
 all new employees (including subcontractors and subrecipients) assigned by the Contractor to perform work 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

The Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts/subgrants it enters into for the performance of work under 
this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 – ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

The Contractor, and all subcontractors at any tier, shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued 
under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857[h]), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), 
Executive Order 11738 (Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to 
Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans), and 40 CFR Part 15.

ARTICLE 15 – FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with 
the Federal Labor Standards Provisions as provided in Appendix C.  Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these 
provisions.

ARTICLE 16 – AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with 
The American Iron and Steel Provision as provided in Appendix D.  Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these 
provisions.

ARTICLE 17 - PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES

A. Pursuant to Section 255.0991, F.S., for a competitive solicitation for construction services in which 50 percent or 
more of the cost will be paid from state-appropriated funds which have been appropriated at the time of the 
competitive solicitation, a state, college, county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the 
state may not use a local ordinance or regulation that provides a preference based upon:

1. The contractor’s maintaining an office or place of business within a particular local jurisdiction;
2. The contractor’s hiring employees or subcontractors from within a particular local jurisdiction; or
3. The contractor’s prior payment of local taxes, assessments, or duties within a particular local jurisdiction.

B. For any competitive solicitation that meets the criteria in Paragraph A., a state college, county, municipality, school 
district, or other political subdivision of the state shall disclose in the solicitation document that any applicable local 
ordinance or regulation does not include any preference that is prohibited by Paragraph A.

Page 311



FDEP-13 
Revised July 2015 

APPENDIX A TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

This certification relates to a construction contract proposed by _______________________________,
          (insert the name of the Owner)

which expects to finance the proposed construction contract with assistance from the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (which administers a State Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available by 
grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency).  I am the undersigned prospective construction contractor 
or subcontractor.

I certify that I have read the Florida Department of Environmental Supplementary Conditions and agree to incorporate the 
following articles into the bid and/or contract:

ARTICLE 11 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549)
ARTICLE 12 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)
ARTICLE 13 IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF (STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 
11-116)
ARTICLE 14 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE
ARTICLE 15 FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION
ARTICLE 16 AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION

I agree that I will obtain identical certifications from prospective lower-tier construction subcontractors prior to the award of 
any lower-tier construction subcontracts with a price exceeding $10,000.  I also agree that I will retain such certifications in 
my files.

____________________________________________________ _______________
(Signature of Authorized Official) (Date)

___________________________________________________________________________________
(Name and Title of Authorized Official [Print or Type])

___________________________________________________________________________________
(Name of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor [Print or Type])

___________________________________________________________________________________
(Address and Telephone Number of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor [Print or 

Type])

___________________________________________________________________________________
(Employer Identification Number of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor)

Page 312



FDEP-14 
Revised July 2015 

APPENDIX B TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES

[Note:  These goals and timetables are the goals and timetables referred to in Paragraph 2 of the "Notice of Requirement for 
Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246)"; these goals and timetables are to be 
included in all FDEP assisted construction contracts and subcontracts with a price exceeding $10,000 and in all solicitations 
for such contracts and subcontracts.]

The following goals and timetables for female utilization shall be included in all federal and federally assisted construction 
contracts and subcontracts in excess of $10,000.  The goals are applicable to the contractor's aggregate on-site construction 
workforce whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal or federally assisted construction contract or 
subcontract.

Area covered:  Goals for Women apply nationwide.

Goals and Timetables
__________________________________________________________________________________

Timetable Goals (percent)

Indefinite 6.9
___________________________________________________________________________________

Goals for minority utilization can be found in the Department of Labor’s Technical Assistance Guide for Federal 
Construction Contractors (May 2009), available on the internet at
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/TAguides/consttag.pdf.  These goals shall be included for each craft and trade in all 
federal or federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of $10,000 to be performed in the respective 
geographical areas.  The goals are applicable to each nonexempt contractor's total onsite construction workforce, regardless 
of whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal, federally assisted or non-federally related project, 
contract or subcontract.

Construction contractors which are participating in an approved Hometown Plan (see 41 CFR 60-4.5) are required to comply 
with the goals of the Hometown Plan with regard to construction work they perform in the area covered by the Hometown 
Plan.  With regard to all their other covered construction work, such contractors are required to comply with the applicable 
SMSA or EA goal contained in this Appendix.

Page 313



FDEP-15 
Revised July 2015 

APPENDIX C  
TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Davis-Bacon Requirements

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS
(Davis-Bacon Act, Copeland Act, and Contract Works Hours & Safety Standards Act) 

The Project to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America
and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to 
such federal assistance.

1 Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing
Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally 
and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll 
deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act, 29 CFR Part 3, the full 
amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not 
less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and 
mechanics.  Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the 
provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not 
less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4).  Laborers or
mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification 
for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each 
classification in which work is performed.  The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates 
conformed under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the 
contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the 
workers.

(ii) (a) The sponsor, on behalf of EPA, shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which
is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with 
the wage determination.  The FDEP shall approve a request for an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits; 
therefore, only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage
determination; and

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the
wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their
representatives, and the sponsor(s) agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe 
benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the sponsor to the FDEP.  The FDEP will transmit 
the request to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, employment Standards Administration, U. S. Department 
of Labor.  The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional 

Page 314



FDEP-16 
Revised July 2015 

classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the FDEP or will notify FEDP within the 30-day period that 
additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)

(c) In the event that the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the Classification or their
representatives, and the sponsor do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designed 
for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the FDEP shall refer the request and the local wage determination, including the views 
of all interested parties and the recommendation of FDEP, to the Administrator for determination.  The Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt of the request and so advise the contracting 
officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the 
Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

(d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(b) or
(c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day
on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination 
or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of
the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program.  Provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the 
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met.  The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside 
in a separate account, assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.  (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding.

The sponsor shall, upon written request of the EPA or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or 
cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contractor, or
any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime 
contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 
including apprentices, trainees and helpers employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required 
by the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed 
or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the 
construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, EPA may, after written notice
to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owners, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the
United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). 
Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, 
hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents thereof of the types described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours 
worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) 
that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under 
a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show 
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs 
anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.  Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under 
approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee 
programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  
(Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017).

Page 315



FDEP-17
Revised July 2015

(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of all 
payrolls to the sponsor.  Such documentation shall be available upon request by FDEP.  As to each payroll copy received, the 
sponsor shall provide a certification that the project is in compliance with the requirements of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) with each 
disbursement request.  The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(I), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included 
on the weekly payrolls.  Instead, the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee 
(e.g., the last four digits of the employee’s social security number).  The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired.  Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web 
site http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.  Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security 
number and current addresses of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the sponsor for transmission 
to the FDEP or EPA if requested by EPA, the FDEP, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of 
Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements.  It is not a violation of this 
section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime 
contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsor.  (Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149).

(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a Statement of Compliance, signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 
Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5 (a)(3)(I), and that such information 
is correct and complete;

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no 
deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set 
forth in 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits 
or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated 
into the contract.

(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Option Form 
WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the Statement of Compliance required by paragraph A. 3(ii)(b) of 
this section.

(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or 
criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph A.3(I) of this section available 
for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the FDEP or the Department of Labor, and shall 
permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.  If the contractor or subcontractor fails
to submit the required records or to make them available, the FDEP may, after written notice to the contractor, or sponsor, 
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds.  
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request to make such records available may be grounds for 
debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices.  Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed 
when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U. 
S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and 
Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 
90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered 
in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.  The allowable ratio 

Page 316



FDEP-18
Revised July 2015

of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the 
contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program.  Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage 
rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice performing work on the 
job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on 
the wage determination for the work actually performed.  Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a 
locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the 
journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed.  Every 
apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  Apprentices shall 
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program.  If the apprenticeship program does 
not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for 
the applicable classification.  If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with the determination.  In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, 
Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an 
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees.  Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined 
rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received 
prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U. S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training 
Administration.  The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved 
by the Employment and Training Administration.  Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved 
program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable 
wage determination.  Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the 
trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage
determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program 
associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe 
benefits for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a 
training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate 
on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess 
of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws 
approval of a training program the contract will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 
30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and 
such other clauses as EPA determines may be appropriate, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5.

7. Contract Termination, Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a 
contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

Page 317



FDEP-19
Revised July 2015

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5 are herein 
incorporated by referenced in this contract.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.  

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this 
contract.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR 
Parts 5, 6 and 7.  Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its 
subcontractors) and the sponsor, FDEP, EPA, the U. S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has 
an interest in the contractor’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) 
of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA programs pursuant to 
Executive Order 12549.

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a government contract 
by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA 
programs pursuant to Executive Order 12549.

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U. S. C. 1001.  Additionally, 
U. S. Criminal Code, Section 1010, Title 18, U. S. C., Federal Housing Administration transactions, provides in part 
“Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Administration . . . makes, utters or publishes any 
statement, knowing the same to be false . . . shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or 
both”.

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.

A. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this contract are applicable shall 
be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the contractor or any subcontractor because such employee 
has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any
proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this contract to his employer.

B.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The sponsor shall insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs 
B.(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this section in full in any contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime 
provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.  These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses 
required by item 3 above or 29 CFR 4.6.  As used in the paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and 
guards.

(1) Overtime requirements.  No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may 
require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages.  In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in 
subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid
wages.  In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under 
contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.  Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 
employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day 
on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without 
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.  The sponsor, upon written request of the FDEP or an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor, may withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on 

Page 318



FDEP-20 
Revised July 2015 

account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other federal contract with the 
same prime contract, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) 
of this paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph
(1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier
subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with
the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety
(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are

unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards 
promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.

(2) The contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926
(formerly part 1518) and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54.83 State 96).

(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this Article in every subcontract so that such provisions will be
binding on each subcontractor.  The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

12. Guidance to Contractor for Compliance with Labor Standards Provisions

a) Contracts with Two Wage Decisions

If the contract includes two wage decisions, the contractor, and each subcontractor who works on the site, must submit either 
two separate payrolls (one for each wage decision) or one payroll which identifies each worker twice and the hours worked 
under each wage decision.  One single payroll, reflecting each worker once, may be submitted provided the Contractor uses 
the higher rate in the wage decisions for each identical job classification.  However, where a job classification is not listed in 
a wage decision and is needed for that portion of the work, the classification must be added to the wage decision.  A worker 
may not be paid at the rate for a classification using the hourly rate for that same classification in another wage decision.
After the additional classification is approved, the contractor may pay the higher of the two rates and submit one payroll, if 
desired. 

b) Complying with Minimum Hourly Amounts

1) The minimum hourly amount due to a worker in each classification is the total of the amounts in the Rates and
Fringe Benefits (if any) columns of the applicable wage decision.

2) The contractor may satisfy this minimum hourly amount by any combination of cash and bona fide fringe benefits,
regardless of the individual amounts reflected in the Rates and Fringe Benefits columns.

3) A contractor payment for a worker which is required by law is not a fringe benefit in meeting the minimum hourly
amount due under the applicable wage decision.  For example, contractor payments for FICA or unemployment
insurance are not a fringe benefit; however, contractor payments for health insurance or retirement are a fringe benefit.
Generally, a fringe benefit is bona fide if (a) it is available to most workers and (b) involves payments to a third party.

4) The hourly value of the fringe benefit is calculated by dividing the contractor’s annual cost (excluding any amount
contributed by the worker) for the fringe benefit by 2080.  Therefore, for workers with overtime, an additional payment
may be required to meet the minimum hourly wages since generally fringe benefits have no value for any time worked
over 40 hours weekly.  (If a worker is paid more than the minimum rates required by the wage decision, this should not
be a problem.  As long as the total wages received by a worker for straight time equals the hours worked times the
minimum hourly rate in the wage decision, the requirement of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts has been satisfied.)

c) Overtime

Page 319



FDEP-21 
Revised July 2015 

For any project work over 40 hours weekly, a worker generally must be paid 150% of the actual hourly cash rate received, 
not the minimum required by the wage decision.  (The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts only establishes minimum rates and 
does not address overtime.  The Contract Work Hours Act contains the overtime requirement and uses basic rate of pay as 
the base for calculation, not the minimum rates established by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.)

d) Deductions

Workers who have deductions, not required by law, from their pay must authorize these deductions in writing.  The 
authorization must identify the purpose of each deduction and the amount, which may be a specific dollar amount or a 
percentage.  A copy of the authorization must be submitted with the first payroll containing the deduction. If deducted 
amounts increase, another authorization must be submitted.  If deducted amounts decrease, no revision to the original 
authorization is needed. Court-ordered deductions, such as child support, may be identified by the responsible payroll person 
in a separate document.  This document should identify the worker, the amount deducted and the purpose. A copy of the court 
order should be submitted.

e) Classifications Not Included in the Wage Decision

If a classification not in the wage decision is required, please advise the owner’s representative in writing and identify the job 
classification(s) required.  In some instances, the state agency may allow the use of a similar classification in the wage 
decision.

Otherwise, the contractor and affected workers must agree on a minimum rate, which cannot be lower than the lowest rate 
for any trade in the wage decision.  Laborers (including any subcategory of the laborer classification) and truck drivers are
not considered a trade for this purpose.  If the classification involves a power equipment operator, the minimum cannot be 
lower than the lowest rate for any power equipment operator in the wage decision.  The owner will provide forms to document 
agreement on the minimum rate by the affected workers and contractor.

The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) must approve the proposed classification and rate.  The contractor may pay the 
proposed rate until the USDOL makes a determination.  Should the USDOL require a higher rate, the contractor must make 
wage restitution to the affected worker(s) for all hours worked under the proposed rate.  

f) Supervisory Personnel

Foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend at least 80% of their time supervising workers are not covered by the 
Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.  Therefore, a wage decision will not include such supervisory classifications and their wages 
are not subject to any minimums under the Davis-Bacon and Related Act or overtime payments under the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act.  However, foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend less than 80% of their time 
engaged in supervisory activities are considered workers/mechanics for the time spent engaged in manual labor and must be 
paid at least the minimum in the wage decision for the appropriate classification(s) based on the work performed.

g) Sole Proprietorships / Independent Contractors / Leased Workers

The nature of the relationship between a prime contractor and a worker does not affect the requirement to comply with the 
labor standards provisions of this contract.  The applicability of the labor standards provisions is based on the nature of the 
work performed.

If the work performed is primarily manual in nature, the worker is subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract.
For example, if John Smith is the owner of ABC Plumbing and performs all plumbing work himself, then Mr. Smith is subject 
to the labor standards provisions, including minimum wages and overtime.  His status as owner is irrelevant for labor 
standards purposes.

If a worker meets the IRS standards for being an independent contractor, and is employed as such, this means that the worker 
must submit a separate payroll as a subcontractor rather than be included on some other payroll.  The worker is still subject
to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime.  

If a contractor or subcontractor leases its workers, they are subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including 
minimum wages and overtime.  The leasing firm must submit payrolls and these payrolls must reflect information required 
to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of this contract, including a classification for each worker based
on the nature of the work performed, number of regular hours worked, and number of overtime hours worked.

Page 320



FDEP-22 
Revised July 2015 

h) Apprentices / Helpers

A worker may be classified as an apprentice only if participating in a federal or state program.  Documentation of 
participation must be submitted.  Generally, the apprentice program specifies that the apprentice will be compensated at a 
percentage of journeyman rate.  For Davis-Bacon Act purposes, the hourly rate cannot be lower than the percentage of the 
hourly rate for the classification in the applicable wage decision. 

If the worker does not participate in a federal or state apprentice program, then the worker must be classified according to 
duties performed.  This procedure may require classification in the trade depending on tools used, or as a laborer if specialized 
tools of the trade are not used.  The contractor may want to consult with the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department 
of Labor located in most large cities regarding the appropriate classification.

Presently, no worker may be classified as a helper.  As with apprentices not participating in a formal apprentice program, the 
worker must be classified according to duties performed and tools used. 

Page 321



FDEP-23 
Revised July 2015 

APPENDIX D TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

American Iron and Steel Requirement

The Contractor acknowledges to and for the benefit of the ____________________ (“Owner”) and the State of Florida (the 
“State”) that it understands that iron and steel products to be installed as a part of this contract must be in compliance with 
the requirements in H.R. 3547, “Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014,” (Appropriations Act). H.R. 3547 includes the 
following language in Division G, Title IV, Sec. 436, under the heading, "Use of American Iron and Steel,": 

(a) (1) None of the funds made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund as authorized by title VI of
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.) or made available by a drinking water treatment revolving 
loan fund as authorized by section 1452 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. 300j-12) shall be used for a project for 
the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a public water system or treatment works unless all of the iron and 
steel products used in the project are produced in the United States.

(2) In this section, the term "iron and steel products" means the following products made primarily of iron or steel:
lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and 
restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials. 

(b) Subsection (a) shall not apply in any case or category of cases in which the Administrator of the Environmental
Protection Agency (in this section referred to as the "Administrator") finds that-- 

(1) applying subsection (a) would be inconsistent with the public interest;
(2) iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities

and of a satisfactory quality; or
(3) inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project

by more than 25 percent.
(c) If the Administrator receives a request for a waiver under this section, the Administrator shall make available to the

public on an informal basis a copy of the request and information available to the Administrator concerning the request, and 
shall allow for informal public input on the request for at least 15 days prior to making a finding based on the request. The
Administrator shall make the request and accompanying information available by electronic means, including on the 
official public Internet Web site of the Environmental Protection Agency.

(d) This section shall be applied in a manner consistent with United States obligations under international agreements.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any failure to comply with this paragraph by the Contractor shall 
permit the Purchaser or State to recover as damages against the Contractor any loss, expense, or cost (including without 
limitation attorney’s fees) incurred by the Purchaser or State resulting from any such failure (including without limitation 
any impairment or loss of funding, whether in whole or in part, from the State or any damages owed to the State by the 
Purchaser).  While the Contractor has no direct contractual privity with the State, as a lender to the Purchaser for the 
funding of its project, the Purchaser and the Contractor agree that the State is a third-party beneficiary and neither this 
paragraph (nor any other provision of this Agreement necessary to give this paragraph force or effect) shall be amended or 
waived without the prior written consent of the State.

For waivers to these requirements based on (2)(b) above, contact Sheryl Parsons at USEPA Region IV. She can be reached 
by phone at (404) 562-9337. 

Page 322



General Decision Number: FL170168 01/06/2017  FL168

Superseded General Decision Number: FL20160168

State: Florida

Construction Type: Heavy

County: Miami-Dade County in Florida.

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (Including Sewer and Water Lines)

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage
of $10.20 for calendar year 2017 applies to all contracts
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded
(and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015.
If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay
all workers in any classification listed on this wage
determination at least $10.20 per hour (or the applicable
wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher)
for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar
year 2017. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually.
Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the EO is available at
www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0             01/06/2017

* ELEC0349-007 09/05/2016

                                  Rates          Fringes

ELECTRICIAN......................$ 31.61            11.58
----------------------------------------------------------------
 ENGI0487-017 07/01/2013

                                  Rates          Fringes

OPERATOR:  Backhoe (Except
Loader Combo)....................$ 28.32             8.80
OPERATOR:  Crane
     All Tower Cranes (Must
     have 2 operators) Mobile,
     Rail, Climbers, Static-
     Mount; All Cranes with
     Boom Length 150 Feet &
     Over (With or without jib)
     Friction, Hydro, Electric
     or Otherwise; Cranes 150
     Tons & Over (Must have 2
     operators); Cranes with 3
     Drums (When 3rd drum is
     rigged for work); Gantry &
     Overhead Cranes; Hydro
     Cranes Over 25 Tons but
     not more than 50 Tons
     (Without

Page 1 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 323



     Oiler/Apprentice);
     Hydro/Friction Cranes
     without Oiler/Apprentices
     when Approved by Union; &
     All Type of Flying Cranes;
     Boom Truck..................$ 29.05             8.80
     Cranes with Boom Length
     Less than 150 Feet (With
     or without jib); Hydro
     Cranes 25 Tons & Under, &
     Over 50 Tons (With
     Oiler/Apprentice); Boom
     Truck.......................$ 28.32             8.80
OPERATOR:  Drill.................$ 25.80             8.80
OPERATOR:  Loader................$ 25.64             8.80
OPERATOR:  Oiler.................$ 22.99             8.80
----------------------------------------------------------------
 IRON0272-005 10/01/2015

                                  Rates          Fringes

IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL...........$ 24.21             8.28
----------------------------------------------------------------
 LABO1652-004 06/01/2013

                                  Rates          Fringes

LABORER:  Grade Checker..........$ 14.50             4.92
----------------------------------------------------------------
 PAIN0365-007 08/01/2014

                                  Rates          Fringes

PAINTER:  Brush, Roller and
Spray............................$ 19.50             8.83
----------------------------------------------------------------
  SUFL2009-164 06/24/2009

                                  Rates          Fringes

CARPENTER, Includes Form Work....$ 17.00             2.51

CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER...$ 16.61             5.52

LABORER:  Common or General......$ 13.09             1.26

LABORER:  Landscape..............$  7.25             0.00

LABORER: Power Tool Operator
(Hand Held Drills/Saws,
Jackhammer and Power Saws
Only)............................$ 10.63             2.20

OPERATOR:  Asphalt Paver.........$ 11.59             0.00

OPERATOR:  Backhoe Loader
Combo............................$ 16.10             2.44

OPERATOR:  Bulldozer.............$ 14.95             0.81

Page 2 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 324



OPERATOR:  Excavator.............$ 21.16             1.67

OPERATOR:  Grader/Blade..........$ 16.00             2.84

OPERATOR:  Mechanic..............$ 14.32             0.00

OPERATOR:  Roller................$ 10.95             0.00

OPERATOR:  Scraper...............$ 11.00             1.74

OPERATOR:  Trackhoe..............$ 20.92             5.50

OPERATOR:  Tractor...............$ 10.54             0.00

TRUCK DRIVER, Includes Dump
Truck............................$  9.60             0.00

TRUCK DRIVER:  Lowboy Truck......$ 12.73             0.00

TRUCK DRIVER:  Off the Road
Truck............................$ 12.21             1.97
----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular

Page 3 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 325



rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or
"UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number,
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

Page 4 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 326



----------------------------------------------------------------

                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

*  an existing published wage determination
*  a survey underlying a wage determination
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
   a wage determination matter
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted
because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the
Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial
contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.)
and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

Page 5 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 327



================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISION
˜

Page 6 of 6

1/23/2017https://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/fl168.dvb Page 328



www.dep.state.fl.us 

Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection

Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

Carlos Lopez-Cantera 
Lt. Governor 

Jonathan P. Steverson 
Secretary 

 
AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL GUIDANCE FOR STATE REVOLVING FUND 

PROJECTS 
 

Florida State Revolving Fund Programs 
 

November 2016 
 
 
P.L. 113-76, Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014 (Act), includes an "American Iron 
and Steel (AIS)" requirement in section 436 that requires Clean  Water State Revolving 
Loan Fund (CWSRF) and Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund (DWSRF) 
assistance recipients to use iron and steel products that are produced in the United 
States for projects for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of public water 
system or treatment works if the project is funded through an assistance agreement 
executed beginning January 17, 2014 (enactment of the Act), through the end of Federal 
Fiscal Year 2014. 
 
Section 436 also sets forth certain circumstances under which the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) may waive the AIS requirement. Furthermore, the Act 
specifically exempts projects where engineering plans and specifications were approved 
by a State agency prior to January 17, 2014. 
 
The approach described below explains how EPA will implement the requirement. The 
guidance will be in the form questions and answers that address AIS, the types of 
projects that must comply with the AIS requirement, the types of products covered by 
the AIS requirement, and compliance.  
  

Page 329



www.dep.state.fl.us 

 
Implementation 
 
1)  What is American Iron and Steel? 
 
 The "American Iron and Steel (AIS)" provision requires State Revolving Fund 
(SRF) projects to use iron and steel products that are produced in the United States.  AIS 
IS NOT “Buy American” from the Stimulus of 2009 or “Buy American” that is used by 
agencies such as the Florida Department of Transportation. 
 
2)  What projects need to comply with AIS? 
 
 All projects funded with a SRF agreement need to comply with AIS.  AIS 
compliance applies to the entirety of the project, regardless when the construction 
begins or ends.  One dollar in SRF funds requires AIS compliance on the entire project.  
AIS compliance applies to all parts of the project, regardless of the source of funding. 
 
3)  What is an iron or steel product? 
 
 The term “iron or steel products” means the following products made primarily 
of iron or steel: 

• Lined or unlined pipes or fittings • Pipe clamps and restraints 
• Manhole Covers • Valves 
• Municipal Castings • Structural steel 
• Hydrants • Reinforced precast concrete 
• Tanks • Construction materials 
• Flanges  

 
4)  What is the definition of “primarily iron or steel”? 
 
 A product that is primarily iron or steel is a product that is made of greater than 
50% iron or steel, measured by cost.  The cost should be based on the material costs.  If a 
product is not listed in the AIS provision but is composed of more than 50% iron or steel, 
it does not have to be produced in the United States. 
 
5)  What is an iron or steel product? 
 
 An iron or steel product is one that is primarily made of iron or steel that is 
permanently incorporated.  Equipment which are eventually removed from the project 
upon completion are not required to comply with AIS. 
 
6)  What does “produced in the United States” mean? 
 
 Produced in the United States means that all manufacturing processes, including 
application of coatings, must take place in the United States, except for metallurgical 
processes involving refinement of steel additives.  All manufacturing processes includes 
processes such as melting, refining, forming, rolling, drawing, finishing, fabricating and 

Page 330



www.dep.state.fl.us 

coating.  Raw materials such as iron ore, limestone and iron and steel scrap are not 
covered by the AIS requirement.  Non-iron or steel components of an iron and steel 
product may come from non-US sources. 
 
7)  What components are not covered by AIS? 
 
 Mechanical and electrical components, equipment and systems do not have to 
comply with AIS.  Mechanical equipment is typically that which has motorized parts 
and/or is powered by a motor.  Electrical equipment is typically any machine powered 
by electricity and includes components that are part of the electrical distribution system. 
 
8)  What are some examples of components not covered by AIS? 
 
 Examples of components that do not need to comply with AIS include: pumps, 
motors, gear reducers, drives (including variable frequency drives (VFDs)), 
electric/pneumatic/manual accessories used to operate valves (such as electric valve 
actuators), mixers, gates, motorized screens (such as traveling screens), 
blowers/aeration equipment, compressors, meters, sensors, controls and switches, 
supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA), membrane bioreactor systems, 
membrane filtration systems, filters, clarifiers and clarifier mechanisms, rakes, grinders, 
disinfection systems, presses (including belt presses), conveyors, cranes, HVAC 
(excluding ductwork), water heaters, heat exchangers, generators, cabinetry and 
housings (such as electrical boxes/enclosures), lighting fixtures, electrical conduit, 
emergency life systems, metal office furniture, shelving, laboratory equipment, 
analytical instrumentation, and dewatering equipment. 
 
9)  What are the steps to document AIS compliance? 
 

• Contract language - the specific contract language given in the FDEP 
Supplementary Conditions, Appendix D, must be included in each contract, 
including purchase agreements. 

• Step Certification Process – each handler (supplier, fabricator, manufacturer, 
processor, etc.) of the iron and steel products certifies that their step in the 
process was performed domestically. 

• Paper Trail – including the originating purchase order, the delivery of service 
via a bill of lading, and invoice from the manufacturer. 

 
10)  What does the certification letter need to contain? 
 

The certification letter should identify: 
• What the product is - The letter should list the specific product(s) 

delivered to the project site. 
• Where it was made -  The letter should include the manufacturing 

location of the product(s). 
• To whom it was delivered - The letter should include the name of the 

project and jurisdiction where the project was delivered. 

Page 331



www.dep.state.fl.us 

• Signature of a representative who has the authority to speak on behalf of 
the company. 

  
11)  What is the waiver process? 

 
The EPA has the ability to issue waivers when the following can be documented: 

• That applying the AIS requirements would be inconsistent with the 
public interest; 

   OR 
• Iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient 
and reasonably available quantitates and of a satisfactory quality; 

   OR 
• Inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will 
increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25%. 

 
12)  What are the steps to request a waiver? 
 

• The waiver request is emailed to the SRF program. 
• After review, the SRF program will forward the application to the EPA 

Headquarters. 
• After evaluation and review of public comments, EPA Headquarters will 

either approve or disapprove the waiver request. 
• EPA Headquarters will send notification to the SRF program and the decision 

will be posted online. 
 
13)  What are national waivers? 
 
 The EPA has the authority to issue national waivers.  The national waivers that 
have been approved to date include: 

• De minimis waiver – allows a small percentage of incidental products of 
unknown or non-domestic origin to be incorporated. Users of the de minimis 
waiver should maintain documentation of all the de minimis items in a 
project. 

• Plans and Specifications Waiver – exempts projects with plans and 
specifications approved by a state agency prior to January 17, 2014 and 
between and including January 17 and April 15, 2014 (the date the waiver 
was signed). 

• Product waiver for pig iron and direct reduced iron –permits the use of pig 
iron and direct reduced iron manufactured outside the US to be used in the 
manufacturing process for iron and steel products. 

• Short-term waiver for stainless steel nuts and bolts used in pipe couplings, 
restraints, joints, flanges, and saddles. 

 
14)  What are the penalties for not complying with AIS? 

 
Failure to comply with the AIS requirements may delay, limit, or prevent the 

disbursement of SRF funds.  The SRF program will require corrective actions by the 

Page 332



www.dep.state.fl.us 

Contractor as a result of violations of AIS compliance, including the replacement of the 
deficient products, compensation for costs, and other damages that may result.  
Violations may subject the Owners, the Contractors, and suppliers to enforcement 
actions from the EPA and other federal agencies. 
 
 
15)  Where can further information be obtained about AIS? 
  
 The EPA has a website to address questions and concerns about AIS and can be 
found at 
 
  http://water.epa.gov/grants_funding/aisrequirement.cfm 
  

Page 333



www.dep.state.fl.us 

 
Appendix: Sample Certification 

 
 
The following information is provided as a sample letter of step certification for AIS 
compliance. Documentation must be provided on company letterhead.  
 
Date 
Company Name 
Company Address 
City, State Zip 
 
Subject: American Iron and Steel Step Certification for Project (XXXXXXXXXX) 
 
I, (company representative), certify that the (melting, bending, coating, galvanizing, 
cutting, etc.) process for (manufacturing or fabricating) the following products and/or 
materials shipped or provided for the subject project is in full compliance with the 
American Iron and Steel requirement as mandated in EPA’s State Revolving Fund 
Programs. 
 
Item, Products and/or Materials: 
 

1. Xxxx 
2. Xxxx 
3. Xxxx 

 
Such process took place at the following location:  
_____________ 
 
If any of the above compliance statements change while providing material to this 
project we will immediately notify the prime contractor and the engineer. 
 
Signed by company representative 

Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



Page 498



Page 499



Page 500



Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



Page 507



Page 508



Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522



Page 523



Page 524



Page 525



Page 526



Page 527



Page 528



Page 529



Page 530



Page 531



Page 532



Page 533



Page 534



Page 535



Page 536



Page 537



Page 538



Page 539



Page 540



Page 541



Page 542



Page 543



Page 544



Page 545



Page 546



Page 547



Page 548



Page 549



Page 550



Page 551



Page 552



Page 553



8C

Page 554



Page 555



Page 556



Page 557



Page 558



Page 559



Page 560



Page 561



Page 562



Page 563



Page 564



Page 565



Page 566



Page 567



Page 568



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



Page 574



8D

Page 575



Page 576



Page 577



RESOLUTION NO.______________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, PLEDGING TO INCREASE THE 
UTILITY RATES NECESSARY TO FUND THE DEBT 
SERVICES ON THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (FDEP) LOANS FOR 
THE WATER MAIN REHABILITATION PROJECT AND 
THE WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AND 
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 WHEREAS, The Florida State Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) has a 
mission to protect the waters of the State of Florida and the waters of Biscayne Bay, and:  
 
 WHEREAS, The FDEP has a State Revolving Loan Program to assist municipalities with 
meeting these goals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Bay Village has applied for funding for the Water Main Rehabilitation 
Project (DW13040) and the Water Meter Replacement Program, (DW 13042)  and; 
  
 WHEREAS, North Bay Village did not have sufficient Net Position in the Fiscal Year 
2015 financial statements to cover the debt services on these two new loans; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission of North Bay Village, Florida, is committed to improving 
and protecting the waters of South Florida and Biscayne Bay; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Bay Village is unable to fund these projects without assistance from 
FDEP, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission of North Bay Village, Florida hereby commit to increase 
the utility rates to meet the necessary debt services for the Water Meter Replacement Program and 
the Water Main Rehabilitation Project.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The above Recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
 
 
 Section 2. The Village Commission hereby commits to increasing the utility rates 
necessary to meet the debt services for the Water Meter Replacement Program and the Water Main 

Page 578



Rehabilitation Project. 
 

Section 3.   This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  
 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by__________, who moved for its adoption.  This 
motion was seconded by ________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps   __________     
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim     __________ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez  __________ 
Commissioner Dr. Douglas Hornsby  __________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson  __________ 
 
                      PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of April 2017. 
 
   
       Connie Leon-Kreps, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE USE OF 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE: 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 

North Bay Village Resolution: Commission’s Pledge to increase utility rates to fund debt service for Water Meter Replacement Program and Water 
Main Rehabilitation Program project. 

Page 579



8E

Page 580



Page 581



Page 582



Page 583



Page 584



Page 585



Page 586



Page 587



Page 588



Page 589



Page 590



Page 591



8F

Page 592



Page 593



Page 594



Page 595



Page 596



Page 597



Page 598



Page 599



Page 600



Page 601



Page 602



Page 603



Page 604



Page 605



Page 606



Page 607



Page 608



Page 609



k 

Staff Report
Special Use Exception

Prepared for: North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant: Carlos Megias 

Site Address: 1819 Kennedy Causeway 

Request: Special Use Exception for 

Boat Tour 

10A

Page 610



General Information 

Owner Carlos Megias  

Owner Address 4731 Alhambra Circle 
Coral Gables, FL  33146 

Site Address 1819 Kennedy Causeway 

Contact Person Carlos Megias 

Contact Phone Number 305-979-9900 

Contact E-mail Address cmegias@miamispeedboatadventures.com 
 

 Existing Proposed 
Future Land Use  Commercial Commercial 
Zoning District CL (Limited Commercial) CL (Limited Commercial) 
Use of Property Hotel Hotel with Boat Tours 
Acreage 1.14 acres 1.14 acres 

 

Legal Description of Subject Property 
9 53 42 E135FT OF W2110FT OF TREA IS LYING N OF 79 ST CSEWY PER DB 3879-72 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a special use exception pursuant to Section 152.098 of the North 
Bay Village Code of Ordinances to operate a speed boat tour from the existing docks at 1819 
Kennedy Causeway. 
 

Adjacent Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning District 

North 
Future Land Use  Water 
Zoning District Water 
Existing Land Use Biscayne Bay 

   
East 

Future Land Use  Commercial 
Zoning District Commercial Limited 
Existing Land Use Condominium 

   
South 

Future Land Use  Commercial 
Zoning District Commercial General 
Existing Land Use Condominiums and Vacant 

   
West 

Future Land Use  Commercial 
Zoning District Commercial Limited 
Existing Land Use Restaurant (Shuckers) 

Page 611



General Description 
 
The Applicant is proposing to operate a tour boat business from an existing dock (the 
easternmost dock) at the Best Western Hotel. Customers would be issued their own 11-foot 
vessel to drive, following a guide boat on a predetermined route. The applicant has stated that 
operations would begin with 6 vessels but the lease allows for a maximum of 10 vessels as well 
as paddleboards. The applicant has stated that all maintenance, repair, and fueling of the 
vessels will be conducted off site. Please see the Applicant’s letter attached below which more 
specifically describes the business operations. Also, see the proposed boating route and dock 
lease attached below.  
 
Staff’s main concern with the applicant’s proposal is related parking. The Village Code requires 
one parking space per boat slip as well as parking for the employees. The existing hotel parking 
lot cannot sufficiently accommodate this additional use at the site. However, the Hotel and 
Shucker’s have contracted with the neighboring vacant property to the West (1755 Kennedy 
Causeway) for use of that site for their parking needs. 
 
Additionally, in order to operate that vacant lot as a commercial parking lot, the owner of 1755 
Kennedy Causeway has also been granted a special use exception. When that special use 
exception was recently renewed by the Village Commission, the approval was contingent upon 
several things, such as the owner’s ability to maintain the seawall, which has been deteriorating. 
Recent permit approvals have been granted to the 1755 Kennedy Causeway owners to prevent 
further deterioration of the seawall. 
 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan 
 
The request for a special use exception to operate speed boat tours is consistent with the 
Future Land Use Policy 2.1.1a of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, which provides for a broad 
range of commercial uses. 
 
 

Consistency with Land Development Code (LDC) 
 
This proposed use is not a permitted use in the Commercial Limited zoning district. Though, 
Section 152.098 provides for the Village Commission to approve, conditionally approve, or 
disapprove special use exception applications. The proposed use is a commercial recreational 
use, as listed in Subsection (B)(9)3. 

 
152.098 - Use exceptions 

 

(A) In order to provide for adjustment in the relative locations of uses and buildings of the same or of 

different classifications; to promote the usefulness of these regulations as instruments for fact-finding, 

interpretation, application, and adjustment; and to supply the necessary flexibility to their efficient 

operation, special use exceptions are permitted by these regulations. 

 

Page 612



(B) The City Commission may permit the following buildings and uses as special exceptions, provided 

there are clear indications that such exceptions will not substantially affect adversely the uses 

permitted in these regulations of adjacent property. 

  (1)  Day nursery. 

  (2)  Religious institution. 

(3) Private or commercially operated swimming pools or tennis courts, when not a permitted 

accessory use, and commercial recreational facilities. 

  (4)  Exposition center, civic center, art gallery. 

  (5)  Golf course, marina. 

  (6)  Public buildings and facilities. 

  (7)  Public utilities or public service uses, and appurtenances thereto. 

(8) Structural alterations to special uses, after these uses are approved by the City Commission. 

  (9)  Other special uses as may be enumerated in specific zoning districts. 

  (10) Reserved. 

 
 
Potential Impacts Upon Adjacent Properties 
 
North Bay Village Land Development Code Section 152.098(B) (above) requires a finding that a 
special exception use will not substantially affect adversely the uses allowed on adjacent 
properties. According to the documents provided by the applicant, vessels will be operated at 
low speeds near shore, in accordance with the required navigational rules, until reaching a safe 
distance from Treasure Island. All maintenance, repairs, and refueling will be conducted offsite. 
The operations should not create excessive noise, or generate any other potential conflicts with 
nearby uses. 
 
 
Planning & Zoning Board Discussion and Recommendation 
 
At the March 21, 2017 Planning & Zoning Board meeting, four of the five members were 
present. All four members voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Applicant’s request 
for a special use exception approval to operate the bout tour. The vote for approval included the 
conditions of approval recommended by staff below. Those conditions were agreed upon by the 
applicant prior to the vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 613



Findings and Recommendations 
 
Staff finds that the request is consistent with Sections 152.098 in that this special use exception 
will not adversely affect the uses permitted in the regulations of adjacent properties. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request to operate a speed boat tour at 1819 Kennedy 
Causeway with the following conditions: 
 

1. If the special use exception to operate the commercial parking lot at 1755 Kennedy 
Causeway expires or is revoked for any reason, this special use exception to operate the 
boat tour at 1819 Kennedy Causeway shall be revoked. 
 

2. If any operations of the boat tour use become a nuisance for neighboring Village residents 
or business owners, or if the use causes environmental damage to the Bay, the Village 
Commission may vote to revoke this special use exception approval. 

 
3. Applicant must maintain a BTR for operation of the proposed boat tour operation. 

 
 

4. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted and no building permit or certificate of 
occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits 
and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to any 
previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

 
5. Approval of this special use exception does not in any way create a right on the part of the 

applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create liability on 
the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill 
the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in a 
violation of federal or state law. 

 
6. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 

operations. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
 
April 11, 2017 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 25, 2017 
 
  

Page 614



Proposed Route 

 

Page 615



 

Page 616



Speedboat Adventures USA Inc.  
1819 79th St Causeway 
Miami Beach, Fl.  33141 

386 566-1991 
 

Company Operation Overview 
 

Speedboat Adventures USA Inc. is a Florida corporation that provides our customers with 
fun, exciting, instructional and informational tours of beautiful waterways. Our tours are a 
safe, informative introduction to boating for novice boaters and fun for experienced 
boaters. Individual boat rentals will not be allowed, boats will only be operated during 
supervised group tours.  
 
Customers purchase tour admission through our website or one of our many 
tourism/marketing partners. Tours depart on scheduled times throughout the day from 
9a.m. to 3p.m., Mon.- Sun. Tours will be scheduled at 9, 11, 1 and 3. Including waiver review 
and signing, tour overview, safe boating operation/instruction and etiquette review, 
including Speedboat Adventure rules and Florida Fish and Wildlife overview, the guided 
adventure lasts approximately 2 hours. 
 
Upon arrival, customers are required to provide identification, verifying their age.  A map 
of the designated route will be reviewed. Rules of the water including speed limits, proper 
passing and safe operations are reviewed. Signage (speed limit, no wake, manatee zone 
etc.) that will be encountered on the tour will be reviewed and explained. The importance 
of clean, safe, operation as well as the importance of trash free, environmental 
responsibility and courtesy to marine life is stressed. Boaters will be presented with what 
to expect upon starting and throttling their boat. Handling and getting on plane will be 
explained to prepare the boater for what they will experience. Trained guides, familiar with 
the local waterways and with boating experience will review the process for following 
guides at safe distances, safe spacing between other tour guests and hand signals, that will 
be used by the group. Each boat is equipped with a speaker in order for the tour guide to 
provide navigation, local history, fun facts and information about local wildlife.  
 
Prior to boarding, each tour participant will be provided with U.S. Coast Guard approved, 
personal flotation equipment. Required safety equipment will be provided and maintained 
on each boat. Proper use of emergency shut off safety switch/lanyard will be reviewed and 
it’s use required.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 617



Tours will depart from the Best Western on the Bay Inn and Marina located at 1819 79th St, 
Miami Beach, Fl. 33141. Tour boats will follow the guide in a straight formation, like baby 
ducks following their mother. The docks are located on the northeast side of the 79th St. 
Causeway. It is approximately 150 yards at slow speed, to the eastern most channel of the 
bay. Tours will enter the channel just north of the 79th St. Bridge and just south of marker 
#8, according to the Fish and Wildlife Commission, Biscayne Bay Boating Guide. From 
channel entry, heading south to marker #20 is a year round 30 MPH zone. Channel marker 
#20 to marker #26 is a 30 MPH zone from May 1st. - Nov 14th. It is a slow speed zone from 
Nov 15th. - April 30th.   Just south of channel marker # 28 heading south to marker# #30 is a 
year round, slow speed zone. The tour will proceed south and circle Star Island, presenting 
fun facts and points of interest. After circling the island, tours will return north using the 
same channel, observing the posted speed limits. A dockhand will greet returning 
customers, helping them to park and secure their boat. (See attached route map). 
 
Speedboat Adventures will be an owner operated and managed business. The safety and 
comfort of our customers, as well as fun, informative tours are the priority of ownership. 
Speedboat Adventures has an excellent safety record. In seven years of operation at our 
two established locations, we have not encountered any accidents, injuries or insurance 
claims. We carry $2 million insurance policies at each location. Due to our excellent 
reputation, safe and responsible operation, we have been awarded additional leases from 
our marina associates on the west coast. (See accompanying letter of recommendation).  
 
The boats will be fiberglass, hull design 11’, equipped with 30 HP, outboard, 4- stroke, low 
emissions motors. Engine oil capacity is 2 quarts and is a sealed system. Passenger ratings 
for the boats are 3 persons, up to 375lbs. There will be 6 boats when operations commence.  
 
Authorized Tohatsu Motors dealers will perform required maintenance and repair to the 
boats and motors. The repair facility will be responsible for disposal of any waste oil 
produced.  Boats will be removed from the water and trailered to repair facilities. Fueling 
will take place at Pelican Harbor Marina, which is located approximately one mile west of 
the docking location. Speedboat Adventures will contract with a local marine wash and 
detail facility to clean boats on a regular schedule. Boats will be removed from the water 
and trailered to their location.  
 
In the event of severe weather, boats will be removed from the water and stored in a local, 
warehouse storage facility.  
 

Page 618



 

Page 619



 

Page 620



 
 

Page 621



 

Page 622



 

Page 623



 

Page 624



 
 

Page 625



Page 626



Page 627



Page 628



Page 629



Page 630



Page 631



Page 632



Page 633



Page 634



Page 635



Page 636



Page 637



Page 638



Page 639



Page 640



Page 641



Page 642



Page 643



Page 644



Page 645



Page 646



Page 647



Page 648



Page 649



Page 650



Page 651



Page 652



Page 653



Page 654



Page 655



Page 656



Page 657



Page 658



Page 659



Page 660



Page 661



Page 662



Page 663



Page 664



Page 665



Page 666



Page 667



Staff Report
Permit Application for Dock

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant: Holger Piening & Andrea Franke 

Site Address: 1700 South Treasure Drive 

Request: Permit for a dock, with a waiver to extend 
more than 25 feet from the bulkhead line, 
and a boat lift.

10B

Page 668



General Information 

 
Owner Holger Piening & Andrea Franke 

Applicant Address 
c/o Nicole Huesmann, D.A. 
Alhambra Circle, Suite 1200 
Coral Gables, Fl. 33134 

Site Address 1700 S Treasure Drive 
Contact Person Nicole Huesmann 
Contact Phone Number 305-858-0220 
E-mail Address njhuesmann@njhlaw.com 
Zoning District RS-2 
Use of Property Single Family Home 

 

General Description 
The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock at a residence in the RS-2 
zoning district. The proposed dock will extend 47 feet from the existing seawall into 
Biscayne Bay and will include a 24,000-pound capacity boat lift. This item was deferred 
in September 2016 because interested parties to the request could not attend. 

Applicable Code Provisions 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 150.11 and 
specifically subsections (A) and (F).  

Section 150.11 reads as follows: 

(A) No person, firm, or corporation shall construct, reconstruct, or repair any docks, 
piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, similar structures of any kind more than 25 feet 
perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any waterway within the 
corporate limits of the Village. Provided however, if construction of a docking 
facility is prevented by the requirement of federal, state or preemptive local 
environmental laws, rules and regulations (laws) whereby in order to obtain a 
permit for construction of a docking facility, it is necessary to exceed the same 
more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline, the docking facility 
may be constructed such distance from the seawall or shoreline as may be 
required in order to comply with such laws by obtaining a waiver from the Village 
Commission in accordance with subsection (G), provided further, however the 
furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or shoreline shall not exceed 75 
feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward most line of the 
dock or pier but not including required rip-rap.  

Page 669

mailto:njhuesmann@njhlaw.com


 
(B) Plans and specifications for construction, reconstruction, or repair of docks, piers, 

dolphins, wharfs, pilings, or similar structures shall comply with all provisions of 
the Village Code, shall be approved by the Village Manager, and shall be kept 
permanently in the records of the Village. Repair or reconstruction may be made 
in accordance with the original plans. 
  

(C) No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the 
Village unless the structure is set back at least 7½ feet from the lot line on each 
side; and the structure shall not exceed five feet above ground level, except a 
joint or "party" dock may be permitted on the property line if approved by the 
Village Commission.  
 

(D) No person, firm, or corporation shall build, maintain, extend, or make any 
structural alteration on any building, dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, 
seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or over the waters adjacent to Harbor 
Island, Treasurer Island, North Bay Island, and Cameo Island within the 
corporate limits of the Village, or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the 
waters without first obtaining a written permit to do so from the Village Manager.  
 

(E) Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section 
shall be made to the Village Manager in writing on forms provided therefore. The 
permit shall constitute an agreement by the applicant to comply with all 
conditions imposed upon granting of the permit. The application shall be 
accompanied by plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be 
done.  
 

(F) All applications for construction or structural alterations of any building, dock, 
pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or 
over the waters within the corporate limits of the Village shall require the approval 
of the Village Commission after a public hearing. During the public hearing the 
Village Commission shall consider safety and compatibility as criteria for 
approving the application.  
 

(G) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (F), if an applicant seeks a dock or 
pier length greater than 25 feet, the Village Commission shall additionally 
consider the following criteria to determine if a waiver shall be granted:  

(i) If Miami Dade Department of Environmental Management has required 
specific depth or location criteria; and  

(ii) If the Applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent 
from adjoining riparian property owners, and  

(iii) If the Village has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian 
property owners; and  

Page 670



(iv) Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

(H) The Village Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or 
impose conditions in the permit, pursuant to paragraph (F), or granting of a 
waiver, pursuant to paragraph (G), which it deems necessary to protect the 
waterways of the Village in accordance with the public safety and the general 
welfare. The requirement of approval by the Village Commission shall not include 
applications for repair of existing structures.  
 

(I) A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi judicial and follow 
the hearing procedures provided in Section 29.02 of the Code.  
 

(J) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed or apply to prohibiting repair 
or reconstruction or otherwise limiting those structures which exist at the time of 
adoption of this section, however, the provisions of subsections (D) and (E) 
above shall be complied with. 

The location of boats, docks and piers is also governed by Section 152.059, most 
specifically subsection (B) which reads as follows:  

“(B) No docks, piers, mooring posts, or combinations thereof, may project more than 25 
feet from any bulkhead line, nor extend nearer than seven and one-half feet to any 
adjacent property line. A waiver may be granted by the Village Commission 
pursuant to Section 150.11(A), upon completion of a marine survey demonstrating 
the minimum distances from the seawall necessary to meet the minimum depth 
requirements, approved by DERM, and completed by a licensed professional 
surveyor and mapper registered to practice in the State of Florida.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 671



Staff Comments 

The dock will be located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are 
met.  

However, the dock length is greater than 25 feet from the seawall. Section 150.11(A) 
prohibits docks lengths greater than 25 feet unless a waiver is granted by the Village 
Commission. Section 150.11(G) provides several criteria for the Commission to 
consider when reviewing waiver requests (see above code language). 

The applicant has provided a biological assessment sketch stating the presence of 
near-shore marine resources, a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to 
the East, and emails from DERM verifying their approval contingent upon agreement 
from the applicant that boats will be moored only in a bow-in configuration. 

The adjacent property owner to the West will not issue a letter of consent for this 
project, citing the fact that the variances received for the construction of the applicant’s 
single family residence contributed to his loss of scenic view, and that approval of this 
54-foot dock would further obstruct his view. Due to this issue, DERM did request a 
modification of the plans (to remove a westward mooring pile), and the applicant has 
complied with this request. Staff is not aware whether this modification is more 
compatible for the neighbor to the west. All interested parties should be in attendance at 
the April 25, 2017, public hearing. 

See attached for all above mentioned documents and correspondence. 

At the time of the September deferred meeting, the applicant had not provided any 
documentation regarding the condition of the seawall at the subject site; and in email 
correspondence with the applicant’s representative, it was stated that they were aware 
that seawall repairs would be necessary. Since the time of our original staff memo, a 
permit was issued for the seawall repairs in December 2016, and the applicant is 
waiting a final engineering inspection. 

Based on the materials presented by the applicant, and the preapproval by DERM, the 
proposed structures are in compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 
152.059 and 150.11. The proposed dock is safe and compatible. However, the seawall 
should be repaired before the dock permit is issued. 
  

Page 672



Recommendation 
Assuming there are no further affected party objections, staff recommends approval of 
this dock application and approval of the waiver to construct a dock greater than 25 feet 
in length, with the following conditions being met prior to the issuance of a building 
permit: 
 
1. Submittal of a seawall repair inspection report, indicating that all necessary repairs 

have been made and that the seawall is in good condition. 
 
2. Verification of the 5-foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
3. Installation of solar powered lights at end of dock for safety purposes. 
 
4. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 

to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

 
5.  Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 

prior to commencement of construction. 
 
6.  Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 

new development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be 
issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and 
outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to any 
previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

 
7.  Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way 

create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in 
a violation of federal or state law. 

 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP  
Planning Consultant 
 
April 11, 2017 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 25, 2017 
 
Attachments: Biological Assessment Sketch  
 Emails from Miami-Dade DERM  

Page 673



 Statement from Applicant Confirming Agreement of Bow-in Mooring  
 Letters from Adjacent Property Owners 
 Dock Plans Provided by Applicant   

Page 674



 
 
 
 

Page 675



James, 
 
The permit CLI-2014-0247 is ready to issue pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. Structural and zoning approvals from North Bay Village. 
2. A permit fee in the amount of $1,945.00. 
3. A statement from the property owner confirming that any vessel moored in either slip will be 

limited to bow-in mooring only. 
4. A letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the east. 

 
DERM is able to verify the SAJ-42 and issue on behalf of FDEP for this scope of work. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Regards, 
 
Emily Goodwin, Biologist II 
Coastal and Wetlands Resources Section 
Division of Environmental Resources Management (DERM) 
Miami Dade County Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources 
701 N.W. 1st Court - 6th Floor -Miami, FL 33136  
(305)372-6931 – Phone  (305)372-6479 - Fax 
www.miamidade.gov 
goodwe@miamidade.gov 
  

Page 676

http://www.miamidade.gov/
mailto:goodwe@miamidade.gov


From: Goodwin, Emily (RER)  
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:37 PM 
To: 'Nicole Huesmann' 
Cc: Jamesjamesmjr@aol.com 
Subject: RE: Boat Dock Piening-Franke - 1700 S Traesure Drive - Description of Boats 
 
James and Nicole, 
 
After coordinating internally regarding the configuration, we have decided we are willing to proceed 
with this configuration without a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the west 
provided the most waterward mooring pile currently located 52’ waterward of the seawall is removed 
from the scope of work to minimize the exceedance beyond the D-5 boundary. 
 
James- with this pile removed from the preliminarily approved set, we’ll be able to proceed with these 
plans. The permit is being drafted and while I’ll follow up with a finalized list of pending items ASAP, the 
pending submittals will include structural and zoning approvals from the City, the permit fee of 
$1,945.00, a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the east, and the statement from the 
property owner confirming that any vessel moored in either slip will be limited to bow-in mooring only. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Regards, 
 
Emily Goodwin, Biologist II 
Coastal and Wetlands Resources Section 
Division of Environmental Resources Management (DERM) 
Miami Dade County Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources 
701 N.W. 1st Court - 6th Floor -Miami, FL 33136  
(305)372-6931 – Phone  (305)372-6479 - Fax 
www.miamidade.gov 
goodwe@miamidade.gov 

 
  

Page 677

mailto:Jamesjamesmjr@aol.com
http://www.miamidade.gov/
mailto:goodwe@miamidade.gov


Page 678



Page 679



Page 680



Page 681



Page 682



 

 
 

Page 683



 

Page 684



-----Original Message----- 
From: Paul Norris [mailto:pnorris@med.miami.edu] 
Sent: Thu 9/1/2016 2:01 PM 
To: Connie Leon-Kreps 
Subject: Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
 
 
Hi, Mayor, This is Dr Norris, we met over the weekend. I am writing on a matter regarding my 
neighbor at 1700 s treasure dr . He is asking for a variance on his dock which will significantly 
block my eastern view. ( his variance on his house has already blocked a considerable part of my 
view ) I believe the hearing is scheduled for this month however I will be out of town this month 
until the 26th and I want to be present for the hearing on this important matter. Can the hearing 
on this matter be scheduled for a date that I will be in town? 
 
 

Page 685

mailto:pnorris@med.miami.edu


 

Page 686



 
 

Page 687



Page 688



Page 689



Page 690



Page 691



Page 692



Page 693



Page 694



Page 695



Page 696



Page 697



Page 698



Page 699



Memorandum 

To: North Bay Village Commission 

From: James G. LaRue, AICP 

Date: April 11, 2017 

Subject: The Proposed Unified Land Development Code Re-write 

The proposed Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) was approved at first reading on March 28, 2017. 
The attached memo outlines the significant changes that were presented at that meeting. We 
recommend approval at the second hearing on April 25th, without further modifications.  

Once the Village has a truly ULDC we will begin to look at priority areas where the Commission would 
like us to focus for future improvements to our new regulations.  

10C

Page 700



Memorandum 
 

To: North Bay Village Commission 
From: James G. LaRue, AICP 
Date: February 14, 2017 
Subject: The Proposed Unified Land Development Code Re-write 

The Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) re-write has been an ongoing process for the last 
several years, with numerous sessions before the Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Board as well as a 
workshop with the Village Commission. At their February 7, 2017 meeting, the P&Z board voted 
to recommend approval of the ULDC adoption along with some revisions to the procedures for 
dock approvals. Now the final draft is being presented for adoption by the Commission at the 
February 28th meeting.  

The source of the content for our new ULDC comes mainly from zoning Chapter 152 and the 
consolidated Chapters 1-6. Other chapters were also examined and text was incorporated from 
the Off-Street Parking Chapter 171, and the Design Guideline Standards Chapter 155. The 
format of the new code will be in chapter format similar to our current consolidated 
regulations. Chapters 152, 155, and 1 – 6, can all be removed concurrently with the adoption of 
the new ULDC.  

To briefly summarize, there are several reasons for adopting a Unified LDC, including 
contradictions in our current land use regulations, existing unclear or ambiguous language, the 
need for processes to be streamlined, outdated references, duplications, and current issues 
that require legislative responses. 

Additionally, issues arose over the last year which required short term fixes in our LDC. Those 
code revisions have been incorporated into the new ULDC and it is now even more important 
for us to focus on the long-term impact of adopting a better and more comprehensive Unified 
Land Development Code that will replace our current disjointed land development regulations.  

We have enclosed the proposed ULDC document for your review and an outline of the 
significant changes in the following pages. At the February 28th meeting, we will explain the 
format of the proposed code, highlight the major differences between the new code and the 
existing regulations, and highlight the major areas of the present land use regulations we are 
changing.  

Page 701



Ch. I –GENERAL 

Reestablished one Village Land Development Code consistent with the Comprehensive Plan state 
requirements. 

 

Ch. II – RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN   

Modified text to more appropriately describe the relationship between the Comp Plan and the LDC.  The 
Comp Plan should be changed to identify that: 

● Government Use District is consistent with the Public Buildings and Grounds Future Land 
Use Categories (FLUC) 

● RS-2 District is consistent with the Educational FLUC  

● RM-40 District is consistent with the Recreational FLUC  

 

Ch. III – DEFINITIONS 

Specialized definitions necessary for: grow house, marijuana, marijuana based product, marijuana 
dispensary, mobile marijuana dispensary. (Other definitions will be included in the final process of the 
LDC.) 

 

Ch. IV – ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT   

Included: 

● More detailed purpose and intent statement  
● Detailed procedure for obtaining an official interpretation of the LDC 

Changed terms: 

● “non-use exception” to “use exception”  
● “non-use variance” to “non-hardship variance for single-family properties”  

Changed §4.15 to reference and be consistent with the Community Planning Act (HB 7207) 

 

Ch. V – PERMITS AND DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS 

Added a new §5.14C covering the handling of permits that are erroneously issued. 

Added new section covering vacation of streets, alleys, easements & public rights-of-way. 

 

  

Page 702



Ch. VI – NONCONFORMITIES 

Added a new §6.5B to address nonconforming lots in the CG District. 

Changed §6.6B to: 

● Replace provision allowing changing a nonconforming use to a “more restrictive category of 
nonconforming use” to prohibit changing a nonconforming use to any other nonconforming 
use. 

● Replace allowed destruction of nonconforming use from “more than 50%” to “50% or less”.   

● Clarify what is not allowed when a nonconforming use is destroyed and replaced. 
 

Ch. VII – VARIANCES   

Changed §7.4A to: 

● Replace the term “non use variance” to “non-hardship variance for single-family properties”  

● Identify those characteristics of use for which such variances may be granted.   

● Limit these non-hardship variances only to single-family uses. 

● Clarify that such variances will be heard at Public Hearings before the Planning and Zoning 
Board and then the Village Commission. 

Added provisions in §§7.4B & C and §§ 7.5 & 7.6 that: 

● Include criteria for the P&Z Board recommendation and Village Commission approval of a 
non-hardship variance on a single-family property.  

● Extend the time of expiration of a variance from one to two years, consistent with the date 
of site plan expirations. (§7.5) 

● Require at least one year before reapplication for a variance that was disapproved (§7.6). 

 

Ch. VIII – ZONING 

Recommending: 

● Eliminating the CL District and rezoning all CL properties to CG. 

● Adding uses now allowed in the CL, but not the, CG District to be added to the new CG 
District.   

Simplifying text now in §8.10,A,4,c and §8.10,B,4,c (max. height in the RS-1 and RS-2) to simply state 
that the maximum allowable height is three stories not to exceed 35 feet above FEMA.  

Modified the minimum required lot area/unit for efficiency and 1-bedroom units so that density does 
not exceed 70.0 dwelling units/acre and eliminated the four-story limit for garage structures. 

Simplified the RM-70 lot size provision by removing the reference to another section of the LDC and 
listing the actual minimum area and frontage numbers 

Rewritten the confusing “Flex setback” provisions so that they are more understandable. 

Added a digital model on a DVD as an alternative to the required architectural model. 

Page 703



Modified the CG District 

● It is the result of the merging the current CG and CL regulations (including rezoning all CL 
properties to CG).   

● The current CG regulations form the basis for the new CG district and ensures that property 
owners are not adversely affected by the merging of the two existing Districts.  

Fast-food restaurants without drive-thru or drive-in service are proposed to be a permitted use. 

Other logical commercial uses have been added as “uses by right”. 

All drive-thru or drive-in service, regardless of the use to which they are attached are proposed to be 
special uses subject to use exception provisions. 

Changed the term “special use exception” to “use exception” throughout the LDC and added provisions 
for: 

● Extend the time of expiration of a use exception from one to two years, consistent with the 
date of site plan expirations. 

● A minimum of one year for reapplication for a use exception that has been denied. 

Per the P&Z Board, accessory storage structures are limited to a height of 12 feet. 
The prohibition of wood and vinyl clad fencing within front yard is proposed to be eliminated. 
 
Ch. IX – GENERAL SITE DESIGN STANDARDS 

Included: 

 9x18 requirements for parking from §5.1 and §5.2 

 Parking requirements for pharmacy and marijuana dispensary 

 Requires valet parking if compact car spaces are used 

 Docks under 25 ft in length and within the D5 triangle can be approved administratively 

 Chapter 155 design criteria 

 

Ch. X – FLOOD DAMAGE PROTECTION 

Remains as written. 

 

Ch. XI – SIGNS 

 Needs full review for design and site standards by Signage Review Committee 

 Reestablished non-conforming amortization time period 

 Allows LED signs 

 Sign regulations have been removed from other zoning districts. 

 Temporary sign regulations have been made consistent with Supreme Court decision. 

 Specialized definition necessary for: temporary signs 

Page 704



Ch. XII – ADULT ENTERTAINMENT 

Remains with current language unchanged. 

 
Ch. XIII – VACATION RENTAL LICENSE PROGRAM 

 Incorporates 2016 separate North Bay Ordinance. 

 Specialized definition necessary for: vacation rentals. 

 Vacation rental regulations are proposed to apply in Multi-Family Zoning Districts 

 
Ch. XIV – MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES  

 Incorporates 2016 separate North Bay Ordinance. 

 Includes comprehensive regulations. 

 

SUMMARY 

In summary, the following key items are the major revisions of our proposed Unified Land Development 

Code: 

A. Collapsing the Limited Commercial Zoning District into the General Commercial Zoning District 

B. Revising the maximum building height allowed in Single Family Zoning District 

C. Changing the criteria for non-hardship variances in Single Family Zoning District 

D. Site plan approvals will require only one public hearing before the Commission 

E. Docks under 25 ft in length and within the D5 triangle can be approved administratively 

F. Allowance of new zoning uses such as: pharmacies, day care, and urgent care facilities 

G. Removal of compact spaces as special exceptions. 

H. Fence standards for vacant properties adopted. 

I. Removal of requirement of internal access to commercial facilities in multi-family 

developments.  

 

Page 705



Page 706



Page 707



Page 708



Page 709



Page 710



Page 711



Page 712



Page 713



Page 714



Page 715



Page 716



Page 717



Page 718



Page 719



Page 720



Page 721



Page 722



Page 723



Page 724



Page 725



Page 726



Page 727



Page 728



Page 729



Page 730



Page 731



Page 732



Page 733



Page 734



Page 735



Page 736



Page 737



Page 738



Page 739



Page 740



Page 741



Page 742



Page 743



Page 744



Page 745



Page 746



Page 747



Page 748



Page 749



Page 750



Page 751



Page 752



Page 753



Page 754



Page 755



Page 756



Page 757



Page 758



Page 759



Page 760



Page 761



Page 762



Page 763



Page 764



Page 765



Page 766



Page 767



Page 768



Page 769



Page 770



Page 771



Page 772



Page 773



Page 774



Page 775



Page 776



Page 777



Page 778



Page 779



Page 780



Page 781



Page 782



Page 783



Page 784



Page 785



Page 786



Page 787



Page 788



Page 789



Page 790



Page 791



Page 792



Page 793



Page 794



Page 795



Page 796



Page 797



Page 798



Page 799



Page 800



Page 801



Page 802



Page 803



Page 804



Page 805



Page 806



Page 807



Page 808



Page 809



Page 810



Page 811



Page 812



Page 813



Page 814



Page 815



Page 816



Page 817



Page 818



Page 819



Page 820



Page 821



Page 822



Page 823



Page 824



Page 825



Page 826



Page 827



Page 828



Page 829



Page 830



Page 831



Page 832



Page 833



Page 834



Page 835



Page 836



Page 837



Page 838



Page 839



Page 840



Page 841



Page 842



Page 843



Page 844



Page 845



Page 846



Page 847



Page 848



Page 849



Page 850



Page 851



Page 852



Page 853



Page 854



Page 855



Page 856



Page 857



Page 858



Page 859



Page 860



Page 861



Page 862



Page 863



Page 864



Page 865



Page 866



Page 867



Page 868



Page 869



Page 870



Page 871



Page 872



Page 873



Page 874



Page 875



Page 876



Page 877



Page 878



Page 879



Page 880



Page 881



Page 882



Page 883



Page 884



Page 885



Page 886



Page 887



Page 888



Page 889



Page 890



Page 891



Page 892



Page 893



Page 894



Page 895



Page 896



Page 897



Page 898



Page 899



Page 900



Page 901



Page 902



Page 903



Page 904



Page 905



Page 906



Page 907



Page 908



Page 909



Page 910



Page 911



Page 912



Page 913



Page 914



Page 915



Page 916



Page 917



Page 918



Page 919



Page 920



Page 921



Page 922



Page 923



Page 924



Page 925



Page 926



Page 927



Page 928



Page 929



Page 930



Page 931



Page 932



Page 933



Page 934



Page 935



Page 936



Page 937



Page 938



Page 939



Page 940



Page 941



Page 942



Page 943



Page 944



Page 945



Page 946



Page 947



Page 948



Page 949



Page 950



Page 951



Page 952



Page 953



Page 954



Page 955



Page 956



Page 957



Page 958



Page 959



Page 960



Page 961



Page 962



Page 963



Page 964



Page 965



Page 966



Page 967



Page 968



Page 969



Page 970



Page 971



Page 972



Page 973



Page 974



Page 975



Page 976



Page 977



Page 978



Page 979



Page 980



Page 981



Page 982



Page 983



Page 984



Page 985



Page 986



Page 987



Page 988



Page 989



Page 990



Page 991



Page 992



Page 993



Page 994



Page 995



Page 996



Page 997



Page 998



Page 999



Page 1000



Page 1001



Page 1002



Page 1003



Page 1004



Page 1005



Page 1006



Page 1007



Page 1008



Page 1009



Page 1010



Page 1011



Page 1012



Page 1013



Page 1014



Page 1015



Page 1016



Page 1017



Page 1018



Page 1019



Page 1020



Page 1021



Page 1022



Page 1023



Page 1024



Page 1025



Page 1026



Page 1027



Page 1028



Page 1029



Page 1030



Page 1031



Page 1032



Page 1033



Page 1034



Page 1035



Page 1036



Page 1037



Page 1038



Page 1039



Page 1040



Page 1041



Page 1042



Page 1043



Page 1044



Page 1045



Page 1046



Page 1047



Page 1048



Page 1049



Page 1050



Page 1051



Page 1052



Page 1053



Page 1054



Page 1055



Page 1056



Page 1057



Page 1058



Page 1059



Page 1060



Page 1061



Page 1062



Page 1063



Page 1064



Page 1065



Page 1066



Page 1067



Page 1068



Page 1069



Page 1070



Page 1071



Page 1072



Page 1073



Page 1074



Page 1075



Page 1076



Page 1077



Page 1078



Page 1079



Page 1080



Page 1081



Page 1082



Page 1083



Page 1084



Page 1085



Page 1086



Page 1087



Page 1088



Page 1089



Page 1090



Page 1091



Page 1092



Page 1093



Page 1094



Page 1095



Page 1096


	04/25/2017 AGENDA
	4 - Grant Writer's Report
	6 - Village Manager's Report
	8A - City of Fort Lauderdale Mutual Aid Agreement
	8B - BID No. 2017-001 Water Meter Replacement Program Award
	8C - 7631 & 7701 Coquina Drive Vacant Parcels of Land - Resolution
	8D - Florida Department of Enviromental Protections (FDEP) Rates
	8E - Franco Government Relations, Inc. Contract Renewal Resolution
	8F - Gomez Barker Associates, Inc. Contract Renewal Resolution
	10A - 1819 Kennedy Causeway Application
	10B - 1700 South Treasure Drive Application
	10C - Unified Land Development Code Re-write



